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AGENDA 

Northern Kentucky University 

 

Regents Dinner 

Tuesday, November 12, 2019 – 6:00 p.m.  

6:00 p.m. 

 Regents Dinner at President’s Home (Wilder, KY) 

 

 

                 Joint Finance and Policy Meeting 

NKU, Student Union, 104 – Wednesday, November 13, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

 

9:00 a.m. 

A. Joint Finance and Policy Committee:  
1. Annual Financial Report (Hales, Kerdolff) 

2. Annual Enrollment Report (Scranage, Rainey, Padgett, Stewart) 

3. College of Business (Ott Rowlands, HassabElnaby, Raska, Combs, Kelly) 

 

 

Board Lunch 

NKU, Eva G. Farris Reading Room, Steely Library – Wednesday, November 13, 2019 – 11:30 a.m.  

11:30 a.m.  

Board of Regents Meeting 

NKU, Student Union 104 – Wednesday, November 13, 2019 – 1:00 p.m.  

 

1:00 p.m. 

 Call to Order  

 Roll Call 

 Approval of September 11, 2019, Board Minutes 

 Presidential Comments 

 Joint Finance and Policy Committee Summary, Secretary of the Board of Regents 

 Audit Committee Report, Secretary of the Board of Regents 

 

1:20 p.m. 

                  B.      Presidential Reports: 

1. Facilities Management Report (Hales) 

2. Research/Grants/Contracts Report (July 1, 2019 – September 30, 2019) (Ott Rowlands, Langley) 

3. Fundraising Report (July 1, 2019 – September 30, 2019) (Gentry) 

4. Organizational Changes Report (Hales) 

5. Annual Financial Report (Hales) 

 

1:40 p.m. 

          C.     Presidential Recommendations: 

1. *Academic Affairs Personnel Actions 

2. *Non-Academic Personnel Actions 

3. *Major Gifts Acceptance 

4. *Naming Recommendations 

5. *Faculty Handbook Amendment (School and Director Name Change) 

6. *Faculty Handbook Amendment (12.6 Faculty Sick Leave Records) 

7. *New Center Creation - Informatics+  

8. *SGA Constitution Revision 

9. *Organizational Chart Update 

10. Capital Budget 2020-2022 Recommendation 

 

 

2:00 p.m. 

D.    Executive Session 

 

 

*Consent Agenda Items - (Items placed on the consent agenda are passed in one motion without discussion.  Any Regent may request that an item be removed 

from the consent agenda for a separate motion by calling Wendy Peek in the Office of the President, 572-5172, by 2 p.m., Monday, November 11, 2019). 
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Board of Regents Meeting 
Northern Kentucky University, Student Union, Room 104 

September 11, 2019 

Regent W. Lee Scheben, Chair, called the regular meeting of the Board of Regents to order at 
1:00 pm, Wednesday, September 11, 2019. 

Roll Call:  Michael Baranowski, David Bauer, Richard Boehne, Normand Desmarais, Ashley 
Himes, Jarett Lopez, Terry Mann, Dennis Repenning, W. Lee Scheben, Gregory Shumate, 
Absent:  Andrá Ward. 

Other Attendees:  Ashish Vaidya, Wendy Peek, Tammy Knochelmann, Bonita Brown, Ken 
Bothof, Joan Gates, Eric Gentry, Mike Hales, Valerie Hardcastle, Dan Nadler, Sue Ott 
Rowlands, Kim Scranage, Lori Southwood, Diana McGill, Hassan HassabElnaby, Kevin Kirby, 
Dale Stephenson, Jim Allen, Andrea Falcone, Judith Daar, Tracy Insko, Bill Farrow, Adam 
Flora, Allen Cole, Melissa Gorbandt, Sara Kelley, Russ Kerdolff, Samantha Langley, Larry 
Meyer, Mary Paula Schuh, Leah Stewart, Syed Zaidi, Anna Wright, Ryan Padgett, Janel Bloch, 
Chad Ogle, Christian Gamm, Atley Smedley, Mary Barry, Jennifer Moeves, Noelle Horn, 
Hannah Edelen, Tom Ramstetter, Matthew Zacate, Jeff Pugh, Chandra Brown, Liz Birkenhauer. 

Regent Terry Mann seconded Regent Gregory Shumate’s motion to approve the minutes of the 
May 8, 2019 Board of Regents meeting. (Motion carried) 

Regent Terry Mann seconded Regent Gregory Shumate’s motion to approve the minutes of the 
June 11, 2019 Board of Regents meeting. (Motion carried) 

Regent Terry Mann seconded Regent Gregory Shumate’s motion to approve the minutes of the 
July 17 and July 18, 2019 Board of Regents meeting. (Motion carried) 

Board of Regents Elections: 

Regent Terry Mann seconded Regent W. Lee Scheben’s motion to approve Regent Normand 
Desmarais as Secretary to the Board of Regents for 2019-2020. (Motion carried) 

Regent Richard Boehne seconded Regent Terry Mann’s motion to approve Regent W. Lee 
Scheben as Chairman to the Board of Regents for 2019-2020. (Motion carried) 

Regent Jarett Lopez seconded Regent Normand Desmarais’s motion to approve Regent Andrá 
Ward as Vice Chairman to the Board of Regents for 2019-2020. (Motion carried) 

Presidential Comments: 

Thank you, Chair Scheben and members of the Board. 
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

Happy new academic year and welcome back, everyone. I hope that you all had a restful and 
enjoyable summer. 

We were pleased to welcome 215 new faculty and staff this year. That includes 137 full-time and 
part-time faculty and 78 permanent and temporary staff members.  

I want to welcome Bonita Brown, our new VP/CSO. She started on August 1 and has been busy 
working on Success by Design. In addition, Mike Hales has been appointed as the interim 
VPA&F and CFO effective August 1. Mike will oversee the areas of business operations and 
auxiliary services, budget and comptroller’s office, facilities, information technology and human 
resources. At this time, I would also like to acknowledge and thank Lori Southwood for her role 
this last year and a half as the Co-Interim Chief Administration Officer for the Division of 
Administration and Finance. 

On August 12, we welcomed our faculty, staff and students back to campus at Fall Convocation. 
It was wonderful to reflect on our first year together, to celebrate all our accomplishments and to 
look forward to the implementation of Success by Design this year.  

We also announced the LIFT Scholars Program, which was created from $2 million in gifts to 
support the university’s Further, Faster Campaign. Horizon Community Funds of Northern 
Kentucky, through the support of Rich and Lisa Boehne and Bill and Sue Butler, has committed 
$1 million dollars each from the Rich and Lisa Boehne Fund and the Eagle One Fund to be used 
as a matching fund to establish LIFT. LIFT stands for Lifelong Investment and Future 
Transformation. 

The program focuses on NKU students who have demonstrated academic potential but are at risk 
of not completing their degrees. The university will match the $2 million with other gifts from 
the community. Once realized, the program will have $4 million to support student success. 

Success by Design 
• Over the summer, the Cabinet was busy reviewing the information received from the

planning process from faculty, staff, students and the community.

• From that effort came the first draft of the initiatives for SBD. If you recall, we had the
pillars, we developed the objectives, but now we have added in actionable initiatives.

• We spent the month meeting with various constituency groups to gather input on these draft
initiatives.

• We held open forums, focus groups and disseminated a survey.

• During many of these meetings, we engaged the participants in activities that asked them to
review the initiatives and help us identify what might be missing. We also asked them to
prioritize what we should work on first and plot it on a chart that showed what is doable vs.
how easy or hard it was.
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

• And finally, we asked them to start drafting an action plan, what steps should be taken in the 
next 6-12 months and who should be involved.  

• We plan to use this information to develop a final version of the initiatives and begin 
assembling the implementation teams to begin this very important work.  

 
• For our Fall Leadership meeting this Friday, we have invited Dr. Ed Morrison from the 

Purdue Strategy Lab to come and work with about 80 campus leaders on Strategic Doing as a 
way to kick off the implementation phase of Success by Design. The participants will learn 
strategies for moving beyond the planning phase and how to engage and lead others in the 
process. We will also feature a presentation from a faculty member and staff members on 
innovative ideas that have been implemented to showcase the work already taking place on 
campus. 

 
• I am also happy to announce to the Board the creation of a one-time $2 million Strategic 

Investment and Innovation Fund (SIIF) to support the implementation of Success by Design, 
and Box 3 initiatives in particular. Thanks to our efforts in being good stewards of our funds 
in 2018-19, we have been able to set aside these non-recurring resources to support Success 
by Design. 

If you recall, Box 3 will include the bold, new initiatives that we want to launch and implement 
to help us reach the goals set out in Success by Design.  
 
In the coming weeks, we will form the implementation teams and determine the process and 
criteria for awarding funds from this $2 million SIIF. While we develop the criteria, it will be 
important that all funding requests are aligned with the framework initiatives, and include 
expected outcomes, progress milestones and measures for achievement. 
 
CPE President Listening Tour 
• In late August, we hosted Kentucky’s Council on Postsecondary Education (CPE) President 

Dr. Aaron Thompson as part of his statewide listening tour. Dr. Thompson spent two days 
engaging students, university leadership and community members about issues impacting 
college access, student success, workforce quality and transitions to career in Kentucky.  
 
The purpose of his listening tour across the Commonwealth is to gain a fresh perspective of 
how public higher education is serving Kentucky. Since February, Dr. Thompson continued 
to have face-to-face conversations with Kentuckians on how campuses can better serve 
students, the workforce and the economy. 
 
Dr. Thompson’s priorities support our strategic framework’s focus on advancing student 
success that aligns with the needs of the region. 

 
UK College of Medicine 
• In August, we welcomed the University Of Kentucky College Of Medicine’s inaugural class 

of medical students who will pursue education at the new Northern Kentucky Campus this 
fall, which is inside Albright Health Center. 
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

 
Last week, we gathered with our partners from UK and St. Elizabeth for a ribbon-cutting to 
celebrate this important collaboration. 
 
There are 35 students enrolled in the inaugural class, including two NKU alums. 

 
Academic Affairs Update 
• The College of Health and Human Services’ Simulation Center is now playing a key role in 

education across the university and throughout the community. The SIM Center is now an 
official American Heart Association Training Site. Under the direction of St. Elizabeth, the 
SIM Center will offer CPR courses to students, faculty, staff and community stakeholders. 
Beginning with the fall 2019 semester, a new simulation program commenced with the 
Honors College, which brings HNR 101 students to the SIM where they will perform basic 
clinical techniques in a simulated environment. Finally, the college has formed a partnership 
with Gateway Community College, where students at Gateway pursuing an Associates of 
Nursing degree will utilize the College’s Simulation Center to perform simulation activities 
required for their degree. 

 
• NKU was renewed for another five years as an "NSA / Department of Homeland Security 

Center of Academic Excellence in Cyber Defense Education.” To earn this renewal, NKU 
needed to show that its cybersecurity curriculum covers the latest threats and innovations, 
that it has a critical mass of faculty with deep security expertise, and that its lab facilities 
were state-of-the-art. 

 
• The Chronicle of Higher Education ranked NKU 40th in the country for the percentage of 

women earning degrees in Computer Science.  With 21% of its graduates as women, the 
program outranks programs at UK, UC and Miami University. NKU received a grant from 
the National Center for Women in Technology last year specifically to close the gender gap. 

 
• NKU was awarded two student success-centered programmatic NSF grants. The STEM 

Ready grant will help faculty study the impacts of two different math preparation bridge 
programs, residential and non-residential. The nearly $300,000 in grant money will allow 
student participants to each receive a $45 stipend to pay for access to the ALEKS program 
and two proctored tests.  

 
• In addition, we will be able to allocate $14,400 in housing costs and $10,000 in meal costs 

for 30 students for two weeks for each of the two summers for the residential program. Work 
has already begun to create the bridge program to allow us to welcome our first 60-student 
cohort in the summer of 2020.  
 
The other NSF grant is for Sustainable, Scalable Scholarships, Opportunities, Achievements, 
and Results: a five-year, $1,068,593 grant for scholarships and a support system for high-
achieving, low-income STEM students. 
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

• Our special education (learning and behavior disorders) programs have received national 
recognition by the Council for Exceptional Children (CEC). These NKU programs are the 
only nationally recognized learning and behavior disorders programs in Kentucky. 

 
• NKU’s online bachelor’s degree in Business Administration ranks second in the country by 

Bachelor’s Degree Center (BDC) and received rankings for affordable tuition, along with 
their accreditations and fully online and hybrid course offerings. 

 
• NKU's Master of Business Administration (MBA) program also received recognition. 

College Consensus, a new college ranking website, lists NKU sixth in the nation for both 
best online MBA program and best no-GMAT online MBA program. College Consensus 
ranks programs on affordability convenience and reputation. 

• The Chase College of Law was named a top law school for business law by the national Pre-
Law Magazine. 

• New degrees for Fall 2019 include a Bachelor of Arts in Japanese and a Bachelor of Science 
degree in Engineering Physics 

 
• NKU is finalizing its response to SACSCOC and their request for more information in four 

key areas. We are conducting workshops and training to assist faculty in their assessment 
efforts, and we will use their data in the submission of our final response. The first year of 
our Quality Enhancement Plan is underway with 16 courses and 257 students actively 
participating in the GEARUP for Information Literacy initiative. 

 
• The NKU MPA program has been re-accredited through 2026 by the Network of School of 

Public Policy, Affairs, and Administration (NASPAA). NASPAA's Commission on Peer 
Review and Accreditation found NKU’s MPA program to be in "substantial conformity" on 
all seven standards, and we will not need to be monitored on any of them during the next 
seven years. 

 
Enrollment Management Updates 
• Our eighth day preliminary enrollment of 15,036 this fall is an increase of 241 students, or 

1.6% compared to the final fall 2018 enrollments. When the preliminary enrollments for the 
second five-week, second seven-week, and third five-week sessions are included, the total 
enrollment is projected to be 15,366, which is an increase from final fall 2018 of 571 
students, or 3.9%.  

• Enrollment for underrepresented minorities increased by 116 students, or 6.0% as compared 
to the final census for fall 2018. Retention for the 2018 cohort is currently 71.9% compared 
to 68.5% last year. In addition, the continuation rate of all students increased from 78.9% to 
79.8%. 

• Our undergraduate enrollment of 11,848 is a decrease of 310 students, or -2.5% compared to 
the final census for fall 2018. For first-time freshmen, inclusive of part-time enrollment, there 
was a decrease of 24 students or 1.2% compared to the final census for fall 2018. 
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

• Graduate enrollment of 2,786, however, is an increase of 576 students, or 26.1% compared to 
the final census for fall 2018. Law enrollment of 402 is a decrease of 25 students, or -5.9% 
compared to the final census of fall 2018. 

 
• The reorganization to establish the new College of Health and Human Services with four new 

schools and the new College of Education was successfully completed in record time due to 
the hard work and collaborative effort of more than 50 people from a dozen departments.  A 
2008 NKU reorganization committee recommended 8 months be allocated for an academic 
reorganization and this team did it in 3 months during a challenging time of year which 
involved year end close, financial audits, and extra ECM processing for salary increases on 
top of summer vacations.   

 
This reorganization was a heavy lift, significantly impacting accounting, human resources, 
budgets, student records, admissions, advising, catalogs, websites, reporting and academic 
structure relationships for 930 courses.  Completing this effort successfully and in record time 
reflects the dedication and excellence of NKU employees. 
 
• NKU has been awarded two grants in CPE’s strategic initiative to help more students succeed 

in college. The CPE awarded each grant through a separate review process. Twenty colleges 
and universities submitted proposals for the funding, and six were approved. The $50,000 
Stronger by Degrees Student Success grants are designed to support students as they progress 
toward completion, with a special emphasis on low-income and underrepresented minority 
students. The $25,000 Project Graduate returning adult program grants support former 
students who have 80 or more credit hours earn their degree. 

• NKU’s Success by Degrees funds will create a one-stop student support center with peer 
mentors who will provide consultation and coaching. It will also develop a series of first-year 
parent/family experience seminars to help families guide their students’ progress through 
college. The university’s Project Graduate grants will address financial barriers for 100 
students through waiving orientation fees and offering book stipends, and will address 
completion barriers of 100 students through free credit-by-exams. 
 
The grants tie directly to NKU’s Success by Design strategic framework and the university’s 
singular focus on advancing student success aligned with the needs of the region.  

 
• In August, the Office of Admissions, the Office of Institutional Students and Scholars and the 

Office of Information Technology successfully launched the Common Application for NKU. 
 
The Common Application is an undergraduate application that applicants can use to apply to 
multiple institutions at one time. Through asking standard common questions, the common 
application allows students to complete one application that, upon submission, is submitted 
to the colleges and universities of their choosing without having to go to each individual 
school and complete a separate application. The Common Application also allows high-
school counselors to submit required credentials through the Common App, streamlining the 
process for students requesting transcripts and test scores. 
 

9



Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

In addition, the NKU College Profile will appear to students using the Common App to 
research potential schools. Students can easily add NKU to their list of colleges. Currently, 
more than 750 students have added NKU to their list in our first month with the Common 
App. By becoming more accessible and streamlining the admission process, it is our goal to 
gain exposure to more students across the U.S. and the world that will lead to additional 
applications. 
 

IHI Updates 
• In collaboration with St. Elizabeth and the Mayfield Foundation, our Institute for Health 

Innovation recently held a health/healthcare pitch competition. Competitors came from the 
northern Kentucky region, Louisville, and Cincinnati. The overall winner of $4,000 was 
CampusDocs – a team that just graduated from the Governor’s School for Entrepreneurship 
this past summer, held here at NKU. Second place was Kathy Noyes, an NKU faculty 
member from The School of Nursing. Judges included a senior administrator from St. 
Elizabeth, a neurosurgeon from Mayfield Brain and Spine, and a long-time entrepreneur from 
Cincinnati. 

 
• Last month, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services announced that NKU would 

receive more than $1.8 million in support for innovative approaches to solving the opioid 
crises in rural areas – more than any other college or university in Kentucky. With the 
Institute for Health Innovation as the lead, faculty and staff from seven departments and 
seven community partners came together to compete for these grants. This funding will 
advance rural care and support for Substance Use Disorder in Owen County and develop new 
ways of delivering peer support specialist training to underserved regions. This brings the 
total amount of grant funding that the IHI has received since its inception last summer, to 
$3.6 million. 

 
Student Affairs Updates 
• The Division of Student Affairs administered a smooth and successful University Housing 

move-in experience with more than 550 students, staff, and faculty volunteering to help our 
new students with their transition to NKU. 

 
• Student Affairs developed an Ask Me Campaign in which faculty and staff volunteered 

during the first week of classes to be stationed outdoors throughout campus to answer 
questions and provide directions. 

 
• The Division of Student Affairs coordinated a highly successful Victorfest, the University’s 

Welcome Week for new and returning students. Students participated in a wide variety of 
events and programs designed to assist with their academic and personal transition to NKU. 
FreshFusion introduced new students to some of the 200-plus student organizations at NKU 
and it was a huge hit with more than 3,000 students in attendance.  

• NKU continues to be recognized for its success in maintaining a safe campus for students, 
faculty/staff, alumni, and visitors.  Most recently, ASecureLife.com recognized NKU as one 
of the most secure college campuses in the U.S.  In addition to the most recent ranking, we 
have been recognized as one of the Safest College Campuses in America by the National 
Council for Home Safety and Security in 2018, among the Safest College Towns in America 
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Board of Regents 
September 11, 2019 

 
 

by Safewise in 2017, and one of the Safest Colleges in Kentucky by Backgroundchecks.org, 
in 2016. 
 

• As part of our on-going efforts through the Division of Student Affairs Norse Violence 
Prevention Program, with the assistance of Facilities Management, a new office was created 
to expand programs and services.  A ribbon cutting ceremony was held on Monday to 
celebrate the efforts of the Norse Violence Prevention Program and the new office suite 
located in the Albright Health Center.   

• You may remember my earlier announcement that we received a three-year grant of nearly 
$300,000 from the Office of Violence against Women – Campus Grant to continue the 
university’s efforts to reduce sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking 
on campus.  With this grant, we are able to hire a full-time project coordinator/prevention 
specialist, hire a part-time advocate to expand our direct service capacity, expand our 
prevention efforts with African American, Latino, and international students, and provide 
trauma-informed yoga for survivors of sexual assault. 

 
• The Division of Student Affairs continues to award Child Care Access Means Parents in 

School Program grant resources in the amount of approximately $170,000 to help low-
income parents with campus-based childcare services.  Currently 15 student parents, 
representing 17 children, are receiving the grant during the Fall 2019 semester. 

 
• Student Affairs continues to make significant progress on the Five-Year Housing 

Revitalization Plan, investing $2,400,000 in Commonwealth Hall, including replacing 
HVAC, flooring, common room furniture, mattresses, and painting stairwells.  Life safety 
was also part of the plan, including repairing the emergency electrical switch, repairing the 
fire suppression system, and repairing the generator. The project was completed on time and 
approximately $400,000 under budget. 

 
Administration and Finance Updates 
• In April, IT conducted some student satisfactions surveys for the Norse Tech Bar. The results 

were overwhelmingly positive.  They received 307 responses and had a 99% positive 
satisfaction rating related to the service they provided. 

 
• IT replaced 800 handsets with new Cisco handsets across campus. This allows NKU to be on 

a more stable digital platform at a lower cost to the university going forward.  It also removes 
a major risk for the university due to aging technology. 

 
• A total of 642 computers on campus were replaced during the last fiscal year. Student 

success will be positively impacted due to the focus on upgrading computer labs - including 
our virtual labs.  With the computer redeployment program, over 120 functional computers 
were reused for lower compute workloads which resulted in saving to the university of over 
$100,000. 
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• In August, the rating agency Standard & Poor’s (S&P) issued a ratings report on NKU 
affirming our A/Stable rating.  In the report, it was noted that our financial profile is strong 
and that our solid balance sheet resources provide some financial flexibility. 

 
• An RFP for professional services related to an update of the campus Master Plan was issued 

in June. Proposals have been received and reviewed by the selection committee. Interviews 
with short-listed firms occurred in late August. A Master Plan Steering Committee will be 
appointed soon to oversee a collaborative campus planning process. The Master Plan effort is 
expected to focus on land use/site planning, space utilization and space needs, student life, 
community integration, transportation/parking, and infrastructure and utility planning. The 
engagement phase of the Master Plan process is expected to continue through the 2019-2020 
academic year. The Master Plan and supporting documentation and plans will be complete by 
early Fall 2020. 

• An RFP for a long-term strategic partner for banking depository, student ID card, 
procurement card and other financial services was issued in early August. Proposals are 
expected to be received in early September with services awarded in late September or early 
October.  We are looking for strategic partners to work with us on delivering on our goal of 
student success aligned with the needs of the region. Potential opportunities for partnership 
include financial literacy, scholarships, paid internships, and sponsorships.  New contracts 
are expected to be in place by Spring 2020. 

Pension Update 
On August 23, we held a pension open forum with guest speakers from KERS who answered 
questions from the staff.  
 
• We have met with employees in IT recently to discuss pension and plan to hold several 

meetings this semester. 
 
• We are in the process of scheduling a separate meeting for each of the tiers and a meeting on 

defined-contribution pensions that TIAA will present. 
 
• And we have sent in our request for NKU’s liability to KERS. 
 
• This is still challenging for all of us, but we are keeping a close eye on this and will assess 

information coming out of Frankfort when the session opens. 
 
• We are working on issuing an RFP with other Universities to find a firm that can help the 

campuses assess liability and other data needed to make a decision about moving forward.  
 
Athletics Updates 
• BriAuna Keys, who presented to the Board of Regents on behalf of athletics last spring, was 

the recipient of the Horizon League’s Cecil N. Coleman Medal of Honor, which is given 
annually to one senior student-athlete who has demonstrated outstanding achievement in 
academics, athletics and extracurricular activities. BriAuna was also the Horizon League’s 
nominee for the NCAA Woman of the Year Award. 
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• The Horizon League also honored Haley Libs and Cameron Ross with post-graduate 
scholarships. Cameron is working toward an M.S. in Business Informatics, while Haley is 
pursuing a doctoral degree in Occupational Therapy. 

 
• Alec Sandusky won three combined track & field events between the indoor and outdoor 

seasons. 
 
• Norse student-athletes posted their best academic year ever. Following a department record 

3.47 cumulative GPA in the fall, they posted a 3.39 in the spring. 
 
• Purdue Fort Wayne will join the Horizon League for the 2020-2021 academic year. 
 
Staff Emeritus 
• Lenore Chambers has been granted staff emeritus status effective July 1, 2019. In her 25 

years at NKU, Lenore served as Assistant to the President Emeritus and Assistant to the 
Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs. 

 
The Staff Emeritus appointment honors and recognizes eligible members of the university’s 
staff for considerable meritorious service to Northern Kentucky University. 
 
Staff Emeritus rank is awarded to staff member upon retirement who have provided 
distinguished service to NKU and have met NKU retirement eligibility. 
 
Congratulations, Lenore. 

 
Chief Diversity Equity and Inclusion Officer (CDO) and Title IX Coordinator 
After careful thought and deliberation, we have redesigned the position of Special Advisor to the 
President for Inclusive Excellence into the position of Chief Diversity Equity and Inclusion 
Officer (CDO) and Title IX Coordinator. This individual will report directly to me and will help 
align and oversee campus-wide diversity, equity and inclusion efforts to enhance the overall 
student experience and foster an inclusive, welcoming and engaging campus climate. In addition 
this individual will coordinate Title IX investigations and compliance. 
 
The search for this position is underway with Ande Durojaiye serving as the chair of the search 
committee.  
 
Chair Scheben and members of the Board, that concludes my remarks for today’s meeting.  
 
B.  Presidential Reports: 
 
1.  Facilities Management Report (Interim Vice President Administration & Finance/CFO 
Mike Hales). 
 

a. Master Plan 
b. Energy Savings Performance Contract 
c. Elevator Improvements (Lucas Administrative Center) 
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d. Flooring/Public Furniture Replacement 
e. Student Union Food Service/Pizza Renovation 
f. Kenton Garage Restoration 
g. Commonwealth Hall Renovation 
h. Soccer Stadium Turf Replacement 
i. New Residence Hall 
j. US 27 Development 
k. UK College of Medicine – Northern Kentucky Campus 

 
2.  Research, Grants, and Contracts Report (April 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019) (Provost 
and Executive Vice President Sue Ott Rowlands). 
 
During the April 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019 time period 24 grants were awarded. The 
total amount of money awarded was $2,730,480.  For the fiscal year 2018 – 2019 the cumulative 
total number of grants awarded is 93 totaling $7,469,944. 
 
3.  Fundraising Report (July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2019 through July 
31, 2019) (Vice President Eric Gentry). 
 
The Fundraising Report summarized fundraising resources committed from July 1, 2018 through 
June 30, 2019 totaling $6,754,681 and for the period July 1, 2019 through July 31, 2019 totaling 
in support of the university. 
 
4.  Organizational Changes Report (Interim Vice President Administration & Finance/CFO 
Mike Hales). 
 
Administration & Finance 
There have been various changes in Facilities Management to make reporting structures more 
efficient and effective. 
 

New Org Units - created to support various reporting structure changes 
• Floor Care 
• Sustainability & Utilities 
• O&M Administrative Services 
• Data, Access & Work Control Systems 
• Planning, Design and Construction – combined Campus & Space Planning and 

Architect, Design and Construction Management 
 

Student Affairs 
New Org Unit – Title IX – To create its own org unit instead of being part of the VP of 
Student Affairs department. 
 
President’s Office 
New Org Unit – Strategic Planning and Implementation – This org unit was created 
for the new Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer tasked with campus-wide 
oversight and execution of our Success by Design strategic framework. The org unit of 
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Planning & Institutional Research will report into this new org unit. 
 
5.  Policies Report (Provost and Executive Vice President Sue Ott Rowlands and Vice President 
for Legal Affairs/General Counsel Joan Gates). 
 
The Policies Report summarized all policies that were approved at the executive-level after 
proceeding through the campus vetting process. The President and other university 
administrators determined that approval of these policies by the Board of Regents was not 
needed per the criteria established in Presidential Recommendation C-7 of the January 2015 
regular meeting. 
 
C.  Presidential Recommendations: 
 
Consent Agenda Items:  A motion was made by Regent Normand Desmarais and seconded by 
Regent David Bauer to approve the Presidential Recommendations as listed; C-1 through C-12.  
(Motion carried) 
 
1. Academic Affairs Personnel Actions: 

 
a. Administrative Appointments:  

 
Dr. James Allen, associate professor and interim dean of the College of Education, effective 
July 1, 2019; Ms. Kelly DeLong, professor of practice and executive director of the Kentucky 
Center for Mathematics, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 15, 2019; Ms. Andrea 
Falcone, dean of the W. Frank Steely Library, effective July 15, 2019; Dr. Hassan 
HassabElnaby, dean of the Haile/US Bank College of Business, effective July 15, 2019; Dr. 
Ashley Vaughn, assistant professor of practice and associate director of CINSAM, College 
of Arts and Sciences, effective July 1, 2019. 

b. Faculty Appointments: 
 

Dr. Marybeth Baribeau, lecturer in the School of Nursing, College of Health and Human 
Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Meghan Bennett, assistant professor in the School 
of the Arts, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Cristiane Biazzin, 
assistant professor in the Department of Management, Haile/US Bank College of Business, 
effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Susan Brudvig, assistant professor in the Department of 
Business Informatics, College of Informatics, effective August 12, 2019; Ms. Krista Burton, 
assistant professor and director of Student Success Initiatives, Salmon P. Chase College of 
Law, effective January 1, 2019; Dr. David Cain, lecturer in the Department of Physics, 
Geology and Engineering Technology, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 
2019; Dr. Rachael Clark, academic advisor and lecturer in the Department of Psychological 
Sciences, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Dilupama Divaratne, 
academic advisor and lecturer in the Department of Physics, Geology, and Engineering 
Technology, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 15, 2019; Dr. Jarrod Druery, 
assistant professor in the College of Education, effective August 12, 2019; Ms. Rhea Floyd, 
experiential learning coordinator and lecturer in the Department of Political Science, Criminal 
Justice and Organization Leadership, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 1, 2019; 
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Ms. Ashley Galinger, lecturer in Norse Advising, Undergraduate Academic Affairs, effective 
July 1, 2019; Ms. Erin Gardlik, lecturer in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Judi Godsey, assistant professor and 
director of the Northern Kentucky Nursing and Interprofessional Research Collaborative in 
the School of Nursing, College of Health and Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; 
Mr. Brian Jaynes, associate director of professional education and lecturer in the Center for 
Applied Informatics, College of Informatics, effective July 1, 2019; Ms. Carolyn Kallmeyer, 
clinical assistant professor in the School of Nursing, College of Health and Human Services, 
effective August 12, 2019; Ms. Marla Lemmon, lecturer in the Department of Mathematics 
and Statistics, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019; Ms. Jing Liu, 
assistant professor in the Department of Management, Haile/US Bank College of Business, 
effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Lisa Long, clinical assistant professor in the School of 
Nursing, College of Health and Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Yohann 
Mauger, assistant professor in the Department of Management, Haile/US Bank College of 
Business, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Dekuwmini Mornah, assistant professor in the 
Department of Management, Haile/US Bank College of Business, effective January 6, 2020; 
Dr. Souren Paul, professor and chair, Business Informatics, College of Informatics, effective 
July 1, 2019; Mr. Nick Pflum, lecturer in Norse Advising, Undergraduate Academic Affairs, 
effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Amal Said, associate professor with tenure in the Department of 
Accounting & Business Law, Haile/US Bank College of Business, effective August 12, 2019; 
Ms. Brittany Sorrell, assistant professor in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Kayla Steltenkamp, lecturer of special 
education in the College of Education, effective August 12, 2019; Mr. James Taylor, lecturer 
in the School of Social Work, College of Health and Human Services, effective August 12, 
2019; Ms. Alicia West, clinical assistant professor in the School of Allied Health, College of 
Health and Human Services, effective August 12, 2019. 
 
c. Transitions: 

 
Dr. Judy Audas, from clinical professor to associate director in the School of Nursing, 
College of Health and Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Ginger Blackwell, from 
lecturer and interim assistant chair in the Department of Teacher Education to clinical 
associate professor in the College of Education, effective August 12, 2019; Prof. Carol 
Bredemeyer, from professor of law library services and interim director of the Salmon P. 
Chase Law Library to director of the law library, effective August 5, 2019; Dr. Brooke 
Buckley, from associate professor and interim chair to associate professor and chair of the 
Department of Mathematics and Statistics, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 1, 
2019; Dr. Steven Crites, from associate professor, acting associate dean, and co-interim chair 
in the Department of Teacher Education to associate professor and associate dean in the 
College of Education, effective July 1, 2019; Ms. Rebecca Hamm, from director of advising 
and lecturer to assistant dean for undergraduate students and lecturer in the Informatics 
Advising Center, College of Informatics, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Daryl Harris, from 
temporary part-time tenured associate professor to full-time tenured associate professor in the 
School of the Arts, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Vanessa 
Hunn, from interim chair in Department of Counseling, Social Work and Leadership to 
associate professor and interim director in the School of Social Work, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Aimee Krug, from associate professor to part-
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time tenured associate professor in the Department of Mathematics and Statistics, College of 
Arts and Sciences, beginning Spring 2020 and ending at the conclusion of Spring 2021; Dr. 
Alar Lipping, from professor and interim dean in the College of Education and Human 
Services to professor and interim director in the School of Kinesiology, Counseling and 
Rehabilitative Sciences, College of Health and Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. 
Cecile Marczinski, from professor to professor and chair in the Department of Psychological 
Sciences, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 1, 2019; Dr. Carrie McCoy, from 
professor to part-time tenured professor in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Dan McGee, from professor and Director of 
the Kentucky Center for Mathematics to professor in the Department of Mathematics and 
Statistics, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 1, 2018; Dr. Lewatis McNeal, from 
clinical associate professor and assistant dean to clinical associate professor and associate 
dean in the College of Education, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. John Metz, from associate 
professor to part-time tenured associate professor in the Department of History and 
Geography, College of Arts and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Kesha Nelson, 
from associate professor to part-time tenured associate professor in the School of Nursing, 
College of Health and Human Services, beginning fall semester 2019 and ending at the 
conclusion of spring semester 2020; Dr. Karen O’Connell, from assistant professor to 
assistant professor and associate director in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. William Terry Ray, from clinical professor and 
program director to clinical director in the School of School of Nursing, College of Health 
and Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Erin Robinson, from associate professor to 
associate professor and associate director in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective August 12, 2019; Dr. Sara Runge, from associate professor and 
co-interim chair in the Department of Teacher Education to associate professor in the College 
of Education, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. KC Russell, from professor to professor and interim 
chair in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry, College of Arts and Sciences, 
effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Jeff Smith, from professor and chair to professor in the 
Department of Psychological Science, College of Arts and Sciences, effective July 1, 2019; 
Ms. Julie Stockman, from director of corporate engagement, lecturer and interim assistant 
dean to director of corporate and employer engagement and lecturer in the Center for Applied 
Informatics, College of Informatics, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Gannon Tagher, from 
associate professor and chair in the Department of Nursing to associate professor and 
associate dean and chief nurse administrator in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective May 1, 2019 and July 1, 2019 respectively; Dr. David Tataw, 
from associate professor to associate professor and interim director in the School of Allied 
Health, College of Health and Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Mrs. Lynn Warner, 
from library informatics advisor/recruiter to instructional services librarian, W. Frank Steely 
Library, effective July 1, 2019; Mr. Robert Zai, from interim dean to associate dean, W. 
Frank Steely Library, effective July 15, 2019; Dr. Lynne Zajac, from associate professor to 
associate professor and interim director in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 
Human Services, effective July 1, 2019; Dr. Xiaoni Zhang, from professor and interim chair 
to professor in the Department of Business Informatics, College of Informatics, effective July 
1, 2019. 
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d.  Retirements: 
 
Mrs. Nancy Jentsch, senior lecturer in the Department of World Languages and Literatures, 
College of Arts and Sciences, effective May 31, 2020; Mr. Thomas McGovern, professor in 
the School of the Arts, effective July 1, 2019; Ms. Elizabeth McMillian-McCartney, senior 
lecturer in Learning PLUS, Undergraduate Academic Affairs, effective August 18, 2019; Mr. 
Wiley Piazza, lecturer II in the School of Kinesiology, Counseling, and Rehabilitative 
Sciences, College of Health and Human Services, effective August 1, 2019; Dr. Rosa 
Weaver, lecturer of educational leadership in the College of Education, effective August 2, 
2019; Prof. Michael Whiteman, Professor of Law and Director of the NKU Salmon P. Chase 
Law Library, effective August 2, 2019; Mr. Harold Wiebe, associate professor in the 
Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, College of Arts and Sciences, 
effective August 18, 2019; Dr. Paul Wirtz, associate professor of educational leadership in 
the College of Education, effective June 1, 2019; Ms. Wendy Wood, associate professor in 
the W. Frank Steely Library, effective August 31, 2019. 
 
e.  Departures: 
 
Dr. Tracey Adams, associate professor in the Department of Nursing, College of Health 
Professions, effective May 24, 2019; Ms. Melody Dilts, Faculty member in Learning Plus, 
effective May 31, 2019; Ms. Martha Ferguson, Lecturer in Learning Plus, Undergraduate 
Academic Affairs, effective May 31, 2019; Ms. Jill Henry, executive director and lecturer in 
the Center for Applied Informatics, College of Informatics, effective June 30, 2019; Ms. 
Vickie Knueven, Faculty member in Learning Plus, effective May 22, 2019; Dr. Mark 
Lancaster, assistant professor in the Department of Mathematics and Statistics, College of 
Arts and Sciences, effective May 31, 2019; Mr. Timothy McCord, lecturer in the 
Department of Computer Science, College of Informatics, effective August 1, 2019; Mr. 
William Charles Slaven, professor of practice in the Department of Business Informatics, 
College of Informatics, effective June 30, 2019. 
 
f.  Temporary Faculty Appointments: 
 
Mr. Steven Castellano, Department of Biological Sciences, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Dr. Eric Hugo, Department of Biological Sciences, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Dr. Marcus Eilers, Department of Chemistry, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; 
Dr. Beatriz Russell, Department of Chemistry, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. 
Kristina Bielewicz, CINSAM, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Amber Carter, 
CINSAM, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Kristi Brock, Department of English, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Lindsey Caldwell-Thomas; Department of 
English, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Megan Henson; Department of English, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Stephen Leigh, Department of English, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Natalie Williams, Department of English, effective 2019-
2020 Academic Year; Dr. Mary Bucklin, Department of History and Geography, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Joseph Lombardi, Department of History and Geography, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Kathleen Quinn, Department of History and 
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Geography, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Rachel Zlatkin, Honors/Integrative 
Studies, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Chrystal Culbertson, Department of 
Mathematics and Statistics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Barbara Phillips, 
Department of Mathematics and Statistics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Laura 
Urbanski, Department of Mathematics and Statistics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; 
Dr. Joy Burdette, Department of Music, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Richard 
Van Dyke, Department of Music, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Cara Leanne 
Wood, Department of Music, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. John Zappa, 
Department of Music, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Reuben Bullard, CINSAM, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Jeremy Huber, Department of Physics, Geology 
and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Mohsen Keshtvarz, 
Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Mr. Roger Miller, Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Julie Reizner, Department of Physics, Geology 
and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Souvik Sarkar, 
Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Mr. Kavindya, Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, 
effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Rachel Thornton, Department of Physics, Geology 
and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Yong Xue, 
Department of Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Mr. Jason Farkas, Department of Political Science, Criminal Justice and 
Organizational Leadership, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Jeffrey Girton, 
Department of Political Science, Criminal Justice and Organizational Leadership, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Paul Bishop, Department of Psychological Science, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Smita Ward, Department of Psychological Science, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Gary Blahnik, Department of Sociology, Anthropology and 
Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Robert Greenleaf Brice, Department 
of Sociology, Anthropology and Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Nicole 
Grant, Department of Sociology, Anthropology and Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 
Academic Year; Ms. Denise Knisely, Department of Sociology, Anthropology and 
Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Michael Simonton, Department of 
Sociology, Anthropology and Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Kristina 
Vise, Department of Sociology, Anthropology and Philosophy, effective 2019-2020 
Academic Year; Ms. Christine Jones, Department of Theatre and Dance, effective 2019-
2020 Academic Year; Mr. Charles Roetting, Department of Theatre and Dance, effective 
2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Earl Plowman, Department of Visual Arts, effective 2019-
2020 Academic Year; Ms. Julia Sebastian, Department of Visual Arts, effective 2019-2020 
Academic Year; Ms. Sandra Bazzani-Aronne, Department of World Languages and 
Literatures, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Andrea Fieler, Department of World 
Languages and Literatures, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. Iliana Rosales 
Figueroa, Department of World Languages and Literatures, effective 2019-2020 Academic 
Year; Ms. Jennifer Hunter, School of Nursing, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. 
Allison Schmidt, School of Social Work, effective 2019-2020 Fiscal Year; Dr. April Eddie, 
Educational Leadership, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Christopher Polito, Law 
School Instruction, effective 2019-2020 Fiscal Year; Mr. Anthony Burk, Department of 
Business Informatics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. Susan Thomas, Department 
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of Business Informatics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Matthew Zachary Otey, 
Department of Business Informatics, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Mr. Jesse 
Hockenbury, Center for Applied Informatics, effective 2019-2020 Fiscal Year; Dr. Abdul-
Aziz Bahha, Department of Computer Science, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Dr. 
David R. Brandt, Department of Communications, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; Ms. 
Michelle Crowley, Department of Communications, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; 
Ms. Lori Wheeler, Department of Communications, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year; 
Mr. Aaron Zlatkin, Department of Communications, effective 2019-2020 Academic Year. 
 

2.  Non-Academic Personnel Actions: 

The following categories of non-academic personnel actions which occurred between April 9, 
2019 and August 12, 2019 received approval by the Board of Regents:  Activations/Rehires; 
Reassignments, Reclassifications, Title/Status Changes, Promotions; Transfers; 
Contract/Temporary/Student to Regular & Regular to Contract; Departures; Retirements; 
Administrative/Executive. 

 
3.  Major Gifts Acceptance: 

 
The Board of Regents accepted contributions totaling $1,942,846.36 received by 
the NKU Foundation Inc. for the benefit of Northern Kentucky University during the period 
April 1, 2019 through July 31, 2019. 
 

4.  Naming Recommendations: 
 

The Board of Regents approved the following naming action: 
 

1. The naming of a scholarship to support students in the College of Informatics. “Virginia 
and Victor Fox College of Informatics Excellence Fund”. 

2. The naming of a scholarship to support students studying the natural sciences giving 
preference to Latino/Hispanic students. “Betsy Mitchell Diversity Scholarship for the 
Sciences”. 

3. The naming of a scholarship to support students enrolled in Chase College of Law who 
demonstrate high academic promise and financial need, with a preference for students of 
Appalachian descent. “Kelly, Sr., and Lottie Farrish of Breathitt County, Kentucky, 
Endowed Scholarship”.  

4. The naming of a scholarship to support students enrolled in Chase College of Law who 
demonstrate high academic promise. “Ralph P. Ginocchio Endowed Scholarship”. 

 
5.  Faculty Emeritus Status (Ragsdale, Rankin): 
 

Emeritus status for the following individuals received Board of Regents approval:   
 

Dr. Gaut Ragsdale, professor in the Department of Communication, College of Informatics, 
effective January 1, 2019; Dr. Steve Rankin, associate professor in the Department of 
Mathematics and Statistics, College of Arts and Sciences, effective May 15, 2019. 
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6.  Deletion of NKU Center for Applied Informatics: 
 

The Board of Regents approved the deletion of the NKU Center for Applied Informatics. 
 
7.  Faculty Handbook Update: 
 

The annual update to the Faculty Policies and Procedures Handbook for the 2019- 
20 year received Board of Regents approval. 

 
8.  Faculty Handbook Amendment (Consensual Relationships): 
 

The amendment to the Faculty Policies and Procedures Handbook, regarding consensual 
relationships, received Board of Regents approval. 

 
9.  Americans With Disabilities Act Accommodation Policy: 
 

The Board of Regents approved the Americans With Disabilities Act Accommodation policy. 
 
10.  HIV Infection – Employees Policy: 
 

The Board of Regents approved the HIV Infection - Employees policy. 
 
11.  Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Policy: 
 

The Board of Regents approved the Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination policy. 
 
12.  Staff Emeritus Status (Chambers): 
 

Staff Emeritus status for the following individual received Board of Regents approval.  
 

Lenore Chambers, assistant to the President Emeritus in the Doctorate of Education 
Program, College of Education, effective July 1, 2019. 
 

A motion was made by Regent Gregory Shumate and seconded by Regent Normand Desmarais 
to approve the Presidential Recommendation C-13.  (Motion carried) 

 
13.  Housing/Parking Bond Authorization: 
 

The Board of Regents adopted the Resolution which provides for the authorization, 
sale and issuance of approximately $39,575,000 in General Receipts Obligations of 
Northern Kentucky University for the purpose of (i) financing the costs of constructing a 
new residence hall, renovating existing residence halls, constructing a parking lot and 
renewing a parking garage; (ii) paying capitalized interest during construction of the 
projects; and (iii) paying costs of issuance in connection with the Northern Kentucky 
University General Receipts Bonds, 2019 Series A. 
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D.   Executive Session: 
 

Regent Jarett Lopez seconded Regent W. Lee Scheben’s motion to enter into executive 
session pursuant to KRS 61.810(1) (c) and (f). (Motion carried) 

 
Regent W. Lee Scheben called the meeting back into session.  Regent W. Lee Scheben made the 
following motion, “Due to the contributions made by the President in his first year, I move that 
the Board approve that the President receives his full target bonus in accordance with the terms 
of the President’s employment contract”.  Regent Jarett Lopez seconded his motion.  All Regents 
approved the motion. (Motion carried) 
 
At 2:27 p.m., Regent Gregory Shumate seconded Regent Terry Mann’s motion to adjourn. 
(Motion carried) 
 
 
___      Signature On File              Signature On File_______________ 
Wendy J. Peek    Bonita J. Brown     
Senior Administrative Assistant Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer  
Office of the President Secretary to the Board of Regents  
 
 
 
 
  
 
I, Normand Desmarais, Secretary of the Board of Regents of Northern Kentucky University, 
certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the minutes of the regular meeting held on September 
11, 2019, and that such matters are still in force and effect. 
 
        Signature On File__________ 

Normand Desmarais 
      Secretary of the Board of Regents 
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Presidential Report:  B-1 

 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

       

1. Master Plan 

 

Ayers Saint Gross of Washington, D.C. will be leading the update of the campus master plan. 

The Master Plan Steering Committee will oversee a collaborative campus planning process 

focused on land use/site planning, space utilization and space needs, student life, community 

integration, transportation/parking, and infrastructure including utility planning.  Built on 

consensus through engagement and collaboration, the Campus Master Plan will articulate the 

physical goals and aspirations of the University’s mission and strategic plan. 

 

The campus engagement phase of the Master Plan process begins this month and will 

continue through the 2019-2020 academic year. The Master Plan together with its supporting 

documentation and plans is scheduled to be complete by early fall 2020. 

 

2. Energy Savings Performance Contract 

 

Background:   

 

In September 2016, an RFP was issued to select an ESCO (Energy Savings Contractor) to 

serve as a partner on a potential Energy Savings Performance Contract (ESPC).  CMTA 

Energy Solutions was selected and completed a comprehensive technical energy audit in May 

2017.  Based on opportunities identified in the audit, CMTA evaluated and estimated the cost 

of various energy cost saving measures, or ECM’s. Contracts for this project were signed in 

late 2018.  Bank of America financed the ESPC and avoided electric costs will fund lease 

payments.   

 

Status:   

 

Work is underway across campus. Lighting in the main utility tunnel and in Landrum Annex 

(Central Receiving and Copy Center space) has been upgraded to LED. In Landrum, an 

obsolete standalone HVAC unit was removed and new VAV boxes installed.  LED lighting 

upgrade is about 85% complete. Science Center fume hood upgrade is about 80% complete 

and Lucas Administrative Center HVAC upgrade is about 90% complete.  The project is 

expected to be complete by the end of April 2020. 

 

Engineer:  CMTA Energy Solutions 

Estimated Scope:  $4,100,000  

Fund Source:  Guaranteed Energy Savings 

Anticipated Completion:  April 2020 
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3. Elevator Improvements (Lucas Administrative Center)  

 

The elevators in Lucas Administrative Center require control and mechanical modifications 

to ensure reliability and safe operation.  The electrical and mechanical components are worn 

and misaligned, resulting in intermittent malfunctions and downtime. Both elevators are 

scheduled to be modernized and upgraded to improve safety and performance. Pedco E&A 

Services prepared bid documents and ThyssenKrupp will perform installation. One elevator 

will remain out of service throughout the construction period. Project planning and review 

continues. On-site work will begin in the late winter to early spring timeframe. Completion is 

anticipated in spring 2021.   

 

Engineer: Pedco E&A Services 

Contractor: ThyssenKrupp 

Scope:  $610,000  

Fund Source: Deferred Maintenance Project Pool 

Anticipated Completion:  Spring 2021   

 

4. Student Union Food Service / Pizza Renovation 

 

The pizza area in the Student Union food court will be renovated for a Sbarro’s operation.  

Renovation includes some new cabinetry, electrical and plumbing changes, and food service 

equipment. The renovation will occur during the break between fall and spring semesters. 

Sbarro’s is scheduled to open for full operation at the start of the spring semester. 

 

Architect: necto architecture 

Engineer: KLH Engineers 

Contractor: TBD 

Scope:  $175,000  

Fund Source: Auxiliary – Food Service Revenue 

Anticipated Completion:  January 2020 

 

5. Softball Field Turf Replacement 

 

The grass turf on the softball field is in poor condition and is in need of replacement.  

Drainage is inadequate, the field is not level, and a new irrigation system is needed. Some 

minor structural repair to the dugouts is also needed.  Design work is underway, with a goal 

to bid the project this fall.  Most of the construction work will occur in spring 2020. 

 

Engineer: Kleingers Sports Works Field Design 

Contractor: TBD 

Scope:  $300,000 

Fund Source: Net Position – Non-Recurring Investment 

Anticipated Completion:  August 2020 

 

  

24



6. Landrum Hall Switchgear Replacement 

 

Switchgear equipment connects the building electric system to the campus electrical loop and 

distributes electric power coming into a building to the numerous internal electrical systems.  

Landrum’s switchgear is at the end of its useful life. Replacement, which requires a total 

shutdown of power to the building, is anticipated to occur during holiday break, beginning 

December 21st, 2019 through Sunday, January 5th, 2020.  Final inspections and project 

closeout is anticipated in spring 2020. 

  

Engineer: KZF 

Contractor: TBD 

Estimated Scope:  $170,000 

Fund Source: Deferred Maintenance Project Pool 

Anticipated Completion: Spring 2020 

 

7. New Residence Hall 

 

A design team of Moody Nolan (MN) architects, a nationally recognized firm with offices in 

Covington, Kentucky and Columbus, Ohio and Lord Aeck Sargent (LAS) of Lexington, 

Kentucky and Atlanta, is designing a new student residential facility.  A significant part of 

LAS’ higher education practice is the planning and design of student residential facilities. 

Messer Construction will serve as construction manager for this project. 

 

The building will be located on the front (south) section of Lot F. It will include 297 semi-

suite style beds featuring two double-occupancy bedrooms sharing one private shower room, 

one private toilet room, and two sinks. The building will include ample communal gathering 

and study space to foster student engagement. 

 

Construction is anticipated to begin in spring 2020. The project is scheduled for completion 

by July 2021.  

 

Architect of Record:  Moody/Nolan 

Student Life/Interior Design Consultant: Lord Aeck Sargent 

Engineers:  CMTA, THP, The Kleingers Group, Geotechnology, Inc.  

Landscape Architect: Vivian Llambi & Associates 

Construction Manager:  Messer Construction 

Scope:  Approx. $23.6M 

Fund Source: NKU Bonds – Supported by Housing Revenue  

Anticipated Completion: Summer 2021 
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New Residence Hall - Continued 

 
 

Proposed Semi-Suite Layout 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
New Residence Hall Site Plan 
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8. US 27 Development 

 
Fairmount Properties continues due diligence and planning for the US 27 Development.  The 

project will be a mixed-use development with a pedestrian-friendly, ground floor street 

presence.  Phase One is a 65,000 square foot office building and associated parking garage 

on the north side of the Nunn Drive intersection for St. Elizabeth Healthcare and OrthoCincy.   

 

Phase Two, on the south side of Nunn Drive, will be a mixed-use development of 30-38,000 

square feet of full-service and casual restaurant and retail tenants; a 110 room hotel; 75-150 

market rate apartments; parking; and, potentially, office space. If offices space is included, 

fewer apartments would be built. 

 

Retail uses will result in a safe, active pedestrian experience complete with al fresco dining 

on patios, sidewalk amenities, public art installations and an urban environment that 

embraces the notion of a unique street experience.  

 

The State TIF (Tax Increment Financing) application has been reviewed and an award of 

$14.2M was expected to receive final approval in October.  State and local TIF funds are 

needed to help with the cost of structured parking and other infrastructure development. OKI 

has also approved an $861,704 STP/SNK Transit infrastructure support grant for the project.  

Funds allocated through two federal programs, the Surface Transportation Block Grant 

program and the Transportation Alternatives program, will be spent on road, transit and 

pathway improvements benefitting the project. Fairmount will match the grant funds with 

$369,302 in project funds. 

 

Phase I Progress - North side of Nunn Drive: 

 Danis Construction is the construction manager.  

 Exterior finishes for the office building are nearly complete and interior construction 

is progressing well. 

 Construction of the garage is progressing. 

 The building is expected to open in Spring 2020. 

 

Phase II Progress - South side of Nunn Drive: 

 Fairmount continues to have discussions with potential hoteliers and retailers. 

 Master Planning is underway to incorporate design for both sides of Nunn Drive, to 

ensure a look that is consistent with the objective of creating a new campus gateway. 

 Ground Lease negotiations with Fairmount are ongoing. 
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US 27 Development – Continued 

 

 
Main Entrance Site Grading – October 10, 2019 

 

 
St. Elizabeth Medical Office Building Rendering, View from US 27 and Nunn Drive 
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Presidential Report:  B-2 

OFFICE OF RESEARCH, GRANTS, AND CONTRACTS REPORT 

 

The attached report lists the grants awarded, with the amount awarded for each grant, for NKU 

faculty and staff for July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019, for Fiscal Year 2019-20: 

  

 During the July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019 time period 26 grants were awarded. 

The total amount of money awarded was $5,424,873. 

 

 For the fiscal year 2019-20 the cumulative total number of grants awarded is 26 totaling 

$5,424,873. 
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Category Type College/Administrative Office Project Title Sponsor  Sponsor Total 

Department

Chase College of Law

Public 

Service

Continuation Career Development Legal Services to the Poor 

and for the Administration 

of Justice

KY IOLTA Fund $10,000 

College of Arts & Sciences

Applied 

Research

New Biological Sciences Strategic Depaving: 

Community-led Green 

Infrastructure Design for 

Urban Water Resilience

Campbell County 

Conservation District

$1,500 

Applied 

Research

New Biological Sciences Greater Cincinnati 

Pollinator Habitat Initiative

Duke Energy $10,000 

Basic 

Research

Continuation Physics, Geology and Engineering 

Technoloogy

ISS-Cream - Extension National Aeronautics 

and Space 

Administration

$151,657 

Basic 

Research

New Mathematics & Statistics STEM Ready: A 

Mathematics Preparation 

Program at Northern 

Kentucky University

National Science 

Foundation

$299,943 

Institutional 

Support

New World Languages and Literatures NKU Campus Weeks 2019 - 

Wunderbar Together

Federal Republic of 

Germany

$5,515 

College of Education and Human Services

Instruction Continuation COEHS Dean's Office Minority Educator 

Recruitment and Retention 

(MERR) FY20

Kentucky Department of 

Education

$7,500 

Public 

Service

New Counseling, Social Work and 

Leadership

Public Child Welfare 

Certification Program

Eastern Kentucky 

University - FFT

$12,047 

Public 

Service

New Counseling, Social Work and 

Leadership

University Training 

Consortium

Eastern Kentucky 

University - FFT

$128,407 

Student 

Support

New Student Support Services Student Support Services 

Yr. 5

U.S. Department of 

Education

$391,597 

FY 2019-2020

NKU Office of Research, Grants and  Contracts 

Grants Awarded Funding: July 01, 2019 - Semptember 30, 2019

Enrollment and Degree Management
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Category Type College/Administrative Office Project Title Sponsor  Sponsor Total 

Department

Applied 

Research

New Institute for Health Innovation The Owen County 

Collaborative Addiction 

Treatment Initiative 

(OCCATI): RCORP 

Implementation

Health Resources and 

Services Administration

$1,000,000 

Applied 

Research

New Institute for Health Innovation Northern Kentucky Peer 

Support Specialist Micro-

credential

Health Resources and 

Services Administration

$818,007 

Public 

Service

New Institute for Health Innovation Northern Kentucky Health 

Innovation Initiative (NKY-

HII) - Economic 

Development 

Administration - i6

U.S. Department of 

Commerce

$731,250 

Public 

Service

New Institute for Health Innovation Northern Kentucky Health 

Innovation Initiative 

MATCH DURR (NKY-HII) 

- EDA - i6

Durr Foundation $187,500 

Public 

Service

New Institute for Health Innovation Northern Kentucky Health 

Innovation Initiative 

MATCH ST. E (NKY-HII) - 

EDA - i6

St. Elizabeth's Hospital 

Medical Center

$450,000 

Public 

Service

New Institute for Health Innovation Northern Kentucky Health 

Innovation Initiative 

MATCH GCF (NKY-HII) - 

EDA - i6

Greater Cincinnati 

Foundation

$93,750 

Student 

Support

New Upward Bound Upward Bound 2019-2020 

(Year 1)

U.S. Department of 

Education

$370,747 

Student 

Support

Continuation Assistant VP CCAMPIS Year 3 Deparment of Education - 

Office of Postsecondary 

Education

$154,003 

Health Innovation Center

Student Affairs

Outreach Services
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Category Type College/Administrative Office Project Title Sponsor  Sponsor Total 

Department

Instruction New Scripps Howard Center for Civic 

Engagement

Mayerson Student 

Philanthropy Project 19-20 

(Artswave)

Artswave $10,000 

Instruction New Scripps Howard Center for Civic 

Engagement

Mayerson Student 

Philanthropy Project 

(Mayerson Foundation) 19-

Manuel D. and Rhoda 

Mayerson Foundation

$21,000 

Instruction New Scripps Howard Center for Civic 

Engagement

Scripps Howard 

Communications Internship 

2019

Scripps Howard 

Foundation

$2,000 

Public 

Service

New Kentucky Campus Compact KyCC Host Sites 19-20 Multiple CNCS Partners $28,000 

Public 

Service

New Kentucky Campus Compact KC3 Host Sites 19-20 Multiple CNCS Partners $25,000 

Public 

Service

New Kentucky Campus Compact KHEAA Kentucky College 

Coaches 19-20

Higher Education 

Assistance Authority

$458,450 

Public 

Service

New Kentucky Campus Compact KyCC ATC Sites 19-20 Kentucky Department of 

Education - FFT

$28,000 

Public 

Service

New Kentucky Campus Compact TASK VISTA 2019-2020 Corporation for National 

and Community Service

$29,000 

Total Funds Awarded  $      5,424,873 

26 Total Funds Awarded                   

FY 2019-20

$5,424,873

Total Number of Awards  07/01/2019 - 09/30/2019                            26

Total Number of Awards         

FY 2019-20

Vice Provost for Graduation Education, Research & Outreach
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Presidential Report:  B-3 

FUNDRAISING RESOURCES 

 

The following Fundraising Report summarizes fundraising resources committed from July 1, 

2019 through September 30, 2019 totaling $1,114,101 in support of the university. 

 

The report includes: 

1. Resources in support of the colleges, Academic Affairs and University Designated 

programs, Steely Library, Norse Athletics, Institute for Health Innovation/Health 

Innovation Center, and Student Affairs.  

 

2. Resources for Fiscal Year 2020. 

 

FY20 Fundraising Resources Through 9/30/2019 

Designation 

FY 2020 

at 

9/30/2019  

Academic Affairs/Univ. Designated $   314,932 

Athletics 181,817 

Chase College of Law 163,200 

College of Arts & Sciences 77,388 

College of Education 201,217 

College of Health and Human Services 43,506 

College of Informatics 70,943 

Haile US Bank College of Business 55,400 

Honors College 630 

Institute for Health Innov./Health Innov Ctr. 1,000 

Steely Library 1,320 

Student Affairs 2,748 

Total 1,114,101 
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Presidential Report:  B-4 
 
 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHANGES REPORT 
 
UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT 
 
The recent reorganization of University Advancement staff members allows us to better align positions 
and functions with current strategies for donor and alumni engagement. We are aiming for greater 
collaboration among advancement units to support the Further, Faster campaign. We have combined 
annual giving staff and alumni engagement staff to streamline communication to our alumni and friends, 
coordinate solicitations with engagement opportunities for alumni, and move alumni through a giving 
pipeline. We have combined our operations functions to align stewardship efforts, identification of new 
campaign prospects, dashboard reporting of key campaign progress indicators and gift administration. 
This alignment helps create efficiencies and coordinates our work to help us successfully complete our 
campaign. 
 

Rename Org unit from Campaign Operations & Donor Relations to Advancement Operations 
Rename Org unit from Advancement Operations & Annual Giving to Advancement Services 
Rename Org Unit from Alumni Relations to Alumni Engagement & Annual Giving 
   Create new Org Unit for Annual Giving under Alumni Engagement & Annual Giving 
Rename Org unit from University Development & Alumni Relations to University Development 

                                                    
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
 
In the recent reorganization on campus, Fuel NKU was moved from the College of Education & Human 
Services to the College of Health and Human Services.  Within CHHS, the Fuel NKU Org Unit resides in 
the School of Social Work and holds the NKU employees that work at Fuel NKU and their associated 
cost.  Employees include a part-time Director, several student associates, a graduate assistant, and a 
Program Coordinator.  Fuel NKU’s mission is to enrich the lives of students on campus by providing 
food, nutritional assistance, toiletries, and other useful items in a compassionate, safe, confidential 
environment that respects dignity and facilitates a dialogue among campus and community members in 
regard to hunger. 

 New Org Unit – Fuel NKU – created under the School of Social Work in the College of Health 
& Human Services. 

 
STUDENT AFFAIRS 
 
The Student Government Association org unit will shift from reporting to the “Office of Student 
Conduct, Rights, & Advocacy” to now reporting to the “AVP Student Engagement& Dean of Students”.  
This move is based on primary advisement and budgetary oversight purposes. The AVP for Student 
Engagement and Dean of Students serves as the primary advisor for the Student Government 
Association. The Administrative Assistant for the AVP for Student Engagement and Dean of Students 
also reconciles SGA’s budget, manages procurement responsibilities for SGA, and is the primary point 
person for SGA financial matters. Including the Dean of Students, SGA is traditionally advised by one or 
two other staff or faculty members. Since the Director of Student Conduct, Rights, and Advocacy no 
longer serves as one of three SGA advisors, the organizational unit needs to report long term to the AVP 
for Student Engagement and Dean of Students as this person will remain a constant advisor for the 
organization. 

 
 New Report To Org unit – Student Government moves from reporting to Office of Student 

Conduct, Rights, & Advocacy to AVP Student Engagement & Dean of Students 

34



Northern Kentucky University 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Annual Financial Report 

June 30, 2019 

Presidential Report:  B-5

35



2018-2019  
FINANCIAL REPORT 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

Mr. W. Lee Scheben 
Chair 

Mr. Andra’ R. Ward 
Vice Chair

Mr. Normand Desmarais
Secretary

Dr. Michael Baranowski
Mr. David Bauer 
Mr. Richard Boehne
Ms. Hannah Edelen 
Ms. Ashley F. Himes 
Mr. Terry L. Mann 
Mr. Dennis Repenning 
Mr. Gregory Shumate 

Current as of June 30, 2019 

ADMINISTRATION 

Mr. Ken Bothof 
Athletic Director 

Ms. Joan Gates 
Vice President for Legal Affairs and General Counsel 

Mr. Eric C. Gentry 
Vice President for University Advancement 

Mr. Mike Hales 
Co-Interim Chief Administration Officer/Chief 
Financial Officer 

Dr. Valerie Hardcastle
St. Elizabeth Healthcare Executive Director of the
Institute for Health Innovation and
Vice President for Health Innovation

Dr. Daniel Nadler 
Vice President for Student Affairs 

Dr. Kathleen Roberts 
Senior Advisor to the President for Inclusive 
Excellence 

Ms. Sue Ott Rowlands 
Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic 
Affairs 

Ms. Kim Scranage 
Vice President Enrollment and Degree Management 

Ms. Lori Southwood 
Co-Interim Chief Administration Officer/Chief Human 
Resources Officer 

Mr. Russell Kerdolff 
Comptroller 

36



Table of Contents 

Letter from the President ............................................................................................................................................... 1 

Independent Auditor’s Report ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Financial Statements 

Northern Kentucky University  
Statements of Net Position ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position .......................................................................................... 16 

Northern Kentucky University 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses  
and Changes in Net Position ...................................................................................................................... 17 

Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Activities ....................................................................................................... 18 

Northern Kentucky University  
Statements of Cash Flows .......................................................................................................................... 20 

Northern Kentucky University 
Notes to the Financial Statements ...................................................................................................................... 22 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability ......................................................... 61 

Schedule of University Pension Contributions .................................................................................................. 62 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability............................................................ 63 

Schedule of University OPEB Contributions .................................................................................................... 64 

37



38



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

Board of Regents 
Northern Kentucky University 
Highland Heights, Kentucky 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely 
presented component unit of Northern Kentucky University (University), collectively a component 
unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component 
unit of the University, as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, pension and other post-employment benefits information as 
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  The letter from the president and 
the listing of the members of the Board of Regents and the University’s administration are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

Cincinnati, Ohio 
October 4, 2019 
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Northern Kentucky University 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Northern Kentucky University’s (the University) Management’s Discussion and Analysis of its financial condition 
provides an overview of the financial performance of the University and its affiliated corporations for the years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, with selected comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2017.  This 
discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial 
statements and notes. 

As a public comprehensive university located in a major metropolitan area, the University delivers innovative, 
student-centered education and engages in impactful scholarly and creative endeavors, all of which empower our 
graduates to have fulfilling careers and meaningful lives, while contributing to the economic, civic, and social 
vitality of the region.  

Financial Highlights 

The University’s assets increased by $0.3 million, or 0.1 percent, for the year ended June 30, 2019 and now total 
$540.0 million.  Deferred outflows declined by $27.4 million due to a decrease in pension and other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) deferred outflows.  The University’s liabilities decreased by $11.8 million, or 2.2 
percent, for the year, including a $5.5 million decline in the University’s nonhazardous and hazardous net pension 
and OPEB liabilities which totaled $369.9 million at June 30, 2019.  Deferred inflows increased by $1.5 million for 
the year.  The University’s net position totaled $48.1 million and $64.9 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively.  For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University recognized noncash expenses of $1.3 
million and $2.7 million, respectively, in accordance with the OPEB reporting changes under GASB 75 and noncash 
expenses of $22.4 million and $28.8 million, respectively, in accordance with the pension reporting changes under 
GASB 68 and GASB 71 resulting in noncash expenses totaling $55.2 million for the two year period.  Excluding the 
impact of the pension and OPEB reporting changes, the University’s unrestricted net position would have increased 
by $11.3 million and $11.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.   

The University’s operating and nonoperating revenues totaled $232.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2019, an 
increase of $10.0 million compared to 2018.  Operating revenues increased by $9.3 million for the year ended 
June 30, 2019, including a $9.9 million increase in net tuition resulting from the combined impact of an increase in 
enrollment, particularly in the University’s expanded online programs, and tuition and fee rate increases.   
Nonoperating revenues grew by $0.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2019 primarily due to a $2.2 million 
increase in the University’s state appropriations.  Operating and nonoperating expenses decreased by $3.6 million, 
or 1.4 percent, to a total of $256.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2019, primarily due to a $8.3 million decrease 
in pension and OPEB expenses.  

Construction of the University’s new transformative Health Innovations Center was completed during the summer 
of 2018.  In addition to the $97 million capital appropriation the University received from the state, the University 
also received an $8 million gift commitment from St. Elizabeth Healthcare to help pay for the design and 
construction of a virtual care facility within the Center that helps students simulate medical procedures and 
facilitates transdisciplinary research at the University.  The Center increased the University’s capacity to meet the 
growing demand for graduates in the health professions. 

The University’s state-funded endowments totaled $13.4 million as of June 30, 2019.  These funds, along with the 
private endowed gifts donated to benefit the University, are managed by Northern Kentucky University Foundation, 
Inc. (Foundation).  The endowment funds managed by the Foundation, including the University’s endowment funds, 
totaled $106.2 million at June 30, 2019.  For the five-year period that ended June 30, 2019, the endowment funds 
managed by the Foundation have grown from $95.1 million to $106.2 million as a result of excellent investment 
returns and the receipt of several major endowment gifts.  The growth in endowment funds has provided a 
significant increase in the funds available to support the University’s mission. 
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Using the Financial Statements 

The University’s financial report includes three financial statements: the statement of net position; the statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows. These financial statements and 
accompanying footnotes are prepared in accordance with GASB principles, which establish standards for external 
financial reporting for public colleges and universities and require that financial statements be presented on a 
comprehensive, entity-wide basis to focus on the University as a whole. 

The University is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  The financial statements of the University 
include the University and its blended component unit, the Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation, Inc. 
(Research Foundation).  Financial statements for the University’s discretely presented component unit, Northern 
Kentucky University Foundation, Inc., have also been included in accordance with GASB pronouncements.  Financial 
statements presented for the Foundation consist of the consolidated statement of financial position and the 
consolidated statement of activities.  The statements for Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. (NKUF) are 
prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements. 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position reflects the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2019, with comparative 
information as of June 30, 2018, and includes all assets, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, liabilities and 
net position.  It is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when 
the service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of 
when cash is exchanged.  Net position, consisting of the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, is one indicator of the current financial condition of the University.  
Assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources are generally measured using current values.  A major 
exception is capital assets, which are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. 

A summarized comparison of the University’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position at June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 follows: 

Condensed Statements of Net Position (in thousands) 

2019 2018 2017
ASSETS

Current assets 125,202$     118,758$          109,159$         

Capital assets, net 381,014  388,690      369,470    

Noncurrent assets 33,797    32,269   30,653      

 Total assets 540,013  539,717      509,282    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 43,545    70,980   44,078      

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 38,375    39,765   38,395      

Noncurrent liabilities 483,483  493,918      403,406    

 Total liabilities 521,858  533,683      441,801    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 13,622    12,104   6,045   

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 278,002  280,404      253,064    

Restricted

 Nonexpendable 7,616      7,616     7,616   

   Expendable 2,981      5,076     5,491   

Unrestricted (240,521)      (228,186)     (160,657)   

 Total net position 48,078$       64,910$       105,514$         
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Assets 

The University’s assets increased by $0.3 million, or 0.1 percent, for the year ended June 30, 2019 and now total 
$540.0 million.  Current assets increased by $6.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2019 primarily due to an 
increase in cash generated from operations.  Noncurrent assets decreased by $6.1 million for the year ended June 30, 
2019 primarily due to a $7.7 million decrease in net capital assets which was partially offset by a $1.1 million 
increase in noncurrent cash and cash equivalents earmarked for construction projects and a $0.6 increase in 
investments held in repair and replacement and bond reserve accounts.  

Net capital assets decreased by $7.7 million for the year ended June 30, 2019 and increased by $19.2 million the 
prior year, resulting in a combined increase of $11.5 million, or 3.1 percent, since June 30, 2017.  This increase is 
the net result of an $53.5 million increase in capitalized construction project costs, land improvements, equipment 
and other capital assets, less $42.0 million in depreciation.  Net capital assets totaled $381.0 million, or 70.6 percent 
of total assets as of June 30, 2019.  

Deferred Outflows of Resources  

Deferred outflows of resources totaled $43.5 million and $71.0 million as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  
Deferred outflows of resources related to the University’s defined benefit pension plan, including other post-
employment benefits (OPEB), totaled $40.6 million and $67.7 million as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  
The deferred outflows of resources that represent the unamortized difference between the reacquisition price and the 
net carrying amount of refunded debt totaled $2.9 million and $3.3 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Liabilities 

The University’s liabilities decreased by $11.8 million, or 2.2 percent, for the year ended June 30, 2019.  The $1.4 
million decrease in current liabilities resulted from a $6.1 million decline in accounts payable related to construction 
projects which was partially offset by a $3.8 million increase in unearned revenue consisting primarily of summer 
tuition receipts and a $0.8 million increase in deposits held in custody.  Noncurrent liabilities declined by $10.4 
million for the year as a result of a $4.5 million decrease in long-term debt and a $5.5 million decline in the 
University’s net pension and OPEB liabilities.  Bonds, notes and capital leases payable, net of discounts and 
premiums, totaled $108.4 million and $112.8 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

At June 30, 2019, the University’s proportionate share of the nonhazardous and hazardous net pension and OPEB 
liabilities totaled $369.9 million which represents a $94.3 million increase since June 30, 2017.  This increase is 
primarily due to the recognition of the University’s proportionate share of the net liability related to the OPEB, 
primarily health insurance coverage, provided through the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pension (GASB 75).  The cumulative effect of the adoption of GASB 75 resulted in a decrease of $47.1 
million in the University’s unrestricted net position at July 1, 2017.  For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the 
University’s net liability related to the post employment health insurance coverage decreased by $5.0 million and 
increased by $12.4 million, respectively, resulting a net liability of $54.5 million at June 30, 2019.  The University’s 
net pension liability decreased by $0.5 million in 2019 and increased by $40.3 million in 2018 resulting in a 
combined increase of $39.8 million since June 30, 2017.  The net pension liability totaled $315.4 million at June 30, 
2019.   

Deferred Inflows of Resources  

The University’s deferred inflows of resources totaled $13.6 million and $12.1 million as of June 30, 2019 and 
2018, respectively.  Deferred inflows of resources related to the University’s defined benefit pension plan totaled 
$12.6 million and $10.5 million as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.   
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Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between the University’s total of assets and deferred outflows of resources and 
the total of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  The University’s net position totaled $48.1 million and 
$64.9 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University 
recognized noncash expenses of $1.3 million and $2.7 million, respectively, in accordance with the OPEB reporting 
changes under GASB 75 and noncash expenses of $22.4 million and $28.8 million, respectively, in accordance with 
the pension reporting changes under GASB 68 and GASB 71 resulting in noncash expenses totaling $55.2 million 
for the two year period.  Excluding the impact of the pension and OPEB reporting changes, the University’s 
unrestricted net position would have increased by $11.3 million and $11.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2019 
and 2018, respectively.   

Net invested in capital assets totaled $278.0 million and $280.4 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  
The $24.9 million increase in net invested in capital assets since June 30, 2017 is primarily attributable to the $41.2 
million of state capital appropriations the University received in fiscal year 2018 for the construction of the Health 
Innovations Center.  An $8 million gift from St. Elizabeth Healthcare to help pay for the design and construction of 
a virtual care facility within the Center also contributed to the increase in net invested in capital assets. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned and expenses incurred 
during the year.  Activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating.  GASB requires state appropriations and 
nonexchange grants and contracts to be classified as nonoperating revenues.  Accordingly, the University will 
generate an operating loss prior to the addition of nonoperating revenues. 

This statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the 
service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of when 
cash is exchanged. 
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The utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in the financial statements as 
depreciation, which amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life.  A summarized comparison of the 
University’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 follows: 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands) 

2019 2018 2017*

OPERATING REVENUES

 Student tuition and fees, net 113,949$        104,079$    104,787$      

  Grants and contracts 8,484  7,818   9,197    

  Sales and services of educational departments 4,286  4,745   4,969    

 Auxiliary enterprises 14,746  14,951    15,697  

  Other operating revenues 7,674  8,206   7,865    

  Total operating revenues 149,139   139,799  142,515   

OPERATING EXPENSES

  Educational and general 221,189   227,073  205,736   

 Depreciation 18,231  16,521    16,892  

  Auxiliary enterprises (including depreciation) 11,660  12,097    12,188  

 Other expenses 70    279   62    

  Total operating expenses 251,150   255,970  234,878   

  Net loss from operations (102,011)  (116,171)  (92,363)   

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

  State appropriations 53,315  51,105    46,353  

  Gifts, grants and contracts 26,436  27,313    26,161  

  Investment income (loss) 3,210  2,500   2,300    

  Interest on capital asset-related debt (3,787)  (4,063)    (4,345)  

  Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,529)  1,432   (498)  

  Net nonoperating revenues 77,645  78,287    69,971  
  Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, 
   gains or losses (24,366)   (37,884)  (22,392)   

  Capital appropriations - 41,155 36,864  

  Capital grants and gifts 7,534  3,189 728  

  Total other revenues 7,534  44,344    37,592  

  Increase (decrease) in net position (16,832)   6,460   15,200  

Net position-beginning of year, as previously reported 64,910  105,514  90,314  

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (47,064) -   

Net position-beginning of year, as restated 64,910  58,450    90,314  

Net position-end of year 48,078$    64,910$    105,514$      

*Management's discussion and analysis data for 2017 was not updated for the adoption of

GASB 75 as actuarial data was not available for that period.
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Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 

The following chart illustrates the University’s revenues by source (both operating and nonoperating), which were 
used to fund its operating activities for fiscal years 2017, 2018 and 2019.  Significant recurring sources of revenues, 
including state appropriations and nonexchange grants and contracts, are considered nonoperating revenues as 
defined by GASB.  These revenues support operating expenses; therefore, they are included in the graph of revenues 
by source (presented in millions).  

The University’s operating and nonoperating revenues totaled $232.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2019, an 
increase of $10.0 million compared to 2018.  Operating revenues totaled $149.1 million, or 64.2 percent of revenues, 
while nonoperating revenues totaled $83.0 million, or 35.8 percent of revenues, for the year.  The most significant 
sources of revenue for the University are net student tuition and fees (49.1 percent) and state appropriations (23.0 
percent). 

Operating revenues increased by $9.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2019, including a $9.9 million increase in 
net tuition resulting from the combined impact of an increase in enrollment and tuition and fee rate increases.  
Nongovernmental grants and contracts increased by $0.7 million due to an increase in operating grants received 
from the Northern Kentucky University Foundation.  The outsourcing of the early childhood center operation 
resulted in a $0.3 million decrease in child care fees which contributed to a $0.5 million decrease in sales and 
services of educational departments revenues for the year.  A $0.4 million decrease in revenues generated by the 
University’s arena contributed to a $0.5 million decline in other operating revenues for the year.  

Nonoperating revenues grew by $0.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2019.  The University’s state 
appropriations increased by $2.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2019.  Federal nonoperating grant revenues 
decreased by $1.0 million for the year due to a $1.0 million decrease in federal financial aid Pell grant revenues.  A 
$1.2 million increase in investment income earned on the University’s nonendowment funds was partially offset by 
a decrease in endowment investment earnings resulting in net increase in investment earnings of $0.7 million for the 
year.  For fiscal years 2019 and 2018 state appropriations increased by $2.2 million and $4.8 million, respectively, 
contributing to a $7.7 million increase in net nonoperating revenues for the two-year period.  
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Operating and Nonoperating Expenses 

The following chart illustrates the University’s expenses by function (both operating and nonoperating) for fiscal years 
2017, 2018 and 2019 (presented in millions). 

Operating and nonoperating expenses decreased by $3.6 million, or 1.4 percent, to a total of $256.5 million for the 
year ended June 30, 2019.  Instruction expenses declined by $2.5 million primarily due to a $6.7 million decrease in 
nonrecurring expenses related to the acquisition of instructional equipment in 2018 for the new Health Innovations 
Center.  This decrease was partially offset by a $5.0 million increase in contract expenses related to the University’s 
accelerated online courses and a $0.6 million increase in faculty salaries.  A $0.6 increase in research expenses 
resulted from a $0.6 million increase in grants related to the new Health Inovations Center.  Public service expenses 
decreased for the year by $1.4 million for the year resulting from a $0.6 million operating savings realized from the 
closure of the University’s radio station and a $0.6 million decline in pension and OPEB expenses for the year.  
Libraries and academic support expenses decreased by a combined $1.3 million as a result of a decline in pension 
and OPEB expenses.  A $0.7 million decrease student services expenses resulted primarily from a $1.8 million 
decrease in pension and OPEB expenses which were partially offset by an increase in intercollegiate athletics 
expenses and grant related expenses.  Institutional support expenses declined by $1.2 million due to a $2.0 million 
decrease in pension and OPEB expenses which was partially offset by a $0.8 million increase in other expenses 
including an increase in marketing expenses.  Operation and maintenance of plant decreased by $1.3 million due to 
$1.3 million decline in pension and OPEB expenses.  An increase in depreciation expense related to the new Health 
Innovations Center contributed to a $1.7 million growth in education and general depreciation expense for the year. 
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Tuition and fee scholarship allowances and housing scholarship allowances increased by $1.4 million and student 
aid expenses increased by $2.0 million primarily due to an increase in institutionally funded scholarships, including 
a $2.8 million increase in scholarships related to the University’s online programs, which have grown significantly.  
State funded financial aid program expenses increased by $0.2 million while federal financial aid program expenses 
decreased by $0.9 million for the year, including a $1.0 million decline in Pell grant expenses. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, cash and noncash pension and OPEB expenses totaled $41.0 million 
and $49.3 million, respectively.  This $8.3 million decrease in pension and OPEB expenses combined with a $3.5 
million net increase in nonpension and OPEB related expenses, including increases in student aid ($2.0 million) and 
depreciation (1.8 million), resulted in a $4.8 million reduction in operating expenses for the year. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Another important factor to consider when evaluating financial viability is the University’s ability to meet financial 
obligations as they become due.  The statement of cash flows presents information related to cash inflows and 
outflows, summarized by operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities.  A 
comparative summary of the University’s statements of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 
follows: 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands) 

2019 2018 2017

Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities (53,829)$    (64,039)$    (60,667)$     

Noncapital financing activities 79,388  77,749   73,920  

Capital and related financing activities (15,880)  (5,257)  (19,234)   

Investing activities 2,744   1,894   1,127  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,423  10,347  (4,854)   

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 115,642  105,295  110,149  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 128,065$    115,642$    105,295$      

The University’s cash and cash equivalents increased by $12.4 million in 2019.  Major sources of funds generated 
by operating activities in 2019 included student tuition and fees ($113.7 million), grants and contracts ($7.9 million) 
and auxiliary enterprises ($14.6 million).  The largest cash payments for operating activities were for salaries and 
benefits ($146.4 million), vendor payments ($40.5 million) and student financial aid ($15.8 million).  Net cash used 
by operating activities decreased by $10.2 million for the year primarily due to a $11.0 million increase in tuition 
and fee receipts.  A combined increase in payments for salaries and benefits ($2.8 million) and student financial aid 
($0.7 million) was offset by a $3.5 million decrease in vendor payments which declined due to  decrease in 
nonrecurring payments related to the acquisition of instructional equipment in 2018 for the new Health Innovations 
Center.   

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased by $1.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2019.  
Cash used by capital and related financing activities totaled $15.9 million for 2019.  Purchases of capital assets 
totaling $22.3 million were funded by capital grants and gifts, state capital appropriations, institutional funds and 
proceeds from a capital lease obligation issued to fund an energy management project which will be paid through 
guaranteed energy savings.  The University’s principal and interest payments totaled $12.0 million for the year.   
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2019, capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $381.0 million, or 70.6 percent of total 
assets.  Net capital assets decreased by $7.7 million for the year ended June 30, 2019 and increased by $19.2 million 
the prior year, resulting in a combined increase of $11.5 million, or 3.1 percent, since June 30, 2017.  This increase 
is the net result of an $53.5 million increase in capitalized construction project costs, land improvements, equipment 
and other capital assets, less $42.0 million in depreciation. 

The $11.5 million increase in capital assets, net of disposals, for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 
primarily attributable to the construction of the new state-of-the-art Health Innovations Center.  The Kentucky 
General Assembly approved a $97.0 million capital appropriation to the University in its 2014-16 biennial budget to 
fund the construction of a Health Innovations Center and to renovate Founders Hall.  In addition to the capital 
appropriation, the University also received an $8 million gift from St. Elizabeth Healthcare to help pay for the 
design and construction of a virtual care facility within the Center that helps students simulate medical procedures 
and facilitates transdisciplinary research at the University.  The Health Innovations Center opened in summer 2018.  

Debt 

The following is a summary of the University’s outstanding capital debt summarized by trust indenture and type as 
of June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands): 

2019 2018 2017

General Receipts Bonds, net of discounts and premiums 103,899$    111,891$    119,107$     

Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds 405   600   785  

Notes payable and municipal lease obligations 4,090  275   23  

108,394$    112,766$    119,915$     

Debt decreased by $4.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2019 resulting from principal payments of $7.8 million on 
bonds, notes and capital lease obligations, a $0.7 million decline in net discounts and premiums and the issuance of 
$4.1 million in capital lease obligations for the year.  In January 2019, the University entered into a new capital lease 
obligation in the amount of $4.1 million with an interest rate of 2.81%, for an energy management project.  The lease 
will be paid with guaranteed energy savings. 

The University’s current bond ratings assigned by Moody’s Investors Service (A1 negative) and Standard and Poors 
(A stable) to the University’s General Receipts bonds reflect the University’s solid financial position despite the 
continued funding challenges related to the KERS pension and OPEB plans.  

ECONOMIC FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS 

The University recently unveiled Success by Design, a strategic framework that focuses on advancing student 
success aligned with the needs of the region.  Success by Design is the University’s roadmap to increase access, 
achieve higher levels of completion and advance opportunities for career and community engagement for all 
learners. The University’s vision is to be a student-ready and regionally engaged university that empowers diverse 
learners for economic and social mobility. 

The enacted budget for 2018‐20 (House Bill 200) appropriated $31.0 million to the Postsecondary Education 
Performance Fund.  These funds are being distributed among institutions according to provisions of Kentucky 
Revised Statute 164.092, which established the performance funding model that allocates funding based on student 
success, course completion and operational support.  For fiscal year 2020, the University will receive $4.3 million 
from the Performance Fund and $48.0 million in regular appropriations, resulting in a total state appropriation of 
$52.3 million. 
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The University’s Board of Regents approved a 2.7 percent increase in undergraduate resident tuition rates for fiscal 
year 2020.  This increase was within the tuition and fee ceiling approved for the University by the Council on 
Postsecondary Education. 

The University’s state-funded endowments totaled $13.4 million as of June 30, 2019.  These funds, along with the 
private endowed gifts donated to benefit the University, are managed by Northern Kentucky University Foundation, 
Inc. (Foundation).  The endowment funds managed by the Foundation, including the University’s endowment funds, 
totaled $106.2 million at June 30, 2019.  For the five-year period that ended June 30, 2019, the endowment funds 
managed by the Foundation have grown from $95.1 million to $106.2 million as a result of excellent investment 
returns and the receipt of several major endowment gifts.  The growth in endowment funds has provided a 
significant increase in the funds available to support the University’s mission. 

During the 2019 Special Session, the Kentucky General Assembly passed House Bill 1, which provides several 
options for quasi-governmental employers, including state universities, participating in the KERS. Under HB1, 
employers may elect to cease participation in the defined benefit plan for nonhazardous employees.  The employers 
who cease participation are required to offer the impacted employees an alternative defined contribution retirement 
program.  House Bill 1 also froze the University’s pension and OPEB contributions rates for fiscal year 2020 at 49.5 
percent.   

Under House Bill 1, the University has until April 30, 2020 to choose one of the following options: 

 Remain in the KERS defined-benefit plan with no changes and be subject to future contribution rate
increases;

 Exit KERS, but elect to keep all Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees in the system.  Tier 3 employees and all new
employees would participate in the University’s defined contribution plan.  The University’s liability for
the Tier 1 and 2 employees would include the unfunded liability as of the cessation date and the estimated
normal cost for future service;

 Exit KERS, freeze all KERS pension accounts and move all Tier 1, 2 and 3 employees to a University
defined-contribution plan.  All new employees would participate in the University’s defined-contribution
plan.  The University’s liability for the Tier 1 and 2 employees would include the unfunded liability as of
the cessation date.

If the University elects to exit the system, House Bill 1 provides the University the option of paying a lump sum 
payment on the cessation date or paying annual installment payments, including interest, to KERS until the liability 
is retired. 

Fortunately, as the Commonwealth and the University continue to face significant budget challenges related to 
funding the state pension systems, the Kentucky economy continues to perform well.  According to the 2019 annual 
edition of Commonwealth of Kentucky Quarterly Economic & Revenue Report, Kentucky’s general fund receipts 
rose for the ninth consecutive year in fiscal year 2019.  Final 2019 general fund revenues were $194.5 million, or 1.7 
percent, more than the official revenue estimate which had projected 3.3 percent growth.  The report indicates the 
solid underlying economic conditions will persist well into fiscal year 2020. 

While high school graduation rates have remained relatively flat to down in the Kentucky, Ohio and southeast 
Indiana feeder counties, the University has seen an increasing trend in enrollments in students taking dual credit 
classes.  In addition, in Spring 2018, the University partnered with a third party to launch accelerated online 
programs.  The rapid increase in those programs helped the University to an overall increase in enrollments for Fall 
2018.  Enrollments in the accelerated online programs are expected to exceed 2,400 for Fall 2019 and will result in 
overall enrollments being up 3-4 percent. 
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Management is continuing its efforts to diversify revenue sources, contain costs and redirect resources to core 
mission priorities.  The University is working with a partner to develop property at the University’s main 
entrance.  Phase 1 of the development is the construction of a medical office building, which will be occupied by St. 
Elizabeth Healthcare.  Construction of the building is underway with occupancy expected in Spring 2020.  Phase 2 
of the development is expected to include an approximately 112 room extended-stay hotel, 30-40 thousand square 
feet of retail and restaurants, approximately 100 market-rate apartments, and professional office space.  The 
development will also energize the entrance to the University, providing for more amenities for students and better 
integration with the community.  There will be ground leases for both phases of the development ,which will 
provide a revenue stream to the University for many years into the future. 

In summary, while the impact of the new pension reporting requirements on the University’s unrestricted net 
position is significant, the University continues to show solid operating performance as measured by cash 
flows.  The University is in the process of implementing new and enhanced strategies around enrollment, including 
enhanced online programs, and financial aid.  These strategies are designed to increase enrollment, support students 
from diverse backgrounds, increase student retention rates, maintain academic quality, and increase net tuition 
revenue.  The continued growth in funds provided through endowments, gifts, and other sources of revenues will be 
essential as the University strives to meet the needs of our students.  The University launched a multi-year 
fundraising campaign in the spring of 2019 with a public goal of $75 million. 
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2019 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 110,229$     98,916$     
Notes, loans and accounts receivable, net 11,728   17,186   
Other current assets 3,245   2,656   
 Total current assets 125,202  118,758   

Noncurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,836   16,726   
Investments 14,040   13,431   
Notes, loans and accounts receivable, net 1,670   1,914   
Capital assets, net 381,014  388,690   
Other noncurrent assets 251  198  
 Total noncurrent assets 414,811  420,959   
 Total assets 540,013  539,717   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond refunding loss 2,910   3,277   
Pension and OPEB 40,635   67,703   

Total deferred outflows of resources 43,545   70,980   

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19,417   25,509   

Unearned revenue 9,183   5,425   
Long-term debt-current portion 8,416   8,247   
Other long-term liabilities-current portion 1,359   584  
 Total current liabilities 38,375   39,765   

Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposits 11,285   11,768   
Long-term debt 99,978  104,519   
Other long-term liabilities 2,354   2,262   
Net pension and OPEB liability 369,866  375,369   
 Total noncurrent liabilities 483,483  493,918   
 Total liabilities 521,858  533,683   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Service agreements 978  1,565   
Pension and OPEB 12,644   10,539   

Total deferred inflows of resources 13,622   12,104   

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 278,002  280,404   
Restricted

Nonexpendable 7,616   7,616   
Expendable 2,981   5,076   

Unrestricted (240,521)  (228,186)    
   Total net position 48,078$     64,910$     

Northern Kentucky University 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

 Statements of  Net Position
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2019 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9,355$     13,796$       
Loans and accounts receivable, net 191   97  
Contributions receivable, net 3,012   4,449    
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 42     38  
Investments 108,503   108,297    
Land and land improvements 548   548   
Accumulated depreciation (208) (208) 
 Total assets 121,443$         127,017$         

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable 405$     3,140$         
Deferred revenue 163   215   
Funds held in trust for Northern Kentucky University 13,446     13,431  
 Total liabilities 14,014     16,786  

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
    For current operations 1,596   1,344    
    Amounts functioning as endowment funds 2,687   2,614    
    Invested in land and land improvements 340   340   

        Total without donor restrictions 4,623   4,298    
With donor restrictions
    Unexpended funds received for restricted purposes 9,468   12,038  
    Contributions receivable 3,012   4,449    
    Loan funds 214   219   
    Endowment funds 90,112     89,227  
     Total with donor restrictions 102,806   105,933    
 Total net assets 107,429   110,231    
 Total liabilities and net assets 121,443$     127,017$         

Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2019 2018

OPERATING REVENUES

113,949$       104,079$       

Federal grants and contracts 2,396     2,162     

State and local grants and contracts 2,905     3,202     

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 3,183     2,454     

Sales and services of educational departments 4,286     4,745     

Auxiliary enterprises
Housing and food service (net of scholarship allowances of $1,381 
in 2019 and $1,416 in 2018) 10,931   11,006   

Other auxiliaries 3,815     3,945     

Other operating revenues 7,674     8,206     

 Total operating revenues 149,139      139,799      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Educational and general

Instruction 76,092   78,618   

Research 2,003     1,443     

Public service 11,735   13,156   

Libraries 5,410     6,096     

Academic support 22,822   23,427   

Student services 29,486   30,214   

Institutional support 35,471   36,641   

Operation and maintenance of plant 21,504   22,806   

Depreciation 18,231   16,521   

Student aid 16,666   14,672   

Auxiliary enterprises

Housing and food service 6,620     6,944     

Other auxiliaries 1,378     1,605     

Auxiliary depreciation 3,662     3,548     

Other expenses 70      279    

  Total operating expenses 251,150      255,970      

 Net income (loss) from operations (102,011)     (116,171)     

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State appropriations 53,315   51,105   

Federal grants and contracts 15,202   16,207   

State and local grants and contracts 11,197   11,071   

Private gifts and grants 37      35      

Investment income (loss) 3,210     2,500     

Interest on capital asset-related debt (3,787)    (4,063)    

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,529)    1,432     

   Net nonoperating revenues 77,645   78,287   

      Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses (24,366)  (37,884)  

Capital appropriations - 41,155 

Capital grants and gifts 7,534     3,189 

    Total other revenues 7,534     44,344   

  Increase (decrease) in net position (16,832)  6,460     

NET POSITION

Net position-beginning of year 64,910   58,450   

Net position-end of year 48,078$    64,910$    

Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $44,007 in 
2019 and $42,615 in 2018)

Northern Kentucky University 

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Without
Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gifts and bequests -$   5,014$   5,014$       
State grants - 669 669  
Rental income 131    - 131
Investment return 295    3,566 3,861
Other revenue 117    421     538  

Total revenues and gains 543    9,670  10,213  
Net assets released from restrictions 12,675   (12,675)   -   

Total revenues, gains and other support 13,218   (3,005)     10,213  

EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Program expenses

Instruction 957   - 957
Research 60     - 60
Public service 882   - 882
Libraries 23     - 23
Academic support 904   - 904
Student services 931   - 931
Institutional support 1,141    - 1,141
University facilities and equipment acquisition 5,296    - 5,296
Student financial aid 1,925    - 1,925
Other program expenses and losses - 122 122

Total program expenses 12,119  122     12,241  
Support expenses

Management and general 476   - 476
Fund raising support 281   - 281
Rental property 17     - 17

Total support expenses 774   - 774
 Total expenses and losses 12,893  122     13,015  

Increase (decrease) in net assets 325   (3,127)     (2,802)   
Net assets-beginning of year 4,298    105,933  110,231    
Net assets-end of year 4,623$      102,806$       107,429$       

Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Without
Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gifts and bequests 2$                 5,098$          5,100$          
Rental income 131  - 131 
Investment return 346  6,663          7,009 
Other revenue 115  308             423               

Total revenues and gains 594  12,069        12,663          
Net assets released from restrictions 9,352            (9,352)       -      

Total revenues, gains and other support 9,946            2,717          12,663          

EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Program Expenses

Instruction 693  - 693 
Research 38    - 38 
Public service 175  - 175 
Libraries 40    - 40 
Academic support 725  - 725 
Student services 524  - 524 
Institutional support 1,002            - 1,002 
University facilities and equipment acquisition 3,187            - 3,187 
Student financial aid 2,469            - 2,469 
Other program expenses and losses - 32 32   

Total program expenses 8,853            32             8,885            
Support Expenses

Management and general 428  - 428 
Fund raising support 179  - 179 

Total support expenses 607  - 607 
 Total expenses and losses 9,460            32             9,492            

Increase in net assets 486  2,685        3,171            
Net assets-beginning of year 3,812            103,248    107,060        
Net assets-end of year 4,298$          105,933$      110,231$      

Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Tuition and fees 113,684$         102,661$     

Grants and contracts 7,945   8,666   

Payments to suppliers (40,535)            (44,039)   

Payments for salaries and benefits (146,442)          (143,646)   

Payments for student financial aid (15,784)            (15,132)   

Loans issued to students (54) (568) 

Collection of loans to students 242    341    

Auxiliary enterprise receipts:

  Housing operations 10,763    10,720    

  Other auxiliaries 3,815   3,783   

Sales and service of educational departments 4,500   4,650   

Other receipts (payments) 8,037   8,525   

     Net cash used in operating activities (53,829)            (64,039)   

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations 53,315    51,105    

Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 26,550    27,228    

Agency and loan program receipts 92,036    78,808    

Agency and loan program disbursements (92,458)            (79,392)   

Other nonoperating receipts (payments) (55)  

 Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 79,388    77,749    

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt and leases 4,088   275    

Capital appropriations 4,447   43,649    

Capital grants, gifts, and advances  received 9,829   229    

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 6,685 

Purchases of capital assets (22,270)            (44,898) 

Principal paid on capital debt and leases (7,803)  (6,813) 

Interest paid on capital debt and leases (4,171)  (4,384) 

 Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (15,880)            (5,257)  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 147    253    

Purchase of investments (594)   -    

Interest on investments 3,191   1,641   

    Net cash provided by investing activities 2,744   1,894   

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,423    10,347    

Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of year 115,642  105,295  

Cash and cash equivalents-end of year 128,065$         115,642$     

Northern Kentucky University
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2019 2018
RECONCILIATION OF NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO
   NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss from operations (102,011)$        (116,171)$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 21,893  20,069  

Deferred inflows of resources 1,518  6,059    

Deferred outflows of resources 27,068  (24,190)   

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (1,665)  1,556    

Other assets (642) (167) 

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deposits 920  (465)   

Unearned revenue 3,758  (239)   

Pension and OPEB (5,503)  49,640  

Long-term liabilities 835  (131)   

   Net cash used in operating activities (53,829)$     (64,039)$      

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Capital assets acquired through capital lease 2,653$      162$     

Gifts of capital assets 397  167  

Capital asset acquisitions in accounts payable 1,384  8,337    

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
(in thousands)

Northern Kentucky University

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
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Northern Kentucky University 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 1 – Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Reporting Entity
Northern Kentucky University (the University) is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
(Commonwealth) and is included in the general-purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth.  The financial
statements of the University include the operations of the Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation
(Research Foundation) which is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization supporting the University.  In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, the Research Foundation is
reported as a blended component unit of the University and condensed financial information is provided in Note 12.

The Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization 
supporting the University. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources 
that are available to the University in support of its programs.  The Foundation’s Board of Directors is self-
perpetuating and consists of graduates and friends of the University.  Although the University does not control the 
timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources the Foundation holds and invests are 
restricted to the activities of the University by the donors.  Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation 
can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the 
University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements.   

The accompanying financial statements do not include the financial position or operating results of the Chase 
College Foundation, Inc.  This foundation is a separately incorporated not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose 
of promoting the educational mission of the University’s Salmon P. Chase College of Law.  Although this entity 
benefits the University’s Salmon P. Chase College of Law, it is governed by an independent Board of Directors and 
is not controlled by the University. 

b. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of the University have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB.  In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public
Colleges and Universities (GASB 35) and subsequent standards issued by GASB, the University has elected to
report as an entity engaged in business-type activities (BTA). BTAs are those activities that are financed in whole or
part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services.  GASB 35 establishes standards for external financial
reporting for public colleges and universities and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into the following net position categories:

 Net investment in capital assets:  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal
balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

 Restricted:
Nonexpendable – Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the University.  

Expendable – Net position whose use by the University is subject to externally imposed stipulations that 
can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage 
of time.  Expendable net position consists primarily of amounts for specified capital construction 
projects.  

 Unrestricted:  Net position whose use by the University is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of
Regents or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.
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The financial statement presentation required by GASB is intended to provide a comprehensive, entity-wide 
perspective of the University’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net 
position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows.   

c. Accrual Basis
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all readily available sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposits,
certificates of deposit and temporary investments in marketable debt securities with original maturities less than
three months. Funds held by the Commonwealth of Kentucky are also considered cash equivalents.

e. Notes, Loans and Accounts Receivable
This classification consists of tuition and fee charges to students, charges for auxiliary enterprise services provided
to students, faculty and staff, loans to students and amounts due from sponsors for reimbursement of expenses made
pursuant to contracts and grants.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts based
upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection information and existing economic conditions.

f. Capital Assets
Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at fair market value at date of gift.
Equipment with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and having an estimated useful life of greater than one year is
capitalized.  Renovations to buildings, infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the value or
extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized.  The University capitalizes interest costs as a component of
construction in progress based on the interest cost of borrowing specifically for the project, net of interest earned on
investments acquired with the proceeds of the borrowing.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating
expense in the year in which the expense is incurred.

Depreciation of capital assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets, generally 40 years for land improvements, 10 – 40 years for buildings and fixed equipment, 10 years for 
library books and 3 – 10 years for equipment.   The University capitalizes, but does not depreciate, works of art and 
historical treasures that are held for exhibition, education, research and public service. 

g. Compensated absences
University policies permit employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be realized as paid
time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment.  Expense and the related liability are recognized as vacation
benefits are earned whether the employee is expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash.  Sick leave benefits
are recognized as expense when the time off occurs and no liability is accrued for such benefits employees have
earned but not yet realized except for employees currently eligible to retire from the Kentucky Employers
Retirement System (KERS).  A liability is accrued equal to the estimated amount to be paid to KERS for sick leave
converted to time worked at retirement.  Compensated absence liabilities are computed using the regular pay rates in
effect at the statement of net position date plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as
social security and Medicare taxes computed using rates in effect at that date.

h. Investments
Investments in equity and debt securities are carried at fair value.  Fair value is determined using quoted market
prices.  Investments in nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are carried at cost.  Investment income consists of
interest and dividend income, realized gains and losses and the net change for the year in the fair value of
investments carried at fair value.

i. Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue includes amounts received for tuition and other student fees prior to the end of the fiscal year but
related to the subsequent accounting period.  Unearned revenue also includes amounts received from grants and
contracts sponsors that have not yet been earned.

j. Deposits
Noncurrent deposits consist primarily of deposits held in a wetland restoration fund pursuant to a memorandum of
agreement with a federal agency.
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k. Cost-Sharing Defined-Benefit Pension Plan
The University participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Kentucky Retirement
Systems, (KRS).  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net positon have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by the Plan.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.

l. Cost-Sharing Defined-Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
The University participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined-benefit other postemployment benefit plan,
KRS, (the OPEB Plan).  For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the OPEB Plan and additions to/deduction from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net positon have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.

m. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
A deferred outflow of resources is a loss in net position by the University that is applicable to a future reporting
period.  Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the statement of net position, but are not recognized in the
financial statements as expense until in the related period.  Deferred outflows of resources include $2,910,000 and
$3,277,000 of losses on bond refunding for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The remaining
balance of deferred outflows for years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 consists of the KERS pension and OPEB
related  unamortized balances.

A deferred inflow of resources is a gain in net position by the University that is applicable to a future reporting 
period.  Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the statement of net position but are not recognized in the 
financial statements as revenue until in the related period.  The agreement between the University and the 
University’s food service providers resulted in a deferred inflow of resources of $978,000 and $1,565,000 at  
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The deferred inflows of resources related to this agreement are recognized 
evenly over the life of the contract.  The remaining deferred inflows of resources for the years ended June 30, 2019 
and 2018 consist of the KERS pension and OPEB related unamortized balances. 

See Notes 7 and 8 for details of pension and OPEB related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources. 

n. Scholarship Allowances
Student tuition and fee revenues and other student related revenues are reported net of scholarship allowances in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship allowances are the differences between the
stated charge for services provided by the University, and the amounts that are paid by the students or third parties
making payments on a student’s behalf.  To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition
and fees, and other student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship allowance.

o. Income Taxes
The University is an agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth, pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statutes
sections 164.290 through 164.475.  Accordingly, the University is generally exempt from federal income taxes as an
organization described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  The Research Foundation
has received a determination from the Internal Revenue Service granting exemption from federal income taxation
pursuant to the provisions of Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).

p. Restricted Asset Spending Policy
The University’s policy states that restrictions on assets cannot be fulfilled by the expenditure of unrestricted funds
for similar purposes.  The determination on whether restricted or unrestricted funds are expended for a particular
purpose is made on a case-by-case basis.  Restricted funds remain restricted until spent for the intended purpose.
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q. Operating Activities
The University defines operating activities, as reported on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, as those that generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing goods
and services and payments made for services and goods received.  Nearly all of the University’s expenses are from
exchange transactions.  Certain significant revenues relied upon for operations, such as state appropriations, gifts,
and investment income, are recorded as nonoperating revenues, in accordance with GASB 35.  In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance
and related GASB implementation guidance, Pell Grants, College Access Program (CAP) Grants and Kentucky
Educational Excellence Scholarship (KEES) are considered nonexchange transactions and are recorded as
nonoperating revenues in the accompanying financial statements.

r. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements.  Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during
the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

s. Component Unit Disclosure
The accompanying financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board.  As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features.

Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Northern Kentucky University 
Foundation, Inc. at Lucas Administrative Center Room 820, Nunn Drive, Highland Heights, KY  41099.  

t. Related Party Transactions
During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation made payments on behalf of the University of
$327,000 and $320,000, respectively, for salaries, benefits and other administrative costs for University staff that
directly support the Foundation’s operations.  These payments are made by agreement between the Foundation and
University.  As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $4,000 and $5,000 was owed to the University for such
costs, respectively.

In support of University programs for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation incurred program 
expenses of $12,175,000 and $8,885,000, respectively, which consisted of payments on behalf of the University of 
$4,570,000 and $4,128,000 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.  In addition, the Foundation transferred $7,605,000 and 
$4,757,000 to the University for restricted purposes in 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

u. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2017, the GASB approved Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to improve the
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.  This Statement requires recognition of certain lease
assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  It establishes a single model for
lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the
relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  The provisions of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.  The University is currently evaluating the
effects of this statement on its financial statements.
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In June 2018, the GASB approved Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the end of a 
Construction Period.  The objectives of this Statement are to enhance the relevance and comparability of 
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and to simplify accounting for 
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.  This Statement requires that interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for 
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  As a result, interest cost incurred 
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a 
business-type activity or enterprise fund.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019.  The University is currently evaluating the effects of this statement on its 
financial statements. 

v. Reclassifications
Certain items have been reclassified for the year ended June 30, 2018 in order to conform to classifications used for
the year ended June 30, 2019.  These reclassifications had no effect on total net position or the change in net
position.

Note 2 – Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

At June 30, 2019, petty cash funds totaled $57,000 and the carrying amount of the deposits was $128,008,000 with a 
corresponding total bank balance of $131,253,000.  Of the bank balance, $29,549,000 was covered by federal 
depository insurance, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging bank, or bank’s agents, in the 
University’s name and $101,704,000 was held and invested by the Commonwealth.  These deposits were covered by 
federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the Commonwealth in the Commonwealth’s name. 

Investments 
The investments which the University may purchase are limited by the Commonwealth’s law and the University’s 
bond resolutions to the following (1) securities or obligations which are fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government or 
agencies of the U.S. Government as to principal and interest; (2) certificates of deposit or time deposits of banks, 
trust companies or national banking associations which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; 
and (3) mutual funds investing solely in U.S. securities.  

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s 
deposits or collateral securities may not be returned to it.  The University currently uses commercial banks and the 
Commonwealth as its depositories.  Deposits with commercial banks are substantially covered by federal depository 
insurance or collateral held by the bank in the University’s name.  At the Commonwealth, the University’s accounts 
are pooled with other agencies of the Commonwealth.  These Commonwealth-pooled deposits are substantially 
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the Commonwealth in the Commonwealth’s name.  
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a 
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.   

The following schedule reports the fair values of the University’s investments at June 30, 3019 and 2018 (in 
thousands): 

2019 2018
 Treasury bills 594,000$             -$                
  Restricted assets held by the Foundation 13,446,000        13,431,000       
 Total Investments 14,040,000$        13,431,000$        
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University investments held by the Foundation represent the University’s Regional University Excellence Trust 
Fund endowments which are invested in an investment pool managed by the Foundation.  See Note 13 (c) for the 
required GASB fair value disclosures for the University’s investments that are included in the Foundation’s 
investment pool.  University assets in the Foundation investment pool at June 30, 2019 and 2018 are invested as 
follows: 

2019 2018
Type of Investment:

  Fixed income funds     15% 14%
   Domestic equity funds  35% 33%
  International equity funds 14% 13%

  Emerging markets 9% 9%
 Private equity 6% 5%

   Natural resources 13% 13%
 Other 8% 13%

Total Investments 100% 100%

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  As stated in the University’s investment policy, the bond resolution governs the investment of bond 
reserves.  The bond resolution limits the investment maturities by the lesser of the remaining life of the bond issue or 
ten years.  Certificates of deposit can have a maturity of not more than two years from the date of issue.   

Credit Risk:  Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The University’s investment policy requires investments to be in compliance with state statute.  
University investments that are managed by the Foundation are governed by the Foundation’s investment policy. 
This policy contains several provisions which are intended to limit credit risk, including a requirement that fixed 
income portfolios maintain a weighted average credit rating of at least AA (Standard and Poor’s) and have no more 
than 10 percent of the portfolio in below investment grade bonds. 

Concentration of Credit Risk:  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government’s investment in a single user.  The University debt service reserves are invested by the bond trustees in 
accordance with the governing bond resolutions.  There are no specific limits on the maximum amount of 
investment securities held in bond debt service reserve funds that may be invested in one issuer.  However, such 
investments are limited to interest bearing direct obligations of the U.S. government or obligations fully guaranteed 
by the U.S. government.   

Foreign Currency Risk:  This risk relates to adverse effects on the fair value of an investment from changes in 
exchange rates.  The University had no investments denominated in foreign currency at June 30, 2019 or June 30, 
2018. 

Note 3 – Notes, Loans and Accounts Receivable 

Notes, loans and accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows (in thousands): 

2019
Gross 

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable
Student loans 1,317$    (486)$   831$    
Student accounts receivable 13,012  (4,439)   8,573  
Reimbursement receivable grants and contracts 1,244   - 1,244 
NKU Foundation receivable 245    - 245 
Other 3,388  (883) 2,505 

 Total 19,206$    (5,808)$     13,398$      

Current portion 11,728$      
Noncurrent portion 1,670  

 Total 13,398$      
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2018
Gross 

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable
Student loans 1,478$       (488)$      990$                
Student accounts receivable 12,339    (4,768)       7,571      
Reimbursement receivable grants and contracts 738  - 738 
Capital appropriations receivable 4,447      - 4,447 
NKU Foundation receivable 3,058      - 3,058 
Other 3,536      (1,240)       2,296 

   Total 25,596$     (6,496)$            19,100$           

Current portion 17,186$           
Noncurrent portion 1,914      

   Total 19,100$           

Note 4 – Capital Assets, net 

Capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

July 1, 2018 June 30, 2019
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost:
    Land 9,629$      -$   -$  9,629$     
    Land improvements 42,082     1,542  934   42,690  
    Buildings 531,166   10,073    2,708    538,531    
    Equipment 77,662     2,770  2,147    78,285  
    Library books 15,001     208     1,657    13,552  
    Construction in process 4,096   1,215  -  5,311    

679,636   15,808    7,446    687,998    
Accumulated Depreciation:
    Land improvements 10,045     1,183  282   10,946  
    Buildings 204,513   16,100    1,835    218,778    
    Equipment 63,627     4,108  2,082    65,653  
    Library books 12,761     502     1,656    11,607  

290,946   21,893    5,855    306,984    
Capital assets, net 388,690$      (6,085)$    1,591$     381,014$      

July 1, 2017 June 30, 2018
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost:
    Indefinite life intangible assets 4,206$      -$   4,206$     -$      
    Land 9,607   316     294   9,629    
    Land improvements 37,964     5,756  1,638    42,082  
    Buildings 452,166   80,512    1,512    531,166    
    Equipment 69,760     8,864  962   77,662  
    Library books 16,788     271     2,058    15,001  
    Construction in process 53,764     877     50,545  4,096    

644,255   96,596    61,215  679,636    
Accumulated Depreciation:
    Land improvements 9,192   1,076  223   10,045  
    Buildings 190,538   14,751    776   204,513    
    Equipment 60,809     3,669  851   63,627  
    Library books 14,246     573     2,058    12,761  

274,785   20,069    3,908    290,946    
Capital assets, net 369,470$      76,527$       57,307$   388,690$      
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The estimated cost to complete construction under contract at June 30, 2019 was approximately $2,752,000. 

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the net book value of capital assets acquired through capital leases included in the 
above schedules totaled $2,653,000 and $162,000 respectively. 

In 2018, the University discontinued operations of three radio stations that were being subsidized by the University 
and redirected the resources to core mission priorities.  In August and September of 2017, the radio stations, 
WNKU, WNKE and WNKN, were sold.  The sales resulted in a gain of $1,659,000, which is included on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position as other nonoperating revenue.  

Note 5 – Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows (in thousands): 

2019 2018
Payable to vendors and contractors  $     8,820  $       14,791 
Accrued expenses, primarily payroll and vacation leave    5,986  6,089 
Employee withholdings and deposits payable to third parties    3,258  3,246 
Self-insured health liability    1,353  1,383 

 Total  $   19,417  $           25,509 

Note 6 – Long-Term Liabilities 

The changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized as follows (in 
thousands): 

Balance Balance Current Noncurrent
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 Portion Portion

Housing and Dining Revenue Bonds 600$   -$     195$   405$      200$       205$    
General Receipts Bonds (net of    
  discounts and premiums) 111,891  - 7,992 103,899  7,870     96,029  
    Total bonds 112,491  - 8,187 104,304  8,070     96,234  
Notes and leases payable 275  4,088    273  4,090   346    3,744    
     Total debt 112,766  4,088    8,460   108,394  8,416     99,978  
Deferred compensation 145  - 33 112   39   73  
Federal portion of loan programs 1,071  14  2 1,083   - 1,083 
Unearned revenue 5,473  9,558    5,473   9,558   9,183     375   
KERS-sick leave 763  144    187  720   72   648   
Other 525  - 175  350   175    175   
     Total other long-term liabilities 7,977  9,716    5,870   11,823    9,469     2,354    
Deposits 12,062    2,644    2,348   12,358    1,073     11,285  
Net pension and OPEB liability 375,369  108    5,611   369,866  - 369,866 
Total long-term liabilities 508,174$   16,556$   22,289$      502,441$     18,958$      483,483$    
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Balance Balance Current Noncurrent
July 1, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 Portion Portion

Housing and Dining Revenue Bonds 785$       -$      185$      600$      195$           405$           
General Receipts Bonds (net of    
 discounts and premiums) 119,107       - 7,216 111,891       7,992        103,899      
    Total bonds 119,892       - 7,401 112,491       8,187        104,304      
Notes and leases payable 23       275            23       275    60   215    
     Total debt 119,915       275            7,424          112,766       8,247        104,519      
Deferred compensation 227     - 82 145    39   106    
Federal portion of loan programs 1,558  - 487 1,071           - 1,071 
Unearned revenue 5,712  5,462         5,701 5,473           5,425        48 
KERS-sick leave 674     220            131     763    76   687 
Other 700     - 175 525    175           350    
     Total other long-term liabilities 8,871  5,682         6,576          7,977           5,715        2,262          
Deposits 12,798         1,483         2,219          12,062         294           11,768        
Net pension and OPEB liability* 275,585       99,784       - 375,369 - 375,369 
Total long-term liabilities 417,169$         107,224$    16,219$      508,174$         14,256$      493,918$    

*The additions column includes the cumulative effect from adoption of GASB 75.

a. Bonds
The gross revenues of the Housing and Dining system operations are pledged for the retirement of the Housing and
Dining System Revenue Bonds.  The $209,000 reserve requirement for the Housing and Dining issue was fully funded
as of June 30, 2019.  The $348,000 required housing repair and replacement fund was fully funded as of June 30,
2019.

The outstanding obligation as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 for the Northern Kentucky University General Receipts 
Bonds are reported net of discounts totaling $0 and $9,000 and premiums of $6,854,000 and $7,520,000, 
respectively.  General Receipts Bonds are collateralized by the operating and nonoperating income of the University 
excluding income which as a condition of the receipt is not available for payment of debt service charges. 

On August 25, 2016, Northern Kentucky University General Receipts Bonds were issued in the amount of 
$15,225,000 and a net interest cost of 2.02 percent.  The proceeds partially refunded the General Receipts Bonds, 
2008 Series A maturing on or after September 1, 2019.  The refunding reduced the University’s total debt service 
payments over the term by $1,818,000, representing an economic gain of $1,600,000.  Economic gain is determined 
by calculating the difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt.  As of 
June 30, 2018, a balance of $15,794,000 was being held in escrow by the trustee to fund the debt service on the 
refunded portion of the 2008 Series A until the bonds were called for redemption on September 1, 2018. 
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The total bonds payable as of June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 

2019 2018
Housing and Dining System Revenue bonds payable
Series B, dated November 1, 1980, with an interest rate of 3.00%.  Final 
principal payment date November 1, 2020. 405$               600$               

   Total Housing and Dining System Revenue bonds payable 405     600         

General Receipts bonds payable
Series A 2007, dated May 23, 2007, with an interest rate of 4.00%.  Final 
principal payment date September 1, 2018. - 2,395 

Series A 2008, dated June 18, 2008, with interest rates from 3.00% to 4.00%.  
Final principal payment date September 1, 2018. - 995 

Series A 2010, dated June 29, 2010, with interest rates from 2.00% to 3.50%.  
Final principal payment date September 1, 2020. 490     935         

Series B 2010, dated October 21, 2010, with interest rates from 2.00% to 
3.75%.  Final principal payment date September 1, 2027. 7,635  8,350      

Series A 2011, dated August 4, 2011, with interest rates from 2.00% to 
4.00%.  Final principal payment date September 1, 2030. 6,750  7,200      

Series A 2013, dated February 26, 2013, with an interest rate of 2.00%.  Final 
principal payment date September 1, 2022. 2,120  2,620      

Series A 2014, dated January 7, 2014, with interest rates from 2.00% to 
5.00%.  Final principal payment date September 1, 2033. 39,385            41,120    

Series A 2016, dated May 17, 2016, with interest rates from 2.00% to 5.00%.  
Final principal payment date September 1, 2027. 25,640            25,640    

Series A 2016, dated August 25, 2016, with interest rates from 2.00% to 
4.00%.  Final principal payment date September 1, 2028. 15,025            15,125    
   Total General Receipts bonds payable 97,045            104,380  

Plus:  Net discounts and premiums 6,854  7,511      

      Total bonds payable 104,304$        112,491$        

Principal maturities and interest on bonds for the next five years and in subsequent five-year periods are as follows 
(in thousands): 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020  $          7,405  $          3,842  $   11,247 
2021     7,690       3,555  11,245 
2022     7,530       3,258  10,788 
2023     7,890       2,948  10,838 
2024     7,675       2,612  10,287 
2025-2029   41,545       7,814  49,359 
2030-2031   17,715       2,071  19,786 

  Subtotal   97,450     26,100     123,550 

Plus: Net discounts and premiums 6,854    - 6,854 

  Total 104,304$      26,100$        130,404$      
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b. Leases
In January 2019, the University entered into a new capital lease obligation in the amount of $4,088,000 with an interest
rate of 2.81 percent, for an energy management project.  The lease will be paid with guaranteed energy savings.

In May 2018, the University entered into a new capital lease obligation through a third party financial institution, in 
the amount of $275,000, with an interest rate of 4.43 percent.  This obligation was used to fund computer equipment. 

Lease obligations as of June 30 are as follows (in thousands): 

2019 2018
Capital lease payable
Capital equipment lease , dated May 1, 2018, with an interest rate of 4.43%.  
Final principal payment date May 1, 2023.  $  165  $     275 
Energy management lease , dated January 24, 2019, with an interest rate of 
2.81%.  Final principal payment date November 24, 2030.  3,925  - 
  Total capital lease payable  $  4,090  $     275 

Future minimum lease payments for the next five years and in subsequent five-year periods are as follows (in 
thousands): 

Fiscal Year

Present Value of 
Future Minimum 
Lease Payments

Interest 
Portion Total

2020  $         346  $        116  $        462 
2021       357  105       462 
2022       368    93       461 
2023       319    83       402 
2024       328    74       402 
2025-2029    1,786  223    2,009 
2030-2034       586    17       603 

        Total 4,090$      711$        4,801$     

Note 7 – Pension Plans and Accrued Compensated Absences 

Employees of the University are covered by one of the following plans: 

a. Defined Contribution Plan
A Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA CREF) sponsored plan,
adopted by the Board of Regents in July 1970, is available upon completion of ninety days of service, to all regular
full-time members of the faculty, administrative officers and others who have educational related duties.  The TIAA
CREF retirement plan is a defined-contribution, money purchase retirement plan.  The employees contribute 5
percent of their base salary to the plan, and the University contributes 10 percent.  All payments are vested
immediately and the contracts with the providers are owned by the individual employees.  The employee is entitled
to various payment options upon retirement.  Benefit payments at retirement depend on the total contributions with
interest deposited into the employee’s account.  Retirement benefits can begin upon retirement or termination of
employment with the University.  Covered payroll totaled $47,022,000 and $47,000,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The University’s contribution totaled $4,702,000 and $4,700,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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b. Defined Benefit Plan
Plan Description - All regular employees not participating in the above plan are required to participate in either the
Nonhazardous or Hazardous cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan, both of which are under
the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), that is administered by the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky
Retirement Systems (KRS). The defined benefit plans provide for retirement, disability and death benefits.
Participants have a fully vested interest after the completion of 60 months of service, 12 of which are current
service.  KERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter
Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601-6124 or by calling (502) 696-8800.

Pension Benefits Provided – 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
Participation Prior to Participation Participation on or after

9/1/2008 9/1/2008 through 12/31/2013 1/1/2014

Benefit Formula: Cash Balance Plan

Final Compensation: Average of the highest 5 
fiscal years (must contain 
at least 48 months).  
Includes lump-sum 
compensation payments 
(before and at retirement).

5 complete fiscal years 
immediately preceding 
retirement; each year must 
contain 12 months.   Lump-sum 
compensation payments (before 
and at retirement) are not to be 
included in creditable 
compensation.

No Final Compensation

Benefit Factor: 1.97%, or 2.0%  for those 
retiring with service for all 
months between 1/1998 
and 1/1999.        

10 years or less = 1.10%.  Greater 
than 10 years, but no more than 
20 years = 1.30%.  Greater than 
20 years, but no more than 26 
years = 1.50%.  Greater than 26 
years, but no more than 30 years 
= 1.75%.   Additional years 
above 30 = 2.00% (2.00% benefit 
factor only applies to service 
earned in excess of 30 years). 

No benefit factor.  A life 
annuity can be calculated 
in accordance with 
actuarial assumptions and 
methods adopted by the 
board based on member’s 
accumulated account 
balance. 

Cost of Living 
Adjustment 
(COLA):

Unreduced 
Retirement 
Benefit:

Any age with 27 years of 
service.   Age 65 with 48 
months of service.  Money 
purchase for age 65 with 
less than 48 months based 
on contributions and 
interest.

Any age with 25 years of 
service.  Age 55 with 5 
years of service.

Age 60 with 10 years of service.  
Excludes purchased service 
(exception: refunds, omitted, free 
military).

No reduced retirement 
benefit.

Final Compensation X Benefit Factor X Years of Service

No COLA unless authorized by the Legislature with specific criteria.  This impacts all retirees 
regardless of Tier.

Rule of 87: Member must be at least age 57 and age plus earned 
service must equal 87 years at retirement to retire under this 
provision.   Age 65 with 5 years of earned service.  No money 
purchase calculations.

Reduced Retirement 
Benefit:

Nonhazardous
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Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
Participation Prior to Participation Participation on or after

9/1/2008 9/1/2008 through 12/31/2013 1/1/2014
Hazardous

Benefit Formula: Cash Balance Plan

Final Compensation: Highest 3 fiscal years 
(must contain at least 24 
months).  Includes lump-
sum compensation 
payments (before and at 
retirement).

3 highest salaries; each year 
must contain 12 months.   Lump-
sum compensation payments 
(before and at retirement) are not 
to be included in creditable 
compensation.

No Final Compensation

Benefit Factor: 2.49% 10 years or less = 1.30%.  Greater 
than 10 years, but no more than 
20 years = 1.50%.  Greater than 
20 years, but no more than 25 
years = 2.25%.  Greater than 25 
years = 2.50%.   

No benefit factor.  A life 
annuity can be calculated 
in accordance with 
actuarial assumptions and 
methods adopted by the 
board based on member’s 
accumulated account 
balance. 

Cost of Living 
Adjustment 
(COLA):

Unreduced 
Retirement 
Benefit:

Any age with 20 years of 
service.  Age 55 with 60 
months of service.  

Any age with 25 years of 
service.  Age 60 with 5 years of 
service.  

Any age with 25 years of 
service.  Age 60 with 5 
years of service.  

Age 50 with 15 years of 
service.

Age 50 with 15 years of service. No reduced retirement 
benefit

Reduced Retirement 
Benefit:

Final Compensation X Benefit Factor X Years of Service

No COLA unless authorized by the Legislature with specific criteria. This impacts all retirees 
regardless of Tier.

Contributions- Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute. Per Kentucky Revised Statute 61.565 
contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating organizations are established and may be 
amended by the KRS Board.  For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, University employees were 
required to contribute 5 percent of their annual covered salary for retirement benefits.  The University’s required 
contribution percentage rates per covered payroll for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 

2019 2018

Nonhazardous pension plan 41.06% 41.06%

Hazardous pension plan 34.39% 21.44%

The required contribution is actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, 
is expected to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance 
any unfunded accrued liability.  The University’s total required contribution to the KERS nonhazardous pension 
plan for the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $14,162,000 and $14,596,000, respectively.  The required 
contribution to the KERS hazardous pension plan for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $256,000 and 
$180,000, respectively. 
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Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions - At June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, the University reported a liability of $313,460,000 and 
$314,022,000, for its proportionate share of the nonhazardous net pension liability.  The University’s hazardous 
pension liability was $1,952,000 and $1,844,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The net 
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The University’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the University’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the 
University’s proportion was 2.304 percent and 2.345 percent for nonhazardous and .386 percent and .371 percent for 
hazardous, respectively. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University recognized nonhazardous pension expense of 
$36,422,000 and $43,243,000; and hazardous pension expense of $356,000 and $308,000,respectively.   

At June 30, 2019, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Nonhazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,233$     877$        
Change of assumptions 13,999      -       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  299     -  
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions - 5,689 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 14,162      -  

Hazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience 100     -       
Change of assumptions 177     -       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  (24)     -       
Change in proportionate share
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions 45  40     
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 256     -       
Total 31,247$         6,606$          
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At June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred
 Outflows  Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Nonhazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience 56$       2,022$         
Change of assumptions 39,841      -      
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  1,519   -     
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions -      7,041    
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 14,596      -     

Hazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience 70   -      
Change of assumptions 339      -      
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  20   -      
Change in proportionate share
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions 7     109  
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 180      -      
Total 56,628$          9,172$         

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University reported $14,418,000 and $14,776,000, respectively, as deferred outflows 
of resources related to pensions resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2019, related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ending June 30
2020 11,091$    
2021 (13)           
2022 (650)         
2023 (205)         

10,223$    
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Pension Actuarial assumptions – The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement for 
nonhazardous and hazardous pensions. 

Nonhazardous Hazardous 
Inflation 2.30% 2.30%
Salary Increases 3.05%, average, including 

inflation
3.05%, average, including 
inflation

Investment Rate of Return 5.25%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, 
including inflation

6.25%, net of pension plan 
investment expense, 
including inflation

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females).  For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality 
table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (setback one year for 
females).  For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(setback four years for males) is used for the period after disability retirement.   

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared every 
five years for the System.  The most recent actuarial experience study was for the period July 1, 2008 through  
June 30, 2013.  The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which 
best estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class.  The ranges are 
combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.  The KRS 
Board of Trustees plans to have the next experience study conducted using the plan’s experience for the five-year 
period ended June 30, 2018.  The actuarial assumptions that result from that experience study will be first used to 
prepare the June 30, 2019 valuation.   

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return
US equity
  US large cap 8.50% 4.50%
  US mid cap 5.00% 4.50%
  US small cap 4.00% 5.50%
Non US equity
 International developed 12.50% 6.50%
  Emerging markets 5.00% 7.25%
Global bonds 10.00% 3.00%
Credit fixed
 Global IG credit 10.00% 3.75%
 High yield 3.00% 5.50%
  Emerging market debt 4.00% 6.00%
Private equity 10.00% 6.50%
Real estate 5.00% 7.00%
Absolute return 10.00% 5.00%
Real return 10.00% 5.00%
Cash 3.00% 1.50%

 Total 100.00%

Nonhazardous
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Asset Class
Target 

Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

US equity
 US large cap 5.00% 4.50%
  US mid cap 6.00% 4.50%
 US small cap 6.50% 5.50%
Non US equity
 International developed 12.50% 6.50%
  Emerging markets 5.00% 7.25%
Global bonds 4.00% 3.00%
Credit fixed
 Global IG credit 2.00% 3.75%
 High yield 7.00% 5.50%
 Emerging market debt 5.00% 6.00%
 Illiquid private 10.00% 8.50%
Private equity 10.00% 6.50%
Real estate 5.00% 9.00%
Absolute return 10.00% 5.00%
Real return 10.00% 7.00%
Cash 2.00% 1.50%
 Total 100.00%

Hazardous

Pension Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25 percent for the 
nonhazardous plan, and 6.25 percent for the hazardous plan.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of 
projected compensation over the remaining 25 year (closed) amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability.  As the assets are deemed sufficient to pay future benefits, the discount  rate determination does not use a 
municipal bond rate. 

Sensitivity of the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The 
University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability has been calculated using a discount rate of 5.25 percent 
for the nonhazardous and 6.25 percent for hazardous. The following presents the University’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability calculated using a discount rate 1 percent higher and 1 percent lower than the current rate (in 
thousands): 

1%  Decrease  Current Discount 1%  Increase

(4.25% ) Rate (5.25% ) (6.25% )
Nonhazardous
Proportionate share of the 
Collective Net Pension Liability 357,102$   313,460$   277,111$    

1%  Decrease  Current Discount 1%  Increase

(5.25% ) Rate (6.25% ) (7.25% )
Hazardous
Proportionate share of the 
Collective Net Pension Liability 2,498$       1,952$     1,499$     
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Payable to the pension plan - The University reported payables of $1,331,000 and $1,637,000 for the outstanding 
amount of employer contributions to the pension plan required for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively.   

Effective July 1, 2010, KRS 61.546 states “the value of any accumulated sick leave that is added to the member’s 
service credit in the KERS on or after July 1, 2010, shall be paid to the retirement system by the last participating 
KERS employer based upon a formula adapted by the Board.”  The KERS sick leave liability as of June 30, 2019 
and 2018 was $720,000 and $763,000, respectively. 

c. Compensated Absences
University employees begin to accumulate annual vacation allowance from the initial date of employment; however,
no vacation is granted until three months of continuous employment have been completed.  The maximum
accumulation of vacation leave is limited to the number of days that can be accumulated in twelve months, based
upon length of service and employment classification.  Eligible employees are paid their accumulated vacation upon
termination, subject to certain limitations.  At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University had recognized an accrued
vacation liability of $3,111,000 and $3,020,000, respectively.

Note 8 – Other Post-Employment Benefits 

a. Defined-Benefit Plan
Plan Description - The University contributes to the KRS Insurance Fund, a cost sharing multiple employer defined
benefit other post-employment plan (the OPEB plan), which was established to provide hospital and medical
insurance for eligible members receiving benefits from KERS.  The OPEB plan pays a prescribed contribution for
whole or partial payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical insurance.  The OPEB plan is
administered by the Board of Trustees of the KRS.  Benefit provisions are contained in the plan document and were
established and can be amended by action of the Commonwealth of Kentucky Legislature.  KERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  That report
may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road,
Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601-6124 or by calling (502) 696-8800.

Benefits Provided – 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
Participation Prior to Participation Participation on or after

7/1/2003 7/1/2003 through 8/31/2008 9/1/2008

OPEB eligibility: Recipient of a retirement 
allowance

Recipient of a retirement 
allowance, with at least 
120 months of service at 
retirement

Recipient of a retirement 
allowance, with at least 
180 months of service at 
retirement

OPEB benefit: Allowance for medical insurance 
coverage based on years and 
type of service.  Less than 4 years 
= 0%.  At least 4 years, but less 
than 10 = 25%.  At least 10 years, 
but less than 15 = 50%.  At least 
15 years, but less than 20 = 75%.  
20 or more years = 100%.

Cost of Living 
Adjustment 
(COLA):

N/A

Nonhazardous

Monthly contribution of $10 for each year of earned service.

Monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. 
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Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
Participation Prior to Participation Participation on or after

7/1/2003 7/1/2003 through 8/31/2008 9/1/2008

OPEB eligibility: Recipient of a retirement 
allowance

Recipient of a retirement 
allowance, with at least 
120 months of service at 
retirement

Recipient of a retirement 
allowance, with at least 
180 months of service at 
retirement

OPEB benefit: Allowance for medical insurance 
coverage based on years and 
type of service.  Less than 4 years 
= 0%.  At least 4 years, but less 
than 10 = 25%.  At least 10 years, 
but less than 15 = 50%.  At least 
15 years, but less than 20 = 75%.  
20 or more years = 100%.

Cost of Living 
Adjustment 
(COLA):

N/A

Hazardous

Monthly contribution of $15 for each year of earned service.

Monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. 

Contributions- Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute. Per Kentucky Revised Statute 61.565 
contribution requirements of the participating organizations are established and may be amended by the KRS Board. 
Employees with a participation date after 9/1/2008 were required to contribute 1 percent of their covered salary for 
retiree healthcare benefits.  The University’s required contribution percentage rates per covered payroll for the years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:  

2019 2018

Nonhazardous OPEB plan 8.41% 8.41%

Hazardous OPEB plan 2.46% 2.26%

The required contributions to the KERS nonhazardous OPEB plan for the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 were 
$2,901,000 and $2,989,000, respectively.  The required contributions to the KERS hazardous OPEB plan for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $18,000 and $19,000, respectively. 

OPEB assets and liabilities, OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB - At June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, the University reported a liability of $54,583,000 and 
$59,481,000 for its proportionate share of the nonhazardous net OPEB liability.  The University’s hazardous net 
OPEB asset was $128,216 for the year ended June 30, 2019.  The University’s hazardous net OPEB liability was 
$22,000 for the year ended June 30, 2018.  The total OPEB liability and net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2018 were 
based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2017.  The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net was rolled 
forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 using generally accepted actuarial 
principles.  The University’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the University’s actual contributions 
to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers for the measurement period.  At  
June 30, 2019 and 2019, respectively, the University’s proportion was 2.302 and 2.345 percent for nonhazardous 
and 0.387 and 0.371 percent for hazardous. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, the University recognized nonhazardous OPEB expense 
of $4,182,000 and  $5,690,000 and hazardous OPEB expense of $46,000 and $49,000. 
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At June 30, 2019, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred
 Outflows  Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Nonhazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience -$ 3,564$   
Change of assumptions 5,738  206   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  - 800 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions - 1,246 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,395  -   

Hazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience - 104
Change of assumptions 235   2
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  - 102
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions - 14
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 20  -
Total 9,388$   6,038$   

The OPEB contribution amounts include an implicit subsidy of $495,000 for nonhazardous and $1,000 for 
hazardous for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

At June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands): 

Deferred Deferred
 Outflows  Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Nonhazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience -$  74$     
Change of assumptions 7,788  -   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  - 770 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions - 437 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,989  -  

Hazardous
Differences between expected and actual experience -  3  
Change of assumptions 279  -   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments  - 80
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions 
    and proportionate share of contributions -  3
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 19  -   
Total 11,075$   1,367$    
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At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University reported $3,415,000 and $3,008,000 as deferred outflows of resources 
related to OPEB resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized 
as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the following year.  This amount includes the implicit subsidy amount of 
$496,000.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 
2019, related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ending June 30
2020 358$     
2021 357   
2022 357   
2023 (1,124)   
2024 (6)  
Thereafter (7)  

(65)$      

Actuarial assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement for nonhazardous and 
hazardous OPEB. 

Inflation 2.30%
Salary increases 3.05%, average, including inflation
Payroll growth rate 0.00%
Health care cost trend rates
 Pre-65 Initial trend starting at 7.00% at January 1, 2020 and gradually 

decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 
12 years.

 Post-65 Initial trend starting at 5.00% at January 1, 2020 and gradually 
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05 over a period of 
10 years.

Investment Rate of Return 6.25%
Mortality

RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table, projected with Scale BB 
to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females.

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females).  For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality 
table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females).  
For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 
4 years for males) is used for the period after disability retirement.  There is some margin in the current mortality 
table for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next 
experience investigation is conducted.  

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB Plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return
US large cap equity 5.00% 4.50%
US mid cap equity 6.00% 4.50%
US small cap equity 6.50% 5.50%
International developed equity 12.50% 6.50%
Emerging markets equity 5.00% 7.25%
Global bonds 4.00% 3.00%
Global IG credit 2.00% 3.75%
High yield fixed credit 7.00% 5.50%
EMD fixed credit 5.00% 6.00%
Illiquid private 10.00% 8.50%
Private credit 10.00% 6.50%
Real estate 5.00% 9.00%
Absolute return 10.00% 5.00%
Real return 10.00% 7.00%
Cash 2.00% 1.50%
   Total 100.00% 6.09%

OPEB Asset Allocations

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.86% for the nonhazardous plan, 
and 5.88% for the hazardous plan.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the 
remaining 25 years (closed) amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.  The discount rate 
determination used as expected rate of return of 6.25%, a municipal rate of 3.62%, as reported in Fidelity Index’s 
“20 -Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2018.  However, the cost associated with the implicit employer 
subsidy was not included in the calculation of the System’s actuarial determined contributions, and any cost 
associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the System’s trusts.  Therefore, the municipal bond rate 
was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy. 

Sensitivity of the University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The 
University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset and liability has been calculated using a discount rate of 
5.86% for the nonhazardous and 5.88% for hazardous.  The following presents the University’s share of the net 
OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the current rate (in thousands): 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Increase

(4.86% ) Rate (5.86% ) (6.86% )
Non-hazardous
Proportionate share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability 64,041$     54,583$         46,711$       

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Increase

(4.87% ) Rate (5.88% ) (6.88% )
Hazardous
Proportionate share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability (asset) 129$          (128)$   (334)$  
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Sensitivity of the University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset and liability to changes in the health care 
cost trend rates - The University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset and liability has been calculated using 
an initial pre-65 health care trend rate of 7.00%, gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a 
period of 12 years.  The post-65 health care trend rate starts at 5.00%, gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate 
of 4.05% over a period of 10 years. 

Current Health

1% Care Cost 1%

Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Non-hazardous

Proportionate share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability 46,407$     54,583$         64,415$       

Current Health

1% Care Cost 1%

Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Hazardous

Proportionate share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability (asset) (329)$        (128)$        120$      

OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued plan annual report. 

Payable to the OPEB plan - The University reported payables of $269,000 and $333,000 for the outstanding amount 
of employer contributions to the OPEB plan required for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Note 9 – Operating Expenses By Natural Classification 

The University’s operating expenses by natural classification are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 
(in thousands): 

2019 2018

Salaries and wages  $   99,830  $   99,919 

Employee benefits-pension and OPEB  41,157   49,510 

Employee benefits-other  28,779   27,602 

Utilities  5,499  5,414 

Supplies and other services  36,827   38,322 

Depreciation  21,893   20,069 

Student scholarships and financial aid  17,165   15,134 

 Total  $   251,150  $   255,970 

Note 10 – Risk Management 

The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  These risks are covered by (1) the State Fire and 
Tornado Insurance Fund (the Fund), (2) Sovereign Immunity and the Kentucky Claims Commission, or (3) in the 
case of risks not covered by the Fund and Sovereign Immunity, commercial insurance, participation in insurance 
risk retention groups or self-insurance. 
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The Fund covers losses to property from fire, wind, earthquake, flood (all perils) and most other causes of loss 
between $5,000 and $1 million per occurrence.  Losses in excess of $1 million are insured by commercial carriers up 
to $1.5 billion per occurrence with buildings insured at replacement cost and contents on a replacement value basis. 
As a state agency, the University is vested with Sovereign Immunity and is subject to the provisions of the Claims 
Commission Act, under which the University’s liability for certain negligence claims is limited to $250,000 for any 
one person or $400,000 for all persons damaged by a single act of negligence.  Claims against educators’ errors and 
omissions and wrongful acts are insured through a reciprocal risk retention group.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from 2018 to 2019.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the 
past three years. 

The University began self-insuring employee health insurance as of January 1, 2014.  Accrued expenses are based 
on the estimated costs of health care claims based on claims filed subsequent to year end and an additional amount 
for incurred but not yet reported claims based on prior experience.  The University purchases both specific and 
aggregate stop loss coverage on medical and prescription drug claims.  The stop loss insurance limits its exposure 
for claims to $250,000 per individual and 125 percent of projected aggregate claims.   

The health self-insurance liability as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 is detailed below (in thousands): 

2019 2018

Liability, beginning of year 1,383$    1,415$       
Claims and changes in estimates 15,824  13,992  

Claims paid (15,854)   (14,024)   
Liability, end of year 1,353$    1,383$       

The University also self-insures certain other employee benefits, including worker’s compensation claims to the 
extent not covered by insurance.  The University has recorded an estimate for asserted claims at June 30, 2019. 

Note 11 – Contingencies 

The University is a party to various litigation and other claims in the ordinary course of business. University 
officials are of the opinion, based upon the advice of legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of these matters will 
not have a material effect on the financial position of the University.  

Note 12 - Restricted Net Position 
At June 30, 2019 and 2018, restricted expendable net position was available for the following purposes: 

2019 2018

Appreciation on permanent endowments 5,830$    5,816$    
Advance funded capital projects (4,875)  (1,949)  
Capital projects and debt service 1,801   1,000   
Funds restricted for noncapital purposes 225  209  

2,981$    5,076$    
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Note 13 – Blended Entity Condensed Financial Information 

Condensed financial information for Northern Kentucky University Research Foundation (NKURF) is provided 
below for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):      

2019 2018
ASSETS

Current assets 1,225$      1,161$       
Noncurrent assets 11,250     11,730   
  Total assets 12,475     12,891   

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 256  279    
Due to the University - current 104  77   
Noncurrent liabilities 11,250     11,730   

 Total liabilities 11,610     12,086   

NET POSITION
Restricted expendable 9   4     

Unrestricted 856  801    
  Total net position 865$     805$      

Condensed Statements of  Net Position

2019 2018
OPERATING REVENUES

  Grants and contracts 1,884$       2,267$     
  Recoveries of facilities and administrative costs 179   179  
  Total operating revenues 2,063   2,446  

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Educational and general 1,897   2,279  
  Total operating expenses 1,897   2,279  

   Net income (loss) from operations 166   167  

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
  Non-capital transfers (to)/from the University (116) (206)
  Gifts and grants revenues (expenses) 10 -                
  Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (106) (206)

   Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses 60  (39)  

  Capital transfers (to) the University - (6) 
  Total other revenues (expenses) - (6) 

   Increase (decrease) in net position 60  (45)  

NET POSITION
Net position-beginning of year 805   850  
Net position-end of year 865$    805$     

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
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2019 2018
  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 134$    471$      
  Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (531) (1,110) 
  Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities - (6) 
  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (397) (645) 
  Cash and cash equivalents-beginning of year 12,674  13,319 
  Cash and cash equivalents-end of year 12,277$    12,674$    

Condensed Statements of  Cash Flows

Note 14 – Northern Kentucky University Foundation, Inc. Notes to Financial Statements 

Selected disclosures from the Foundation are included as follows: 

a. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Scope of Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Northern Kentucky Foundation, Inc. include the operations of the
Foundation and several single member limited liability companies.  All material intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

2. Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) which require management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from those
estimates.  The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies consistently followed by the
Foundation in preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

These statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, and have been prepared to focus on the 
Foundation as a whole and to present transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions.  This has been accomplished by classification of balances and transactions into two classes of net assets 
– with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions.

Net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

 With donor restrictions - Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor restrictions.  Some
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor.  Other restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources by
maintained in perpetuity.

 Without donor restrictions – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are available
for use in general operations.  The governing board has designated, from net assets without donor
restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated endowment.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets is limited 
by donor-imposed restrictions.  Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions.  Gains and 
losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor 
restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.  Restricted contributions and net 
investment returns earned are reported as with donor restrictions and reclassified as without donor restricted when any 
donor-imposed restrictions are satisfied. Expirations of donor restrictions on net assets are met when a donor stipulated 
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions 
and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restriction. 
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Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received.  
Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.  
Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value.  Contributions receivable are 
discounted at an appropriate rate commensurate with the risks involved.  Amortization of the discount is recorded as 
additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions.  An allowance 
for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided based upon management’s judgment of such factors as prior 
collection history, type of contribution and nature of the fund-raising activity. 

Income and realized net gains on long-term investments are reported as follows: 

 As increases in net assets with donor restrictions – if the terms of the gift require that they be added to the
principal of a permanent endowment fund or if the terms of the gift impose restrictions on the use of the
income. 

 As increases in net assets without donor restrictions – in all other cases.

Change in accounting principle: 

In 2019, the Foundation, adopted ASU 2016-14, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958):  Presentation of Financial 
Statements of Not-For-Profit Entities.  A summary of the changes is as follows: 

Statement of Financial Position 

 The statement of financial position distinguishes between two new classes of net assets—those with donor-
imposed restrictions and those without.  This is a change from the previously required three classes of net
assets—unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted.

 Underwater donor-restricted endowment funds are shown within the donor-restricted net asset class.  This
is a change from the previously required classification as unrestricted net assets.

Statement of Activities 

 Expenses are reported by both nature and function in one location.

 Investment income is shown net of external and direct internal investment expenses.  Disclosure of the
expenses netted against investment income is no longer required.

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 Enhanced quantitative and qualitative disclosures provide additional information useful in assessing
liquidity and cash flows available to meet operating expenses for one-year from the date of the Statement of
Financial Position.

 Amounts and purposes of Governing Board designations and appropriations as of the end of the period are
disclosed.

This change had no impact on previously reported total change in net assets. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes all readily available sources of cash such as petty cash, demand deposits and
temporary investments in marketable securities with maturities of less than three months.  Cash and cash equivalents
representing investments purchased with endowment net assets are reported as investments.

At various times throughout the year, the Foundation has cash in certain financial institutions in excess of insured 
limits.  Additionally, at June 30, 2019 and 2018, $2,123,000 and $3,305,000, respectively, was collateralized or 
insured with securities held by the financial institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Foundation’s name. 
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At June 30, 2019 and 2018, balances of $7,232,000 and $10,491,000, respectively, was neither insured nor 
collateralized.   

4. Loans and Accounts Receivable
Loans receivable consists primarily of loans made to students under privately funded loan programs.  The advances
are evidenced by signed promissory notes, bearing interest at varying stated interest rates, with varying due dates.
Loans, accounts and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances.  Management provides for a probable uncollectible allowance based on its assessment of the current status
of individual accounts.  Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts
are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.  The allowance for
doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was approximately $39,000 and $120,000, respectively.

5. Investments
Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all debt securities are reported at their fair
value.  The estimated fair value of investments is based on quoted market prices, except for investments for which
quoted market prices are not available.  The alternative investments, which are not readily marketable, are carried at
estimated fair values as provided by the investment managers.  The estimated fair value of certain alternative
investments, such as private equity interests, is based on valuations provided by the external investment managers
adjusted for cash receipts, cash disbursements and distributions.  The Foundation believes the carrying amount of
these financial instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value.  Because alternative investments are not readily
marketable, their estimated value is subject to uncertainty and therefore may differ from the value that would have
been used had a ready market for such investments existed.  Such difference could be material.

The Foundation invests its endowment investment portfolio and allocates the related earnings for expenditure in 
accordance with the total return concept.  A distribution of endowment return that is independent of the cash yield 
and appreciation (depreciation) of investments earned during the year is provided for program support.   

The Foundation has significant exposure to a number of risks including interest rate, market and credit risks for both 
marketable and nonmarketable securities.  Due to the level of risk exposure, it is possible that near-term valuation 
changes for investment securities may occur to an extent that could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
Foundation’s consolidated financial statements. 

All true endowment investments and long-term net assets functioning as endowments are managed in a pool, unless 
special considerations or donor stipulations require that they be held separately. 

6. Land and Land Improvements
At June 30, 2019 and 2018, land and land improvements (in thousands) consisted of:

2019 2018
Type of Asset:

  Land 178$        178$       
  Land held for sale 17   -    
  Land held for future use by the University 145    162    
  Land improvements 208    208    

Total land and land improvements 548$        548$       

Assets acquired for Foundation use with a useful life greater than one year and a value of $5,000 or more are 
capitalized.  Annual depreciation for land improvements is calculated on a straight-line basis, beginning in the 
month of acquisition based on a useful life of 30 years.  At June 30, 2019 and 2018, all land improvements were 
fully depreciated.   
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Assets purchased or constructed through the Foundation for immediate use by Northern Kentucky University are 
recorded by the Foundation as a program expense. 

At June 30, 2019, a parcel of land with a cost basis of approximately $17,000 previously held for future used by the 
University was reclassified as land held for sale. 

7. Transfers Between Fair Value Hierarchy Levels
Transfers in and out of Level 1 (quoted market prices), Level 2 (other significant observable inputs) and Level 3
(significant unobservable inputs) are recognized on the actual transfer date.

b. Unconditional and Conditional Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows.  The discounts are computed using a risk free interest rate and amortization of the 
discount is included in gifts and bequests revenue. 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation recognized contributions based on the following unconditional promises 
to give (in thousands): 

2019 2018
Purpose:

  Endowment giving  $    572  $   827 
 Capital purposes   - 2,050 
 Operating programs  2,699 1,794 

Gross unconditional promises  3,271  4,671 
  Less: Discount and allowance   
  for uncollectible accounts (259) (222)
  Net unconditional promises to give  $   3,012  $   4,449 

Amounts due in:
 Less than one year  $   1,204  $   3,125 
 One to five years  2,067  1,516 
  More than five years - 30 

Total  $   3,271  $   4,671 

The discount rates used to calculate the present value of contributions receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018 vary from 
1.2 percent to 3.4 percent depending on when the promise was made.      

Conditional promises to give are not included as support until such time as the conditions are substantially met.  The 
Foundation had received conditional promises to give of approximately $3.1 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
consisting of the face value of life insurance policies, net of accumulated cash surrender value, as well as a conditional 
promise of $2.1 million from a single donor in 2019 and 2018.  

Approximately 25 percent of total pledges receivable were due from one donor at June 30, 2019. Approximately 44 
percent of total pledges receivable were due from one donor at June 30, 2018. 
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c. Fair Value Measurements

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under generally accepted accounting principles are described as follows: 

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as: 

 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;

 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

 Other inputs that are observable for the asset or liability;

 Other inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to 
the fair value measurement.  

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value: 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the 
valuation hierarchy.   
Level 1 investments include short term money market funds, cash surrender value, fixed income funds and equity 
funds.   

Level 2 investments are based on quoted prices of securities or other property with similar characteristics and 
include a remainder interest in real property subject to a life estate.   

Level 3 investments include those in which there is no active market.  The Foundation holds no Level 3 investments 
at June 30, 2019 or 2018.  The Foundation adopted Accounting Standards Update 2015-07 which eliminates the 
requirement that investments valued using the net asset value expedient be categorized as Level 2 or 3.  These 
investments are now shown in a separate column on the table below.  This treatment was applied retrospectively.   
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The following assets were measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019 (in thousands): 

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable Investments

Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) NAV

June 30, 2019

Type of Investment:

Short-term money market funds 9$    9$          -$    -$  -$     

Cash surrender value 445   445     - -   -    

Fixed income funds:

  Core 3,617    3,617  -  -   -    

  Core plus 6,553    6,553  -  -   -    

  Global 1,834    1,834  -  -   -    

 Treasury inflation protected 

       Securities 1,664    1,664  -  -   -    

Equity funds:

  Large/mid-cap - broad 25,734  25,734    -  -   -    

  Large/mid-cap - value 7,497    7,497  -  -   -    

  Small cap - growth 1,697    1,697  -  -   -    

  Small cap - value 1,944    1,944  

  International - core 7,875    7,875  -  -   -    

  International - value 3,768    3,768  -  -   -    

  International small cap - value 2,640    2,640  -  -   -    

  Emerging markets - value 4,886    4,886  -  -   -    

  Emerging markets - small cap 4,325    4,325  -  -   -    

  Real estate investment trust 23     23   -  -   -    

  Exchange traded funds 101   101     -  -   -    

Remainder interest in real property and other 685   - 685 -   -    

Public natural resources-master limited partnerships 2,946    - - -   2,946     

Private equity 7,725    - - -   7,725     

Private debt 2,443    - - -   2,443     

Natural resources 10,035  - - -   10,035   

Private real estate 2,083    - - -   2,083     

Low-volatility 6,707    - - -   6,707     

  Total 107,236$      74,612$         685$     -$   31,939$    

Fair Value Measurements Using
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The following assets were measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018 (in thousands): 

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable Investments

Assets Inputs Inputs Measured at

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) NAV

June 30, 2018

Type of Investment:

Short-term money market funds 8$    8$       -$     -$  -$    

Cash surrender value 429     429    - -     -   

Fixed income funds: -  

   Core 1,611  1,611     -    -     -   

   Core plus 4,422  4,422     -    -     -   

   Global 1,737  1,737     -    -     -   

   Treasury inflation protected 

       Securities 1,589  1,589     -    -     -   

Equity funds:

   Large/mid-cap - broad 23,443    23,443   -    -     -   

   Large/mid-cap - value 7,056  7,056     -    -     -   

   Small cap - growth 1,563  1,563     -    -     -   

   Small cap - value 2,181  2,181     -    -     -   

   International - core 7,727  7,727     -    -     -   

   International - value 3,608  3,608     -    -     -   

   International small cap - value 2,984  2,984     -    -     -   

   Emerging markets - value 4,793  4,793     -    -     -   

   Emerging markets - small cap 4,382  4,382     -    -     -   

   Real estate investment trust 18   18  -    -     -   

   Exchange traded funds 106     106    -    -     -   

Remainder interest in real property and other 685     - 685 -     -   

Public natural resources-master limited partnerships 3,103  - - -     3,103  

Fixed income high yield 1,794  - - -     1,794  

Private equity 7,127  - - -     7,127  

Private debt 3,012  - - -     3,012  

Natural resources 11,217    - - -     11,217    

Private real estate 2,072  - - -     2,072  

Low-volatility 10,283    - - -     10,283    

   Total 106,950$    67,657$      685$       -$   38,608$     

Fair Value Measurements Using
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d. Investments

The market value (in thousands) of the Foundation’s investments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are categorized by 
type below: 

2019 2018
Type of Investment:

   Short-term money market funds   9$    8$        
 Cash and cash surrender value 1,712   1,776  

   Fixed income funds:     
  Core 3,617   1,611  
  Core plus 6,553   4,422  
  Global 1,834   1,737  
  High yield -   1,794  

  Treasury inflation protected securities 1,664   1,589  
  Equity funds:
  Large/mid cap - broad 25,734   23,443  
  Large/mid cap - value 7,497   7,056  
  Small cap - growth 1,697   1,563  
  Small cap - value 1,944   2,181  
  International - core 7,875   7,727  
  International - value 3,768   3,608  
  International small cap - value 2,640   2,984  
  Emerging markets - value 4,886   4,793  
  Emerging markets - small cap 4,325   4,382  
  Real estate investment trust 23   18  
  Exchange traded funds 101   106  

  Public natural resources -master
    Limited partnerships 2,946   3,103  
  Remainder interest in real property and other 685   685  
  Private equity:
  Buyout 1,761   1,480  
  Diversified 1,586   1,844  
  Growth 503   -  
  Venture capital 1,728   1,352  
  Secondary 2,147   2,451  

  Private debt:
  Distressed 2,432   2,937  

     Mezzanine 11   75  
  Natural resources:
  Diversified 3,096   3,849  
  Energy 4,490   5,142  
  Commodities 2,449   2,226  

  Private real estate:
  Opportunistic 1,472   1,023  

     Value added 611   1,049  
  Low-volatility:
  Diversifiying strategies 6,707   10,283  

  Total investments 108,503$        108,297$       
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Investment return (in thousands) for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 consists of: 

2019 2018

  Interest and dividend income
  (net of investment fees:  2019 - $516, 2018 - $652) 2,420$       1,928$       
 Net realized gains 431  1,544   
  Net unrealized gains 1,010  3,537   

  Total investment return 3,861$       7,009$       

The Foundation records the cost of managing its endowment portfolio as a decrease in investment income within the 
appropriate net asset class in the consolidated statement of activities.  Some of the Foundation’s investment 
managers report investment transactions net of fees.   

The investments of the Foundation are commingled with certain investments which the Foundation holds in trust for 
Northern Kentucky University.  The market value of funds held in trust for the University at June 30, 2019 and 2018 
was approximately $13,446,000 and $13,431,000, respectively.  See Note 13g. for further explanation of the trust 
funds.   

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation had committed approximately $47,200,000 and $44,100,000, 
respectively, of its endowment investment resources to alternative investments, of which approximately $9,900,000 
and $9,500,000 million, respectively, had not yet been called by the investment managers.  Alternative investments 
for which commitments have been made consist of private equity/debt, natural resources, private real estate and low-
volatility. 

Alternative investments of the Foundation have limited marketability and the related investment agreements 
generally contain restrictive redemption provisions to the extent that the underlying investments should be 
considered illiquid for the duration of the investment through normal maturity.  Early redemption of such 
investments would likely result in recovery of significantly less than the original investment amount.  Foundation 
management believes the investment portfolio contains sufficient liquidity among other asset classes to make early 
redemption of alternative investments unlikely for reasons of meeting current spending needs. 

e. Endowments

The Foundation’s endowment consists of 333 individual funds established for a variety of purposes.  Its endowment 
includes both donor-restricted funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments 
(quasi-endowments).  Net assets associated with endowment funds, including quasi-endowments, are classified and 
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  The board, at their discretion, can at any 
time permit spending from the principal of any quasi-endowed fund, provided the expenditure complies with any 
donor-imposed restrictions related to the fund. 

Kentucky enacted the Kentucky Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (KUPMIFA), the 
provisions of which apply to endowment funds existing on or established after enactment, with an effective date of 
July 15, 2010.   

An interpretation of KUPMIFA provisions by the Foundation Board of Directors requires that the historical dollar 
amount of a donor-restricted endowment fund be preserved.  As a result of this requirement, the Foundation 
classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, 
and (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment.  In the absence of donor restrictions, the 
net appreciation on a donor-restricted endowment fund is spendable.  The net appreciation of donor-restricted 
endowment funds is classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for 
expenditure by the Foundation.    
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Under KUPMIFA, the Foundation endowment spending policy allows for prudent spending of future endowment 
earnings for accounts without accumulated earnings based upon consideration of the following factors, if applicable: 

Duration and preservation of the endowment fund 
Purpose of the institution and the endowment fund 
General economic conditions 
Possible effect of inflation or deflation 
Expected total return on investments 
Other resources of the institution 
Investment policy 

The approved annual endowment spending rate is reduced by a proportion of 5 percent for each 1 percent the 
affected endowment is below the value of original and subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment (i.e. principal).   

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters.  The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies, approved 
by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs 
supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of these endowment assets over the 
long-term.  The Foundation’s spending and investment policies work together to achieve this objective.  The 
investment policy establishes an achievable return objective through diversification of asset classes.  The current 
long-term return objective is to return a rate equal to the Consumer Price Index plus 5 percent, net of investment 
fees.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.   

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives.  To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation 
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized 
and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).  The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that 
includes fixed income investments as well as publicly traded equity-based investments and various alternative 
investment strategies to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk parameters.   

Spending Policy and How the Objectives Relate to Spending Policy.  The spending policy calculates the amount of 
money annually distributed from the Foundation’s various endowed funds, for grant making and administration.  
The current spending policy is to distribute an amount at least equal to 3-5 percent of a moving sixteen quarter 
average of the fair value of the endowment funds.  Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation expects its 
current spending policy to allow the Foundation to meet its objective to maintain the historical dollar amount of 
endowment assets as well as to provide additional real growth through investment return.  

Endowment net asset composition by type of endowment (in thousands) as of June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Without With Total Net
Donor Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Donor restricted endowment funds -$      83,991$   83,991$     
Quasi-endowment funds 2,687     6,121    8,808   

Total endowment funds 2,687$          90,112$      92,799$     
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Changes in endowment net assets (in thousands) as of June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Without With Total Net
Donor Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment net assets, beginning of year 2,614$          89,227$      91,841$     
Contributions collected - 1,215 1,215    
Investment income 64      2,161 2,225    
Net investment gain (loss) 31      1,128 1,159    
Amounts appropriated for expenditure (22) (3,642) (3,664)  
Reclassify to held in perpetuity - 23 23     

Endowment net assets, end of year 2,687$          90,112$      92,799$     

Endowment net asset composition by type of endowment (in thousands) as of June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Without With Total Net
Donor Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Donor restricted endowment funds -$     83,139$    83,139$     
Quasi-endowment funds 2,614     6,088     8,702    

Total endowment funds 2,614$          89,227$      91,841$     

Changes in endowment net assets (in thousands) as of June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Without With Total Net
Donor Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment net assets, beginning of year 2,449$          84,802$           87,251$          
Contributions collected - 1,185 1,185     
Investment income 50    1,726 1,776     
Net investment gain (loss) 136  4,682 4,818     
Amounts appropriated for expenditure (21) (3,261) (3,282)   
Reclassify to held in perpetuity - 93 93    

Endowment net assets, end of year 2,614$          89,227$           91,841$          

Funds with Deficiencies.  From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted 
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or KUPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund 
of perpetual duration.  There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018. 

f. Contingent Liabilities
Legal counsel for the Foundation have advised that they know of no pending or threatened litigation, claims or
assessments involving the Foundation that could have a material adverse financial effect on the Foundation.
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g. Regional University Excellence Trust Fund
The Foundation holds certain funds, consisting of endowment matching funds received by Northern Kentucky
University from the Commonwealth of Kentucky’s Regional University Excellence Trust Fund, which were
subsequently transferred to the Foundation for management and investment.  The Foundation reports these funds
and accumulated earnings as assets held in trust for the University.   Investment earnings, gains and losses and
expenditures from these funds are reported as changes in the balance held in trust rather than as revenue and
expenses of the Foundation.

h. Subsequent Events
Events occurring after June 30, 2019 have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements or disclosure through September 16, 2019, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued.

i. Related Party Transactions
During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation made payments on behalf of the University of
$327,000 and $320,000, respectively, for salaries, benefits, and other administrative costs for University staff that
directly support the Foundation’s operations.  These payments are made by agreement between the Foundation and
University.  As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately $4,000 and $5,000 was owed to the University for such
costs, respectively.

In support of University programs for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Foundation incurred program 
expenses of $12,175,000 and $8,885,000, respectively, which consisted of payments on behalf of the University of 
$4,570,000 and $4,128,000 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.  In addition, the Foundation transferred $7,605,000 and 
$4,757,000 to the University for restricted purposes in 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

j. Liquidity and Availability
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of June 30, 2019 and 2018, comprise the following (in thousands):

2019 2018
Cash and equivalents 4,227$            3,957$            
Accounts receivable 48            -    
Contributions receivable 876          649          
  Less allowance for uncollectible pledges (8) (13) 

5,143$            4,593$            

The Foundation receives significant contributions restricted by donors and considers contributions restricted for 
programs which are ongoing, major and central to its annual operations to be available to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures.  For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, restricted contributions of $868,000 and 
$636,000, respectively, were included in financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures 
within one year.  

The Foundation’s endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by the board as 
endowments.  Income from donor-restricted endowments is restricted for specific purposes, with the exception of 
the amounts available for general use.  Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general expenditure. 

The board-designated endowment of $7,970,000 is subject to an annual spending rate of 4.75 percent as described in 
Note 13e.  Although the Foundation does not intend to spend from this board-designated endowment (other than 
amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the Board’s annual budget approval and appropriation), 
these amounts could be made available if necessary.   
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The Foundation manages its liquidity and reserves following three guiding principles: operating within a prudent 
range of financial soundness and stability, maintaining adequate liquid assets to fund near-term operating needs and 
maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term obligations will be discharged. The 
Foundation’s Finance and Audit Committee reviews the liquidity policy annually and the summarized financial 
reports at its regular meetings.   

k. Schedule of Functional Expenses

The Foundation accounts for expenses in both natural classification categories and functional area categories. The 
summaries of these for the year ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 are as follows (in thousands): 

Schedule of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended 6/30/19
(in thousands)

Instruction 655$                  3$  37$                   262$               -$ 957$               
Research 47 - 1 12                   - 60
Public service 40 - 8 834                 - 882
Libraries - - - 23                   - 23
Academic support 477 - 69 358                 - 904
Student services 438 101 20 372                 - 931
Institutional support 668 - 81 392                 - 1,141
University facilities and equipment acquisition - 5,177 - 119 - 5,296
Student financial aid - - - - 1,925 1,925
Other program expenses and losses - - - 122                 - 122
Total program expenses 2,325$               5,281$                216$                 2,494$            1,925$                    12,241$          
Management and general 327 - 92 57                   - 476
Fund raising support - - - 281                 - 281
Rental property - - 12 5 - 17
Total support expenses 327$                  -$  104$                 343$               774$               
Total expenses and losses 2,652$               5,281$                320$                 2,837$            1,925$                    13,015$          

 Subgranted to 
NKU-Payroll 

 Subgranted to 
NKU-Other 

 Contracted 
Services  Operating 

 Scholarships & 
Awards Total

Schedule of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended 6/30/18
(in thousands)

Instruction 347$          -$         91$       255$       -$        693$   
Research 33          - -         5        - 38
Public service 30          - 59 86      - 175
Libraries -    -        - 40      - 40
Academic support 290        25     114 296    - 725
Student services 216        25     - 283 - 524
Institutional support 606        - 43 353 - 1,002
University facilities and equipment acquisition - 2,984 13 190 - 3,187
Student financial aid - - - -         2,469   2,469
Other program expenses and losses - - - 32 - 32
Total program expenses 1,522$       3,034$                320$        1,540$            2,469$           8,885$            
Management and general 320        - 61 47      - 428
Fund raising support -    -        - 179    - 179
Total support expenses 320$          -$         61$       226$       -$        607$   
Total expenses and losses 1,842$       3,034$                381$        1,766$            2,469$           9,492$            

 Scholarships & 
Awards Total

 Subgranted to 
NKU-Payroll 

 Subgranted to 
NKU-Other 

 Contracted 
Services  Operating  
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l. Future Changes in Accounting Principles

Revenue Recognition 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board amended its standards related to revenue recognition.  This amendment 
replaces all existing revenue recognition guidance and provides a single, comprehensive revenue recognition model 
for all contracts with customers.  The guidance provides a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and 
how revenue is recognized.  Other major provisions include capitalization of certain contract costs, consideration of 
the time value of money in the transaction price and allowing estimates of variable consideration to be recognized 
before contingencies are resolved in certain circumstances. 

The amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and 
cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in those judgments and 
assets recognized from costs incurred to fulfill a contract.  The standard allows either full or modified retrospective 
adoption effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and any interim periods within annual 
reporting periods that begin after December 15, 2019.  The Foundation is in the process of evaluating the impact the 
amendment will have on the consolidated financial statements. 

Contributions Received and Contributions Made 

On June 21, 2018, FASB issued ASU 2018-08.  This standard clarifies existing guidance on determining whether a 
transaction with a resource provider, e.g., the receipt of funds under a government grant or contract, is a contribution 
or an exchange transaction.  The guidance requires all organizations to evaluate whether the resource provider is 
receiving commensurate value in a transfer of assets transaction, and whether contributions are conditional or 
unconditional.  

If commensurate value is received by the resource provider, the transaction would be accounted for as an exchange 
transaction by applying Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, or other topics.  The standard clarifies 
that a resource provider is not synonymous with the general public.  Indirect benefit received by the public as a 
result of the assets transferred is not equivalent to commensurate value received by the resource provider.  If 
commensurate value is not received by the resource provider, i.e., the transaction is nonexchange, the recipient 
organization would record the transaction as a contribution under Topic 958 and determine whether the contribution 
is conditional or unconditional. 

FASB expects that the new standard could result in more grants and contracts being accounted for as contributions 
(often conditional contributions) than under current generally accepted accounting principles.  Because of this, it 
believes the clarifying guidance about whether a contribution is conditional or unconditional, which affects the 
timing of revenue recognition, is important.  Both the recipient and resource provider would equally apply the 
guidance. 

The new standard will be effective for the Foundation for reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 
2018.  The Foundation is evaluating the impact the standard will have on the consolidated financial statements. 

Accounting for Leases 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board amended its standard related to the accounting for leases. Under the new 
standard, lessees will now be required to recognize substantially all leases on the balance sheet as both a right-of-use 
asset and a liability.  The standard has two types of leases for income statement recognition purposes: operating 
leases and finance leases. Operating leases will result in the recognition of a single lease expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term similar to the treatment for operating leases under existing standards.  Finance leases will 
result in an accelerated expense similar to the accounting for capital leases under existing standards. The 
determination of lease classification as operating or finance will be done in a manner similar to existing standards. 
The new standard also contains amended guidance regarding the identification of embedded leases in service 
contracts and the identification of lease and nonlease components in an arrangement. The new standard is effective 
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and any interim periods within annual reporting periods that 
begin after December 15, 2019.  The Foundation is evaluating the impact the standard will have on the consolidated 
financial statements. 
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June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Nonhazardous
University's proportionate share of the net

  pension liability 2.304209% 2.345490% 2.403742% 2.447755% 2.489115%
University's proportionate share of the collective 

  net pension liability 313,460$        314,022$        274,014$       245,556$        223,319$           

University's covered-employee payroll 34,793$      37,584$          39,206$         37,799$      39,266$         

University's proportionate share of the net 

  pension liability as a percentage of its 
  covered-employee payroll 900.94% 835.52% 698.91% 649.64% 568.73%

Pension plan fiduciary net position as a %

  of the total pension liability 12.84% 13.30% 14.80% 18.83% 22.30%

Hazardous
University's proportionate share of the net

  pension liability 0.386465% 0.370876% 0.040113% 0.444514% 0.414511%

University's proportionate share of the collective 
  net pension liability 1,952$        1,844$        1,571$       1,524$        1,059$           

University's covered-employee payroll 591$      662$       637$          563$       535$          

University's proportionate share of the net 

  pension liability  as a percentage of its 

  covered-employee payroll 330.29% 278.50% 246.58% 270.64% 197.80%
Pension plan fiduciary net position as a %

  of the total pension liability 56.1% 54.80% 57.41% 61.70% 68.70%

*The amounts presented for the fiscal year were determined as of June 30 of the previous fiscal year (measurement date).

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present
information for those years which information is available.

Northern Kentucky University
       A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability
Kentucky Employees' Retirement System

(in thousands)
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June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Nonhazardous

Contractually required contribution 14,162$      14,596$            14,738$      12,069$            12,320$      

University's contributions in relation to the

    contractually required contribution 14,162    14,596       14,738    12,069       12,320    
Contribution deficiency -$    -$  -$   -$  -$         

Covered-employee payroll 34,491$      35,498$            36,626$      39,131$            39,948$      
Contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 41.06% 41.06% 40.24% 30.84% 30.84%

Hazardous
Contractually required contribution 256$     180$           170$     127$           136$     
University's contributions in relation to the

    contractually required contribution 256   180      170   127      136   
Contribution deficiency -$    -$  -$   -$  -$         

Covered-employee payroll 744$     838$           806$     776$           831$     

Contributions as a percentage of

    covered-employee payroll 34.39% 21.44% 21.08% 16.37% 16.37%

Notes to the schedule:

Changes in assumptions- In fiscal year 2018, the KERS nonhazardous investment rate and discount rate both decreased from 6.75% to 5.25%  The

KERS hazardous investment rate and discount rate both decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.  The estimated salary increases decreased from 4.00%

to 0.00% for the nonhazardous plan and from 4.00% to 2.00% for the hazardous plan.  The KERS plan inflation rate decreased from 3.25% to 2.30% for 

both the nonhazardous and hazardous plans.

*The amounts presented for the fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

** This is a 10-year schedule.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be added to this
schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is available.

Northern Kentucky University 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Schedule of University Pension Contributions
Kentucky Employees' Retirement System

(in thousands)
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June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Non-hazardous

2.302178% 2.345490%

 $       54,583  $      59,481 

 $       36,234  $      37,366 

150.64% 159.18%

27.32% 24.40%

0.386561% 0.370876%

 $      (128) $   22 
 $        736  $   635 

-17.43% 3.46%

106.83% 98.80%

*The amounts presented for the fiscal year were determined as of June 30, of the previous fiscal year (measurement date).

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend

is compiled, governments should present information for those years which information is available.

  of the total OPEB liability

University's proportionate share of the net 
  net OPEB liability (asset)

University's proportionate share of the net 

  OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of its 
  covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a %

University's covered-employee payroll

Hazardous
University's proportionate share of the net

  OPEB liability (asset)

University's proportionate share of the net
  OPEB liability (asset)

University's proportionate share of the net 

  net OPEB liability (asset)

University's covered-employee payroll
University's proportionate share of the net 

  OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of its 

  covered-employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a %

  of the total OPEB liability

Northern Kentucky University

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability
Kentucky Employees' Retirement System

(in thousands)

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
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June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Non-Hazardous
Contractually required contribution 2,901$      2,989$      
University's contributions in relation to the

    contractually required contribution 2,901    2,989  
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$   -$   

Covered-employee payroll 34,491$    35,548$      

Contributions as a percentage of
 covered-employee payroll 8.41% 8.41%

Hazardous
Contractually required contribution 18$      19$      

University's contributions in relation to the

    contractually required contribution 18    19  
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$   -$   

Covered-employee payroll 744$    838$      

Contributions as a percentage of

 covered-employee payroll 2.46% 2.26%

Northern Kentucky University and Affiliate

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Schedule of University OPEB Contributions

Kentucky Employees' Retirement System
(in thousands)

Notes to the Schedule:
Changes in assumptions - In fiscal year 2018, the KERS nonhazardous and hazardous investment rate decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.
The nonhazardous discount rate decreased from 6.90% to 5.83%, and the hazardous discount rate decreased from 7.20% to 5.87%.
The estimated salary increases decreased from 4.00% to 2.00% for both the nonhazardous and hazardous plans.  The KERS plan

added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is available.

* Employer contributions do not include the expected implicit subsidy.

* This is a 10-year schedule.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively.  Years will be

inflation rate decreased from 3.25% to 2.30% for both the nonhazardous and hazardous plans.  In fiscal year 2019, the KERS
nonhazardous discount rate increased from 5.83% to 5.86%; the KERS hazardous discount rate increased from 5.87% to 5.88%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-1 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the following academic affairs personnel actions receive Board of Regents approval: 

 

FACULTY APPOINTMENTS: 

 

Dr. Jitana Benton-Lee, assistant professor in the School of Nursing, College of Health and 

Human Services, effective August 12, 2019. 

 

Ms. Maren Carpenter-Fearing, assistant professor in the School of the Arts, College of Arts 

and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019. 

 

Mr. James Clark, lecturer in the Department of Learning Plus, Undergraduate Academic 

Affairs, effective August 12, 2019. 

 

Ms. Lynn Crane, academic advisor and lecturer in the Department of Biological Sciences, 

College of Arts and Sciences, effective October 1, 2019. 

 

Ms. Beth Hickey, lecturer in the School of Nursing, College of Health and Human Services, 

effective August 12, 2019. 

 

Mr. Douglas Ladd, professor of practice and entrepreneur in residence, Institute for Health 

Innovations, effective September 16, 2019.  

 

Ms. Amanda Laskowski, academic advisor and lecturer in the Integrative Studies Program, 

College of Arts and Sciences, effective October 1, 2019. 

 

Dr. Jennifer McLeod, clinical assistant professor in the School of Nursing, College of Health 

and Human Services, effective October 1, 2019. 

 

Ms. Courtney McManus, academic advisor and lecturer in School of the Arts, College of Arts 

and Sciences, effective August 12, 2019. 

 

Mini Vitas Follow 

 

TRANSITIONS: 

 

Mrs. Jill Liebisch, from information literacy fellow to library education advisor/recruiter in the 

W. Frank Steely Library, effective August 26, 2019 

 

Mini Vita Follows 

 

DEPARTURES: 

 

Ms. Brandi Neal, lecturer in the Department of Business Informatics, College of Informatics, 

effective December 31, 2019. 
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TEMPORARY FACULTY APPOINTMENTS: 

 

College of Arts and Sciences 

 

English    Dr. Christopher Collins  Academic Year 

Mathematics and Statistics  Mr. David Evans   Academic Year 

Music     Dr. Austin Seybert   Academic Year 

Music     Dr. William Herzog   Academic Year 

Music     Mr. Ashley Shepherd   Academic Year 

Theater and Dance   Ms. Anna Catton   Academic Year 

Visual Arts    Mr. John Matthew Overwine  Academic Year 

 

College of Health and Human Services 

 

Nursing    Ms. Anita Phillips   Academic Year 

     Ms. Amber Thomas   Academic Year 

Kinesiology    Dr. Jennifer Lape Kaiser  Academic Year 

     Mr. Keith Collins   Academic Year 

 

College of Informatics 

 

Business Informatics   Ms. Kathy Bennett   Academic Year 

 

Mini Vitas Follow 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:  Kathy Bennett 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: M.S. in Executive Leadership and Organizational Change, 2012, Northern Kentucky 

University 
 
  M.B.A., 1990, Xavier University 
 
  B.S. in Business Administration, Information Systems, 1985, Xavier University 
 
Experience: 2006-present, Director, IT Planning and Development, Northern Kentucky 

University 
 

2003-2006, Relationship Manager, Schneider Electric North American 
 
 1999-2003, Manager, Information Systems – Financial Systems, Schneider Electric 

North America 
  
 1997-1999, Project Leader, Schneider Electric North America 
  
 1994-1997, Systems Analyst, Schneider Electric North America 
  
 1990-1994, Systems Analyst, General Electric Aircraft Engine Group 
 
 1986-1990, Programmer/Analyst, General Electric Aircraft Engine Group 
  
 1985-1986, Programmer, General Electric Aircraft Engine Group 
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MINI VITA 

Name:  Jitana Benton-Lee 

Title:   Assistant Professor  

Education:  DNP in Nursing Practice, 2018, Northern Kentucky University 

  M.S. in Nursing, 2015, University of Phoenix 

  M.S. in Health Administration, 2015, University of Phoenix 

  B.S. in Nursing, 2005, Eastern Kentucky University 

  M.B.A., 2003, Sullivan University 

  B.A. in English, 2000, Northern Kentucky University 

Experience:  2019-present, Assistant Professor, Northern Kentucky University 

2012-2019, Patient Care Manager, University of Kentucky 

2010-2012, Clinical Manager Senior, University of Kentucky 

2009-2009, Interim Assistant Nurse Manager, Kosairs Children Hospital 

2008-2009, Nurse Manager, Cardinal Hill Rehabilitation Hospital 

2005-2008, Staff Nurse, Central Baptist Hospital 

2000-2003, Director of Graduate Employment Services, Associate Dean of Students 
& Adjunct Faculty, Sullivan University 

1995-2000, NKU Rocks! Coordinator & Mentor, Northern Kentucky University  

 

   

 
  

106



 

MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Maren Carpenter-Fearing 
 
Title:  Assistant Professor 
 
Education: M.D. in Design, 2011, University of Cincinnati 
 

B.S. in Graphic Design, 2003, University of Cincinnati 
 

Experience: 2016-2018, Assistant Professor, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2015-2016, Visiting Assistant Professor, Northern Kentucky University 
 
2015-2016, Adjunct Instructor, University of Cincinnati 
 
2013-2015, Visiting Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University 
 

  2011-2013, Visiting Assistant Professor, University of Cincinnati 
 
2010-2011, Adjunct Instructor, University of Cincinnati 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Anna G. Catton 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: M.F.A, 2005, Technical Direction, Southern Illinois University 
 
  B.A. in Theater, 1999, Ohio University 
 
Experience: 2019, Founder, Freelance Finishing Crew 
 
 2019, Project Manager, Peoples Liberty 
 
 2018, Set Designer, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2015-2017, Props Master, Glimmerglass Festival 
 
 2007-2016, Properties Manager, Cincinnati Playhouse in the Park 
  
 2005-2007, Rigger, Northern Illinois University, Carbondale 
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MINI VITA 

Name:  Mr. James Clark 

Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, renewable) 

Education: M.S. in Mathematics Education, 1996, Western Kentucky University 

  B.A. in Mathematics Education, 1988, Northern Kentucky University 

  B.S.A.S. in Computer Systems Analysis, 1985, Miami University, Oxford   

Experience: 2001-present, Adjunct Math Instructor, Northern Kentucky University 

2008-2018, Math Teacher, Kenton County Schools 

  2005-2007, Math Consultant, Kenton County Schools 

  2002-2005, AB AP Calculus Teacher, Fairfield City Schools 

  1996-2002, Math & AB BC Calculus Teacher, Scott High School 

1995-1996, Math & Computer Programming Teacher, Campbell County Schools 

1988-1995, Math & Calculus Teacher, Hancock County Schools 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Christopher Collins 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: Ph.D. in English, 2018, University of Cincinnati 
 
  M.F.A. in Creative Writing, 2013, Murray State University 

 
Experience: 2018, Assistant Professor, Wilmington College 
 
 2018, Adjunct Instructor, Xavier University 
 
 2014-2018, Instructor, University of Cincinnati 
 
 2013-2014, Adjunct Instructor, Cincinnati State Community and Technical College 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Keith Collins 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: M.S. in Clinical Exercise Physiology, 2004, Indiana University 
   
  B.S. in Kinesiology, 2002, Indiana University 
 
  B.A. in Psychology, 2002, Indiana University 
 
Experience: 2019-present, Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2014-2019, Part-time Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University 
  
 2011-present, Director, Epoch Wellness LLC 
 
 2011-2012, Adjunct Instructor, Daymar College 
  
 2010, Exercise Physiologist, St. Elizabeth Healthcare 
  
 2010, Health Coach, St. Elizabeth Healthcare 
 
 2005-2010, Exercise Physiologist, St. Elizabeth Healthcare 
  
 2005, Health and Fitness Specialist, TriHealth 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Lynn Crane 
 
Title:  Academic Advisor/Lecturer (non-tenure track, renewable) 
 
Education: M.S. in Medical Lab Sciences, 1995, Old Dominion University 
 
  B.S. in Biology, 1985, Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University 
 
Experience: 2011-2019, Academic Advisor, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2011, Allied Health Resource Center Specialist, Gateway Community and Technical 

College 
 
 2004-2009, Academic Advisor, Virginia Western Community College 
 
 1993-1997, Lecturer & Medical Technology Clinical Education Coordinator, Old 

Dominion University 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   David Evans 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: M.S. in Biostatistics, 2019, University of Cincinnati 
 
  B.A. in Mathematical Sciences, 2007, University of Cincinnati 
 
Experience: 2019, Financial Aid Advisor, Cincinnati State University 
 
 2017-2018, Academic Coach, Cincinnati State Technical and Community College 
 
 2012-2013, Credit Recover Advisement/Math Instructor, Cincinnati State Technical and 

Community College 
 
 2008-2011, Supplemental Math Tutor Program, Cincinnati State Technical & Community 

College 
 
 2008-present, Adjunct Instructor, Cincinnati State Technical and Community College 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   William Herzog 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: D.M.A. in Violin Performance and Literature, 2017, Eastman School of Music 
 

M.M. in Violin Performance, 2014, Northwestern University 
 

B.M. in Violin Performance, 2012, Indiana University 
 

Experience: 2014-2017, Instructor of Secondary Violin, University of Rochester 
 

2014-2017, Teaching Assistant, Eastman School of Music 
 
2012-2014, Teaching Assistant, Northwestern University 
 
2012-2014, Violin Techniques Instructor, Northwestern University 
 
2011-2012, Assistant Teacher, Indiana University 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Beth Hickey 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, renewable) 
 
Education: M.S. in Nursing, 1997, Northern Kentucky University 
 

B.S. in Nursing, 1993, Northern Kentucky University 
 
Diploma in Nursing, 1987, Christ Hospital School of Nursing 
 

Experience: 2016-present, Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University  
 

2009-2016, Part-time Professor, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2000-2008, Professor, tenured in 2007, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2000-1993, Nurse Manager, Mercy Mount Airy & Western Hills Hospitals 
 
1993-1999, Evening Charge Nurse, Northern Kentucky Rehabilitation Hospital  
 
1987-1988, Staff Nurse- Oncology, St. Elizabeth Healthcare System 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Jennifer Lape Kaiser 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: Ph.D. in Kinesiology, 2018, Ohio State University 
 

M.A. in Clinical Mental Health Counseling, Sports and Exercise Psychology, 2012, 
Ball State University 

 
B.A. in Psychology, 2007, Ohio State University 
 

Experience: 2019-present, Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University  
 

2019-present, Outpatient Counselor, Clearview Counseling 
 
 2017-2019, Outpatient Trauma Counselor, Mount Carmel Crime and Trauma 

Assistance Program 
  
 2017, Inpatient Counselor and Yoga Program Director, Braking Point Recovery 

Center 
 
 2014-2017, IOP Counselor and Yoga Program Director, Amethyst Inc. 
  
 2014-2015, Contract AOD Counselor, Syntero Inc. 
  
 2014, Fitness Coach, Verizon Wireless Corporation 
  
 2011, Adjunct Instructor, Ball State University  
  
 2009-2011 Physical Education Instructor, Ball State University 
 
 2007-present, Key Holding Advisor, Aveda Experience Center 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Amanda Laskowski 
 
Title:  Academic Advisor/Lecturer (non-tenure track, renewable) 
 
Education: M.S. in Student Affairs in Higher Education, 2013, Miami University 
 
  B.A. in Sociology, 2010, University of Minnesota 
 
Experience: 2016-2019, Academic Advisor, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2015-2016, Academic Advisor, DePaul University 
 
 2013-2015, Residence Director, DePaul University 
 
 2013, Interim First Year Advisor, Miami University 
 
 2011-2013, GA for Advising and Living-Learning Communities, Miami University 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:  Jill Liebisch 
 
Title:  Lecturer & Library Education Advisor-Recruiter (non-tenure track, renewable) 
 
Education: M.S. in Library & Information Science, 2018, Kent State University 
 
  B.A. in Public Relations, 2011, Northern Kentucky University 
 
Experience: 2019-present, Lecturer / Library Education Advisor-Recruiter, W. Frank Steely 

Library, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2018-2019, Information Literacy Fellow, W. Frank Steely Library, Northern 

Kentucky University 
 
 2018-2018, Information Literacy Intern, W. Frank Steely Library, Northern 

Kentucky University 
 
 2016-2018, Graduate Library Information Specialist, W. Frank Steely Library, 

Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2013-2016, Adult/Teen Services Programmer, Campbell County Public Library 
 
 2012-2013, Library Assistant, Boone County Public Library 
 
 2011-2011, Public Relations Intern, Marketing and Communications, Northern 

Kentucky University 
 
 2011-2011, Editorial Intern, Alumni Programs, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2008-2011, Research & Instruction Services Student Supervisor, W. Frank Steely 

Library, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2006-2008, Library Assistant, Pendleton County Public Library 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Courtney McManus 
 
Title:  Advisor/Lecturer (non-tenure track, renewable) 
 
Education: M.F.A. in Studio Art, 2014, Florida State University 
 

B.F.A. in New Media/Photography, 2008, University of Toledo 
 

Experience: 2017-2018, Adjunct Faculty, DePaul University 
 

2013-2015, Adjunct Faculty, Florida State University 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   John Matthew Overwine 
 
Title:               Professor of Practice (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: B.F.A in Graphic Design, 2009, Northern Kentucky University 
 
Experience: 2016-present, Lecturer of Visual Arts, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2016-present, Freelance Front End Developer 
 
  2015-2016, Senior Front End Developer, Bluestone Creative 
 

2012-2015, Front End Developer, Powerhouse Factories 
 

2012, Community Education Instructor, Art Academy of Cincinnati 
 

2010-2012, Interactive Designer, Traction 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:  Douglas Ladd 

Title:               Professor of Practice (non-tenure track) 

Education: M.B.A, 1996, Xavier University 

  B.S. in Marketing, 1986, Miami University 

  B.S. in Organizational Behavior, 1986, Miami University 

Experience: 2016-present, Vice President, Sales/Marketing and Business Development, Johnson 
Electric 

  2012-2016, Chief Marketing Officer, EndoChoice, Inc. 

2012-present, Adjunct Instructor, Carl H. Lindner School of Business, University of 
Cincinnati 

2011-2012, Adjunct Instructor, Marketing, Farmer School of Business, Miami 
University 

2002-2012, Director of Marketing, World-Wide Franchise Development, Ethicon 

2001-2002, Vice President, Marketing & Sales, AtriCure, Inc. 

1996-2001, Franchise Director, Breast Cancer Marketing, Ethicon Endo-Surgery, 
Inc. 

1994-1996, Project Leader and Product Manager, ChoiceCare Health Plans, Inc. 

1986-1994, Sales Manager and Sales Trainer, Marion Merrell-Dow 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:  Anita Phillips 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: M.S. in Nursing, 1999, Northern Kentucky University 
 
  B.S. in Management of Nursing Services, 1992, College of Mount St. Joseph 
 
  B.S. in Nursing, 1987, College of Mount St. Joseph 
 
Experience: 2019-present, Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University  
 

2007-present, Adult Nurse Practitioner, Hospitalist Program, St. Elizabeth 
Physicians 

 
 2019, Adjunct Faculty, MSN program, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 2012, Adjunct Professor, BSN program, Indiana Wesleyan University 
 
 2000-2007, Adult Nurse Practitioner, Tri-State Gastroenterology Associates 
 
 1996, Clinical Instructor, ADN program, Northern Kentucky University 
 
 1987-2000, Registered Nurse, St. Elizabeth Hospital 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Jennifer McLeod 
 
Title:  Clinical Assistant Professor (non-tenure track, renewable)  
 
Education: DNP in Nurse Anesthesia Practice, 2016, Virginia Commonwealth University 
 

M.S. in Nurse Anesthesia, 2014, Virginia Commonwealth University 
 

B.S. in Nursing, 2009, East Tennessee State University 
 

Experience: 2019-present, Clinical Assistant Professor, Northern Kentucky University 
 

2015-present, Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist, Jewish Hospital- Louisville  
 
 2010-2012, Cardiovascular Intensive Care Unit Nurse, Johnson City Medical Center 
  

2009-2010, Progressive Care Unit Staff Nurse, Johnson City Medical Center 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Austin Seybert 
 
Title:  Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 
 
Education: D.M.A. in Trombone Performance and Pedagogy, 2019, University of Iowa 
 

M.M. in Jazz Trombone Performance, 2014, University of Illinois-Urbana 
 
B.A. in Music Education and Jazz Studies, 2012, Marshall University 
 

Experience: 2018-2019, Adjunct Professor of Music, University of Dubuque 
 
2018, Middle School Band and Choir Teacher, St. Joseph’s Catholic School 
 
2017-2019, Graduate Teaching Assistant, University of Iowa 
 
2013-2014, Graduate Teaching Assistant, University of Illinois-Urbana 
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MINI VITA 
 

Name:   Ashley G. Shepherd 
 
Title:               Professor of Practice (non-tenure track) 
 
Education: B.M. in Music Production and Engineering, 1991, Berklee College of Music 
 
Experience: 2015-present, Online Instructor, Center Stage Media 
 

2018-present, Designer and Producer, Dynaudio Unheard Container Studio 
 
  2012-2018, Product Instructor Specialist, Yamaha Technical Marketing 
 

2009-2011, Audio Engineering Instructor, Recording Connection 
 
1998-present, Owner, Grandin Media 
 
1998-2001, Audio Engineer and Producer, Lightborne Communications 
 
1992-1998, Audio Engineer and Producer, Ligosa Sound Studios 
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MINI VITA 

Name:  Amber Thomas  

Title:   Lecturer (non-tenure track, temporary) 

Education:  M.S. in Nursing, 1997, University of Cincinnati 

B.S. in Nursing, 1996, University of Cincinnati 

B.S. in Biology, 1993, Duke University 

Experience:  2013-present, Lecturer, Northern Kentucky University 

  1997-present, Clinical Nurse, University Cincinnati Medical Center 

  2004-2006, Part-time Clinical Faculty, Northern Kentucky University 

  1996-1997, Registered Nurse, Madeira Health Care 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the attached non-academic personnel actions receive Board of Regents approval. 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The following categories of non-academic personnel actions which occurred between August 13, 2019 and October 14, 2019 require approval by 

the Board of Regents: 

 

 

1. Activations/Rehires 

2. Reassignments, Reclassifications, Title/Status Changes, Promotions 

3. Transfers 

4. Contract/Temporary/Student to Regular & Regular to Contract 

5. Departures 

6. Retirements 

7. Administrative/Executive 
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ACTIVATIONS/REHIRES 
08/13/19 – 10/14/19 

 
NAME DEPARTMENT    TITLE      EFF. DATE 
 
Ash, Zane Building Services    Custodian      09/04/2019 
Berry, Miranda Building Services    Custodian      08/27/2019 
Birkenhauer, Elizabeth Planning, Design & Construction  Associate Director     08/28/2019 
Bowling, Ronald Athletic Academic Services   Specialist      08/19/2019 
Creech, Shane Carpentry/Construction   Carpentry/Construction Specialist   09/03/2019 
Crim, Kameron Women’s Cross Country   Assistant Coach, Women’s Track & Field CC 09/01/2019 
Dallmer, Denise Athletic Academic Services   Specialist      08/19/2019 
Deutscher, John Building Services    Custodian      09/17/2019 
Doering, William Men’s Cross Country    Assistant Coach, Cross Country/Track  08/19/2019 
Draper, Marissa Institute for Health Innovations  Program Manager, IHI    08/19/2019 
Duty, Sharon University Housing    Specialist, Facilities     10/07/2019 
Fedders, Susannah Building Services    Custodian      08/26/2019 
Ford, Amber University Police – Field Operations  Public Safety Officer     08/26/2019 
Gootee, Bridgette Advancement Operations & Annual Giving Digital Specialist     08/14/2019 
Harrison, Arisa Building Services    Custodian      08/21/2019 
Howard, Jackson Electric Shop     Electrical Assistant     09/23/2019 
Kalmar, Christopher Building Services    Assistant Supervisor, Custodial/Floor Care  09/30/2019 
Kendrick, Myleah Housing Facilities Management  Custodian      09/16/2019 
Korslund, Stephanie Center for Innovation & Tech. in Education Instructional Designer     10/08/2019 
Llambi, Maria Chase – Student Affairs   Assistant Director of Admissions, CCOL  09/25/2019 
Mills, Beth O&M Administrative Services  Specialist, Work Control    08/12/2019* 
Montgomery, Shantel Building Services    Custodian      08/14/2019 
Osborne, Shanna Institute for Health Innovations  Care Coordinator, IHI     09/01/2019 
Peebles, Tina Biological Sciences    Academic Coordinator    09/23/2019 
Reece, Kiara Admissions     Counselor      08/26/2019 
Roberts, Sarah Building Services    Custodian      08/27/2019 
Ruehl, Autumn University Police – Field Operations  Public Safety Officer     08/27/2019 
Salchli, Donal Institute for Health Innovations  QRT/Reentry Specialist    09/01/2019 
Seibert, Ashley Center for Innovation & Tech. in Education Instructional Designer     10/08/2019 
Stewart, William Building Services    Custodian      08/26/2019 
Telford, Kaci Admissions     Asst. Dir., Admissions Processing & Compliance 09/16/2019 
Tepe, Jessica Legal Affairs & General Counsel  Staff Attorney      09/03/2019 
Thacker, Christopher Building Services    Custodian      09/23/2019 
Warpool, Randy Student Financial Assistance   Processing Specialist     10/07/2019 
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REASSIGNMENTS, RECLASSIFICATIONS, TITLE/STATUS CHANGES, PROMOTIONS 
08/13/19 – 10/14/19          

               
NAME    DEPARTMENT    TITLE     STATUS  EFF. DATE 
 
Baldwin, Jeffrey  Athletic Development    Director of Development - Athletics Title Change  08/19/2019 
Ball, Pamilla   Women’s Cross Country   Assistant Coach - Women’s CC Lateral Move  08/01/2019* 
Bond, David   Office of the University Registrar  Assistant Registrar, Systems  Promotion  09/23/2019 
Brennan, Hannah  College of Health & Human Services  Clinical Compl. & Contracts Coord. Promotion  10/01/2019 
Davis, Sandra   School of the Arts    Budget Officer, School of the Arts Reclassification 09/01/2019 
Hugo, Victoria   Biological Sciences    Administrative Secretary  FT to PT  10/07/2019 
Knochelmann, Tammy  President’s Office    Executive Assistant to the President Title Change  09/06/2019 
McNeal, Kimumekia  Student Financial Assistance   Specialist, Fin. Aid/Scholarships Lateral Move  10/14/2019 
Menchen, Stephanie  Testing Services    Assistant Director of Testing Svs. Reclassification 08/01/2019* 
Neace, Guy   Building Services    Assistant Custodial Supervisor Promotion  08/26/2019 
Peek, Wendy   Strategic Planning & Implementation  Asst. to VP/Chief Strategy Officer Title Change  08/01/2019* 
Sanders, Sydney  Parking Services    Administrative Specialist  Reclassification 09/10/2019 
Schlosser, Eden  World Languages & Literatures  Academic Coordinator  PT to FT  08/21/2019 
Schultz, Leslie   Alumni Relations    Coord., Alum. Engt. & Annual Giv. Reclassification 09/22/2019 
Wallace, Rebecca  Building Services    Custodian    Lateral Move  09/23/2019 
Wease, Steven   Steely Library     Library Specialist II   Promotion  08/19/2019 
Workman, Bryan  IT – Infrastructure & Operations Group Manager, Infrastructure & Ops. Promotion  08/12/2019* 
Zerbe, Jodi   Alumni Relations    Director of Annual Giving  Promotion  09/09/2019 
 
 

TRANSFERS 
08/13/19 – 10/14/19                  

    
 NAME   PREVIOUS DEPARTMENT NEW DEPARTMENT  TITLE    EFF. DATE
  
Caldwell, Brian  Plumbing & Sheet Metal  Housing Facilities Management Mechanical Systems Supervisor III 09/23/2019 
Chandler, Joshua  Student Financial Assistance  Office of the University Registrar Coordinator, Service   10/08/2019 
Field, Jamie   Disability Programs & Services Student Affairs   Assistant to the Vice President 08/26/2019 
Moran, John   Housing Facilities Management Electric Shop    Electrical Assistant   09/23/2019 
Race, Loretta   Psychological Science   IT – Information Tech. Central Project Manager   09/03/2019 
Steinbrunner, Amanda Conference Management  College of Health & Human Svs. Clinical Compl. & Contracts Coord. 10/10/2019 
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CONTRACT/TEMPORARY/STUDENT TO REGULAR & REGULAR TO CONTRACT 
     08/13/19 – 10/14/19 

   
NAME  DEPARTMENT    TITLE     STATUS  EFF. DATE 
 
Gibbons, William IT – Infrastructure & Operations Group Tech Support Specialist – Media & Events Contract to Regular 09/22/2019 
Harris, Kimberly Admissions     Assistant Director    Contract to Regular 08/01/2019* 
Muran, Jason  Horticulture     Horticulture Assistant    Student to Staff 10/14/2019 

 
 

DEPARTURES 
08/13/19 – 10/14/19 

 
NAME   DEPARTMENT    TITLE      EFF. DATE 
 
Bowen, Charles IT – Infrastructure & Operations Group Senior Systems Analyst    09/01/2019 
Corsi, Aaron Center for Applied Informatics  Project Manager     08/31/2019  
Costello, Nancy Institute for Health Innovations  Program Director     09/28/2019 
Craun, Emily Teacher Education & School Leadership Academic Coordinator    09/07/2019 
Daniels, Quentin Office of the University Registrar  Processing Specialist     08/25/2019 
Elliott, Anna Undergraduate Academic Affairs  Assessment Analyst     10/01/2019 
Feist, Edward Roads & Grounds    Heavy Equipment/Grounds Operator   09/14/2019 
Gibson, Candace Education Abroad    Specialist, Study Abroad Programs   09/12/2019 
Graney, Stephanie Office of the University Registrar  Coordinator, Processing    09/14/2019 
Haley, Raymond University Police – Field Operations  Public Safety Officer     09/01/2019 
Hall, Leonard Roads & Grounds    Technician, Roads & Grounds Irrigation/Turf 09/28/2019 
Havard, Crishon Housing Facilities Management  Custodian      08/17/2019 
Heck, Dylan Roads & Grounds    Groundskeeper     08/13/2019 
Jump, Krystal Building Services    Custodian      09/11/2019 
Lange, Lisa Comptroller’s Office    Secretary      08/17/2019 
Mayo, John University Housing    Associate Director     10/01/2019 
McCartney, Curtis IT – Enterprise Systems Group  Programmer/Analyst I     09/21/2019 
Mearns, Clare Psychological Science    Technician      09/01/2019 
Montgomery, Shantel Building Services    Custodian      09/16/2019 
Parks, Jimmy Power Plant     EMS/HVAC Systems Specialist III   10/04/2019 
Roberts, Sarah Building Services    Custodian      10/07/2019 
Rodriguez, Armando HVAC/General Maintenance   HVAC Mechanic     08/24/2019 
Sills, Kathryn Student Financial Assistance   Team Leader      10/04/2019 
Taylor, Scott IT – Enterprise Systems Group  SAP BI Developer     08/29/2019 
Wiley, David Campus Recreation    Assistant Director, Intramural Sports   09/01/2019 
Woll, James Office of Student Account Services  Associate Director     08/31/2019 
Woods, Sarah Housing Facilities Management  Custodian      10/02/2019 
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        RETIREMENTS 

08/13/19 – 10/14/19 
 

NAME   DEPARTMENT     TITLE      EFF. DATE 
 
Allen, Sally Entrepreneurship Institute   Coordinator      10/01/2019 
Rachford, Janice History & Geography    Academic Coordinator    09/01/2019 
  

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE/EXECUTIVE 
08/13/19 – 10/14/19 

      
  
NAME   DEPARTMENT   TITLE     REASON  EFF. DATE 
 
Hales, Michael Administration & Finance  Interim VP for Admin. & Finance & CFO Status Change  08/01/2019* 
McIver, Daniel Athletics Internal Operations  Deputy Athletic Director   Title Change  08/19/2019 
Southwood, Lori Human Resources   Chief Human Resources Officer  Status Change  08/01/2019* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Not on previous report 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Board of Regents officially hereby accepts contributions totaling $2,095,000 

received by the NKU Foundation Inc. for the benefit of Northern Kentucky 

University during the period August 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019 per the 

below list. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

At the March 12, 2014 Board Meeting, a major gift policy was approved by the 

Regents raising the level of major gifts submitted for review and acceptance by the 

Board to $25,000. Contributions of $25,000 or more for the period 8/1/19 through 

9/30/19 are itemized below. 
 

 

Contributions of $25,000 or More (08/01/2019 - 9/30/2019) 

Donor Name Gift Date Gift Designation Gift Amount Gift Type 

Paul W. Chellgren 9/24/2019 

Chellgren Family Endowed 
Scholarship 

Annual Giving Challenge 
Match 

$225,000 
 

$25,000 

Pledge 
 

Pledge 

 
 

Thomas M. Edwards 8/31/2019 

Jane S. Edwards 

Endowed Scholarship 
$100,000 
$100,000 

Pledge 
Planned Gift 

Larry Giesmann 9/9/2019 

Larry Giesmann & 
Laura Trice Endowed 

Scholarship 
Laura Trice MD Pre-

Med Scholarship 

 
 
$12,000 
 
$13,000 

 

 
Cash 

 
Cash 

The Herbold Foundation 
 

9/30/2019 

Ambassador 

Patricia L. 

Herbold 

Scholarship $40,000 Pledge 

 
Denise and John 

Kuprionis 9/24/2019 

Denise and John 

Kuprionis Endowed 

Scholarship in Business 

Law and Board 

Governance $50,000 Pledge 

Greg and Katie Shumate 8/21/2019 

College of Informatics 

Student Retention 

Assistance Fund 

$12,500 

$12,500 

Pledge 

Planned Gift 

Tom and Mary Jo 

Wiedemann 8/30/2019 
Donald and Carolyn Velten 

Family Scholarship $25,000 Pledge 
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Contributions of $25,000 or More (08/01/2019 - 9/30/2019) 

Donor Name Gift Date Gift Designation Gift Amount Gift Type 

Eagle One Fund Horizon 

Community Funds of 

Northern Kentucky * 6/30/2019 
LIFT Scholar Matching 

Program $1,000.000 Pledge 

Butler Foundation * 6/30/2019 Butler Scholars Program $500,000 Pledge 

  TOTAL $2,095,000.00  

*These contributions were included in a previous Presidential Fundraising Report; final gift document 

execution delayed submission of Board gift acceptance request.  
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-4 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Board of Regents hereby approves the following naming actions: 

(1) The naming of a scholarship to support incoming freshman students that are graduates of 

Newport Central Catholic High school. “Donald and Carolyn Velten Family Scholarship” 

(2) The naming of a scholarship to support students enrolled at Chase College of Law who hold 

an undergraduate degree from NKU's Haile/US Bank College of Business and demonstrate 

high academic promise for the study of law. “Denise and John Kuprionis Endowed 

Scholarship in Business Law and Board Governance” 

(3) The naming of a fund to provide support for graduate students in the English Department to 

attend professional conferences. “The Danielle Roemer Fund” 

(4) The naming of a scholarship to support Chase College of Law students who are Ohio 

residents, are enrolled in the evening division, demonstrate high academic promise for the 

study of law, demonstrate financial need, and are interested in Real Estate Law, Contract 

Law, and/or Business and Technology Laws. “Ambassador Patricia L. Herbold Scholarship”  

(5) The naming of a scholarship to support undergraduate students with demonstrated financial 

need.  “Douglas Gordon Martin LIFT Scholarship” 

(6) The naming of the ballroom within the James C. and Rachel M. Votruba Student Union. “H. 

Gordon and Thelma S. Martin Ballroom” 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Naming actions in connection with private gifts are governed by NKU Administrative 

Regulation-II-4.0-2, section 2.2.  NKU’s Naming Policy provides for naming opportunities in 

consideration of a major contribution to the university.  The policy allows flexibility in 

determining the level of contribution appropriate for each naming action, enabling each gift to be 

judged on its own merit. 

 

After careful consideration by university officials and unanimous support by the University 

Naming Committee, it was recommended to offer the following naming recognitions.     

 

(1) The university has received a gift to provide scholarship support to incoming freshman 

students that are graduates of Newport Central Catholic High school. 

 

Donor: Tom and Mary Jo Wiedemann 

Naming Gift: $25,000 

Naming Recognition: Donald and Carolyn Velten Family Scholarship 

 

Tom Wiedemann received his bachelor's degree from NKU in 1990. He and his wife, Mary Jo, 

met at NKU. Mary Jo received her bachelor’s degree from NKU in 1991. Tom is very engaged 

with NKU. He is a former Past President of the Alumni Board, currently serves on the NKU 

Foundation Board and is a member of the Campaign Leadership Committee. This scholarship is 

to honor Mary Jo's father, Donald Velten, who was the very first coach of the NCC girls’ soccer 

team. Mary Jo is a Newport Central Catholic alum as well. 

 

134



(2) The university has received a gift to provide scholarship support to students enrolled at Chase 

College of Law who hold an undergraduate degree from NKU's Haile/US Bank College of 

Business and demonstrate high academic promise for the study of law. 

 

Donor: Denise and John Kuprionis 

Naming Gift: $50,000 

Naming Recognition: Denise and John Kuprionis Endowed Scholarship in Business Law 

and Board Governance 

 

Denise Kuprionis, a 1994 Chase College of Law graduate and 1985 Haile/US Bank College of 

Business graduate, is founder and president of Governance Solutions Group (GSG), a board 

advisory practice. Through her work, she shares the knowledge she has gained from her 25 years 

in public, private and nonprofit boardrooms. Prior to founding GSG, Denise was an officer and 

member of the senior management team of The E.W. Scripps Company-Scripps Networks. She 

is a Senior Fellow at the Conference Board's Governance Center, is an NACD Board 

Governance Fellow, and is active in the Society for Corporate Governance. She has published 

and presented on a variety of governance matters. Denise is a former member of the NKU 

Foundation, Inc. Board of Directors.  

 

(3) The university has received an estate gift to establish a fund for graduate students in the 

English Department to attend professional conferences. 

 

Donor: Danielle Roemer 

Naming Gift: $14,170.18 

Naming Recognition: The Danielle Roemer Fund 

 

Dr. Danielle Roemer lost her battle with cancer and passed away early on September 19, 2016. 

She was 68. Dr. Roemer was a tenured faculty member in the Department of English at NKU. 

 

Dr. Danielle Roemer came to NKU in 1984 and received tenure in 1988.  She received her Ph. D. 

from the University of Texas, Austin.  Danielle was active in the field of Folklore Studies and 

she authored numerous essays and edited the influential collection on the work of fairy tales of 

Angela Carter.  She taught a variety of courses including American Folklore and Introduction to 

Literature and continued to contribute every semester to the teaching of composition. 

 

(4) The university has received a gift to provide scholarship support to students enrolled in Chase 

College of Law who are Ohio residents, are enrolled in the evening division, demonstrate high 

academic promise for the study of law, demonstrate financial need and are interested in Real 

Estate Law, Contract Law, and/or Business and Technology Laws.   

 

Donor: Patricia L. Herbold and Robert J. Herbold 

Naming Gift: $40,000 

Naming Recognition: Ambassador Patricia L. Herbold Scholarship 

 

Ambassador Patricia L. Herbold, a 1977 graduate of Chase College of Law through the evening 

program, served as the United States Ambassador to the Republic of Singapore from 2005 to 
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2009. Her many career accomplishments have also included serving as a prosecutor in the 

Hamilton County Prosecutor's Office, as regional counsel for Prudential Insurance of America, 

as vice president and general counsel of Bank One Dayton, as an attorney with Taft, Stettinius & 

Hollister, as mayor of the City of Montgomery, Ohio, and as chairman of the King County 

Republican Party in Seattle, Washington. Ambassador Herbold was the inaugural 

commencement speaker in NKU's newly opened Bank of Kentucky Center (now BB&T Arena), 

is a past recipient of the NKU Alumni Association's Outstanding Graduate of Chase College of 

Law Award and is a past member of the Chase College of Law Board of Visitors. 

 

(5) and  

(6) The university has received a gift to provide scholarship support to undergraduate students 

with demonstrated financial need, as well as maintenance and renovation improvements to the 

ballroom located in the James C. and Rachel M. Votruba Student Union. 

 

Donor: Doug Martin 

Naming Gift: $500,000 

Naming Recognition: Douglas Gordon Martin LIFT Scholarship,  

H. Gordon and Thelma S. Martin Ballroom 

 

Mr. Doug Martin is a small business owner and real estate investor. He is an alumni of Western 

Kentucky University. His father, H. Gordon Martin, was a former member of the NKU Board of 

Regents, a former Chairman of the Northern Kentucky Chamber of Commerce, and a former 

head of the Northern Kentucky Convention and Visitors Bureau. H. Gordon Martin and his wife, 

Thelma, had three boys and resided in Union, Kentucky. 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-5 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the following amendment to the Faculty Policies and Procedures Handbook, regarding the 

appointment of administrators with faculty rank, receive Board of Regents approval. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The senate voted to approve recommended global changes to the handbook at the September 30, 

2019 meeting. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Global changes were needed to the Faculty Handbook to support (1) the creation of schools in 

colleges and (2) colleges without departments or schools. 

 

These changes include adding “school” whenever departments are discussed and “director” 

wherever chairs are discussed. See the attached Faculty Handbook 2019-20 draft for the 

language changes that include schools and directors. 
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Sue Ott Rowlands, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 

From:  Matthew Zacate, Faculty Senate President 

Re: Changes to the Faculty Handbook needed to support (1) the creation of schools in 
colleges and (2) colleges without departments or schools approved by the Faculty 
Senate at its meeting of September 30, 2019 

Date: October 9, 2019 

 

 

As you know, the current version of the Faculty Policies and Procedures Handbook (Faculty 
Handbook) was developed at a time when the department was the only allowed subdivision of a 
college (per Governing Regulation IV.A.1).   

Even though SOTA – a school as a subdivision of the College of Arts and Sciences – has been 
around a couple of years now, the Faculty Handbook still does not fully address policy and 
procedures affecting the faculty of a school.  It is disappointing to me that you and other 
administrators involved in the decision to deviate from the long accepted structural organization 
of the university did not examine the Faculty Handbook and propose changes needed to 
accommodate a school as an alternative to a department when SOTA was created.  Problems 
arising from shortcomings in the Faculty Handbook were compounded with the recent creation 
of schools in the newly formed College of Health and Human Services.   

Yet another set of problems was created by the creation of the College of Education, which does 
not have department or school subdivisions.  Many policies and procedures in the Faculty 
Handbook presuppose the existence of a department chair and a college dean, so elimination of 
the department-level division makes it unclear how to follow them.  It seems to me, that the 
responsible course of action would have been to determine what changes were needed to the 
Faculty Handbook to accommodate a department-less college and propose those changes for 
approval by the Faculty Senate before action was taken to create the College of Education. 

I would advocate that whenever an action will result in a need to change the Faculty Handbook, 
the needed changes should be proposed before action is taken.  Still, I appreciate your 
collaboration and Jason’s hard work to identify all parts of the Faculty Handbook that need to be 
changed and to draft appropriate changes in response to the recent university restructuring.  The 

138



 

     

2 
 

draft of changes was presented to the Faculty Senate in the form of a pdf-file named ‘Faculty 
Handbook 2019-2020 Draft Aug19.pdf’.  During discussion, the following amendments to the 
changes described in this file were proposed and approved by the senate (added text in bold). 

1. Final sentence in section 3.1 (before 3.1.1) - change to read: “In colleges where there is 
no department or school, the dean will function as department chair in all processes 
described in section 3 unless specified otherwise in a college document approved by 
the Board of regents or the Provost.” 

2. Final sentence in first paragraph of section 11.4.1 – change to read: “In colleges where 
there is no department or school, the dean or a designee will function as department chair 
in these processes.” 

3. Final sentence in second paragraph of section 11.4.2 – change to read: “In colleges where 
there is no department or school, the dean or a designee will function as department chair 
in these processes.” 

 

I am happy to report that the Faculty Senate approved the changes proposed in ‘Faculty 
Handbook 2019-2020 Draft Aug19.pdf’ with the three amendments above.    
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-6 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the following amendment to the Faculty Policies and Procedures Handbook, regarding the 

appointment of administrators with faculty rank, receive Board of Regents approval. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The senate voted to approve recommended these changes to the handbook at the September 30, 

2019 meeting. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

The Faculty Senate considered a change to section 12.6 of the Faculty Policies and Procedures 

Handbook to correct the description of how faculty sick-leave records are kept. 

 

Current Faculty Handbook Language: 

 

12.6.  PAID LEAVE FOR ILLNESS, TEMPORARY DISABILITY, OR MATERNITY 

LEAVE  

  

Continuing faculty earn and accumulate sick leave with pay on the basis of one day per month 

credited on the first day of the contract year (twelve (12) days per contract-calendar year). An 

unlimited number of sick-leave days may be accrued. Records regarding faculty sick-leave 

accumulation are maintained in the office of the Vice President for Academic Affairs and 

Provost. 

 

Proposed Amendment: 

 

12.6.  PAID LEAVE FOR ILLNESS, TEMPORARY DISABILITY, OR MATERNITY 

LEAVE  

  

Continuing faculty earn and accumulate sick leave with pay on the basis of one day per month 

credited on the first day of the contract year (twelve (12) days per contract-calendar year). An 

unlimited number of sick-leave days may be accrued. Records regarding faculty sick-leave 

accumulation are maintained in the office of Human Resources. 
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Sue Ott Rowlands, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 

From:  Matthew Zacate, Faculty Senate President 

Re: Change to the Faculty Handbook to correct its description of faculty sick-leave record 
keeping 

Date: October 9, 2019 

 

Per your request, the Faculty Senate considered a change to section 12.6 of the Faculty Policies 
and Procedures Handbook to correct the description of how faculty sick-leave records are kept.  
The following change was approved by the Faculty Senate at its meeting on September 30, 2019. 

 

The change is to the last sentence of the first paragraph in section 12.6. 

Current version: Records regarding faculty sick-leave accumulation are 
maintained in the office of the Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost. 

to be replaced by 

New text: Records regarding faculty sick-leave accumulation are 
maintained in the office of Human Resources. 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-7 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the Board of Regents approve the creation of a new center, named Informatics+, in the NKU College 

of Informatics. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Motivation and Purpose: Northern Kentucky University's College of Informatics has been providing 

student talent and faculty expertise to the region since 2005. Spanning a wide range of fields in 

communication and technology, it has experienced rapid growth over nearly all of its fifteen-year history 

and is poised for the next step in its evolution: the creation of a new "talent engine".  

 

This new center is designed from the start to better serve NKU students, the companies and organizations 

that hire them, and the region, by: 

 

 being strategic about talent development: K12 though college to professional training; 

 integrating classroom and experiential learning to magnify its impact; 

 supporting and facilitating regional and global informatics projects; 

 serving as a resource for innovation; 

 engaging the full spectrum of informatics (not just tech); 

 inspiring student-supporting philanthropy; 

 aligning with NKU’s 2019-22 Strategic Framework. 

 

With its broader scope and foci, this new center supersedes the former Center for Applied Informatics 

(CAI), which was characterized by a student-staffed consulting center model. The CAI began closing 

down its operations on July 1, 2019. 

Mission: To enhance the value and accessibility of the College of Informatics as a resource for talent, 

training and innovation; and to ensure that its students and graduates are not only proficient but creative, 

experienced, and professional.  

Concept:  Informatics+ has three key areas of work. 

 

Talent Development: It addresses the need for diverse and cutting-edge talent longitudinally, 

from setting up K-12 outreach and teacher training, to running student professionalization 

courses, coordinating internships and co-ops, running employer relations activities, generating 

and supporting experimental and collaborative innovation initiatives, and offering training 

workshops and symposia for professionals. 

 

Curricular Integration: It brings together companies (as well as government and non-profit 

organizations) with academic departments to integrate structured, progressive, professionalizing, 

experiential learning into the college's degree programs. 

 

Regional and Global Engagement:  It supports (via relationship-building and competitive 

funding) research, development and creative projects, generally faculty-led, that engage students 

with the region and the globe by leveraging expertise in informatics. It also supports and manages 

regional informatics events. 
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Initial State:  The center is being launched with the following full-time personnel: 

 

 Acting Executive Director 

 Director of Corporate Engagement* 

 Associate Director of Professional Education* 

 Associate Director for Student Projects* (one-year temporary funding at present) 

 Manager of Communications and Events 

 Assistant to the Executive Director 

 

Asterisks indicate faculty status. It is being housed in the former Center for Applied Informatics suite in 

Griffin Hall. 

 

Rollout Plans: During the fall of 2019, the center will: 

 

 Hire a branding firm to review naming and develop its visual identity, brand story, 

communication strategy, and messaging matrix. This work is being done during October 2019, 

with the approval of NKU Marketing and Communications. On 10/15/2019 the branding firm 

made a recommendation to go with the name Informatics+. 

 Engage a small "bootstrap board" of key regional leaders to build out an Advisory Board. 

 Engage faculty at an unprecedented level within the college-- for their advice, guidance, 

expertise, and leadership as appropriate. 

 Aggressively build awareness of the center, through communications, marketing, and external 

networking.  

 Set its measurable objectives for 2020. 

 Initiate an annual grant program with $25,000 available in the first year to fund signature faculty-

led student projects that engage the region or beyond in ways that demonstrate the transformative 

power of informatics. 

 Run selected "fail-fast" experiments, including an applied professionalization class for first- and 

second-year students in which they take on simple web development projects for internal and 

external clients, taught by a senior professor of practice in association with a junior project 

manager; the course serves as a preparatory bridge to standard off-campus internships. 

 

Essential NKU Collaborations:  Institute for Health Innovation, CINSAM, the Center for Innovation 

and Entrepreneurship, Office of Information Technology, the colleges.  

 

Ultimate Outcomes: At the highest level: 

 

 All COI students will be technically proficient and experienced and professional. 

 The COI will be easy for all to access, and a valued resource for talent, training, and innovation. 

 

Resources: No new resources are requested. Faculty, staff, and operating funds are being repurposed 

from existing units in the College of Informatics. The professional training arm is expected to bring in 

significant revenue to support its growth. 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-8 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Recommend the Board of Regents approve revisions to the Student Government Constitution 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

During the 2018-19 academic year, members of the Student Government Association [SGA] 

Judicial Council began to review and edit the Constitution.  Following their review they presented 

each of the changes to the SGA senate for their approval.  This review of the Constitution was 

deemed necessary due to administrative shifts within SGA, as well as a collective desire to ensure 

the efficiency of its inner-workings in an effort to most effectively serve the student body.   

  

The framework of the Constitution came from the most current version located on the SGA website 

(last updated April 2017), the Judicial Council conducted most of the initial review process relating 

to consistency and syntax.  Major changes to content were drafted by the Judicial Council in 

consultation with the SGA executive board and advisors. Drafting and re-drafting took place from 

January 2019 through April 2019.  When an acceptable draft was obtained, the document was 

submitted to the SGA senate for final comments and approval.    Once approved by the SGA senate 

the constitution was placed on the election ballot September 4 and 5, 2019.  The student body voted 

in favor of the changes 209 for 3 against.  

  

Listed below are the major revisions to the Constitution:  

 

Article II - Section 1, Part B - Add "Only Senators voted in by student vote or appointed and 

confirmed by Student Senate shall hold voting privileges during official vote of the Student Senate". 

 

Article III - Section 2, Part B, #1 - Change from "Must receive a cumulative GPA of at least 2.25 on 

a 4.0 scale at the time of election and maintain for the duration of their term" to "Must receive a 

cumulative GPA of at least a 2.5 and a semesterly GPA of 2.0".  

 

Article III - Section 2, Part B, #5 – Add "Must meet attendance requirement of two SGA sponsored 

events per academic semester". 

 

Article IV - Division A, Section 6, Part J – Change from "Shall ensure that the minutes of the 

previous meeting are received at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the next SGA meeting" 

to "Shall ensure that the minutes of the previous meeting are received at least seventy-two (72) 

hours prior to the next SGA meeting". 

 

Article IV - Division A, Section 7, Part B – Change from "Shall serve as a non-voting ex-officio 

member of SGA, unless the appointee is already a member of the Student Senate" to "Shall serve as 

a non-voting ex-officio member of SGA - Voting privileges will be revoked upon confirmation by 

Senate". 

 

Article IV - Division B, Section 2, Part A – Change title of "Academic Affairs Committee" to 

"Academic Excellence Committee". 

 

Article IV - Division B, Section 2, Part C – Change title of "Student Rights Committee" to "Student 

Advocacy Committee". 
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Article IV - Division C, Section 2, Part C – Add "Shall review and approve the election rules and 

guidelines as recommended by the Election Commission; shall confirm dates for all elections as 

directed by this document". 

 

Article IV - Division C, Section 2, Part H – Change from "If a student concludes that an action of 

the SGA is unconstitutional, he or she may appeal in writing by means of the Office of the Dean of 

Students and no more than thirty (30) official school days following the SGA action, to the Judicial 

Council which shall review the appeal and make a decision" to "If a student concludes that an action 

of the SGA is unconstitutional, he or she may appeal in writing by means of the Office of the Dean 

of Students and no more than ten (10) official school days following the SGA action, to the Judicial 

Council which shall review the appeal and make a decision 

 

Article IV - Division C, Section 2, Part I – Change from "The Judicial Council must conduct a 

hearing and render a decision on such an appeal within ten (10) official school days after the appeal 

is submitted unless an extension is necessary or reasonable due to the circumstances of the case" to 

"The Judicial Council must conduct a hearing and render a decision on such an appeal within five 

(5) official school days after the appeal is submitted unless an extension is necessary or reasonable 

due to the circumstances of the case". 
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-9 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the attached organizational chart receives the Board of Regents approval. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The attached organizational chart reflects all NKU Administrative updates through November 
13, 2019. The reporting lines listed are for Director level and above, but include; individuals who 
directly report to the President; Department Chairs under Academic Affairs; Coaching areas 
under Intercollegiate Athletics; and the Manager of the Bookstore/Barnes & Noble and Food 
Services/Chartwells, which are separate entities from the University. 
 

146



Administration and Finance
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer

Michael Hales (Interim)

Business Operations and 
Auxiliary Services
Director
Andy Meeks
	 All Card Administration
		  Ward Wenstrup
	 BB&T Arena	 	
		  Darren Stearns
	 Bookstore/Barnes & Noble		
		  Elaine Perkins
	 Food Services/Chartwells
		  Pat Hannan
	 Mail Services/Copy Center
		  Kevin Rossell
	 Parking Services
		  Curtis Keller

Budget Office
Budget Director
Chandra Brown
	
Office of the Comptroller
Comptroller
Russ Kerdolff
Associate Comptroller
Karen Mefford
	 NKU Foundation Accounting/		
	 Financial Management
		  Amanda Asbury
	 NKU Research Foundation 		
	 Accounting/Grant 	Administration
		  Barb Smith
	 Student Account Services
		  Kim Graboskey
	 Procurement Services
		  Blaine Gilmore

Facilities Management
Assistant Vice President
Syed Zaidi
	 Planning, Design & Construction
		  Senior Director
		  Mary Paula Schuh
	 	 Real Estate
		  James Kaufman
	 Operations and Maintenance
		  Rebecca Lanter
	 Safety and Emergency 		
	 Management
		  Jeffrey Baker
	
Human Resources
Chief Human Resources Officer
Lori A. Southwood
	 Benefits
		  Bruce Smith
	 Compensation & Classification
		  Josie Kondaveeti
	 Employee Relations & EEO
		  Rachel Green
	 HRIS
		  Dionna Sholler
	 Management Services
		  Lauren Franzen
	 Training & Development
		  (vacant)
	 Payroll
		  Cathy Wisher
	 Wellness
		  Kim Baker

Information Technology
Chief Information Officer
Timothy Ferguson
	 Infrastructure and Operations
		  Erik Stagg
	 Enterprise Systems Group
		  Don Stinson
	 Program & Project 		
	 Management
		  Bert Brown

	

BOARD OF REGENTS
William L. Scheben (Chair), Andrá R. Ward (Vice Chair), Normand G. Desmarais (Secretary), Michael Baranowski, David C. Bauer, Richard Boehne, Ashley F. Himes, Jarett Lopez, Terry L. Mann, Dennis Repenning, Gregory S. Shumate

PRESIDENT
Ashish K. Vaidya

Inclusive Excellence
Chief Diversity Equity and Inclusion 

Officer and Title IX Coordinator
(vacant)

Institute for Health Innovation
Vice President/Executive Director
Valerie Hardcastle
	 Program Director
	 Carolyn Noe

Chase College of Law
Dean
Judith Daar
	 Associate Dean, Academics
	 Lawrence Rosenthal
	 Associate Dean, Advancement
	 David MacKnight	
	 Associate Dean, Experiential Learning
	 Amy Halbrook
	 Associate Dean, Professional Development
	 Jennifer Kinsley
Law Library
	 Carol Bredemeyer
Center for Excellence in Advocacy
	 Jack Harrison

College of Arts & Sciences
Dean
Diana McGill
	 Associate Dean
	 Bethany Bowling
	 Associate Dean
	 Emily Detmer-Goebel
	 Assistant Dean
	 Amy Racke
Advising Center
	 Amy Racke
Biological Sciences
	 Patrick Schultheis
Center for Integrative Natural Science and 	
Mathematics - CINSAM
	 Madhura Kulkami
Chemistry and Biochemistry
	 K.C. Russell
English
	 John Alberti 
History and Geography
	 Burke Miller
Kentucky Center for Mathematics
	 Kelly DeLong
Mathematics & Statistics
	 Brooke Buckley
Physics, Geology and Engineering Technology
	 Sharmanthie Fernando
Political Science, Criminal Justice & 
Organizational Leadership
	 Karen Miller
Psychological Science
	 Cecile Marczinski
School of the Arts
	 Matt Albritton
Sociology, Anthropology & Philosophy
	 Doug Hume
World Languages and Literatures
	 Caryn Connelly

Haile/US Bank College of Business
Dean
Hassan HassabElnaby
	 Associate Dean
	 Sean Foley
	 Associate Dean
	 Duke Thompson (Interim)
	 Assistant Dean
	 Eileen Weisenbach Keller
Accounting & Business Law
	 Catherine Neal
	 Darius Fatemi
Alternative Dispute Resolution Center
	 Kathleen Carnes
Center for Economic Analysis and Development
	 Janet Harrah
Center for Economic Education
	 Abdullah Al-Bahrani
Center for Innovation & Entrepreneurship
	 Jeff Varrone (Interim)
	 Zac Strobl (Interim)
Economics and Finance
	 Gary Clayton 
Executive Leadership and Organizational Change
	 (vacant)
Management
	 Stephanie Hughes
Marketing Research Partnership Program
	 Aron Levin
Marketing, Sports Business & Construction 
Management
	 Aron Levin
Small Business Development Center
	 Janet Harrah (Interim)

College of Education
Dean
Jim Allen (Interim)
	 Associate Dean
	 Steve Crites
	 Associate Dean for Administration, Inclusive 	
	 Excellence and Special Projects
	 Lewatis McNeal
Advising Center
	 Anna Stryker
Center for Educator Excellence
	 Sara Runge
Institute for Talent Development and 
Gifted Studies
	 Kimberly Clayton-Code

	 Associate Provost for Administration
	 Chad Ogle

Academic Affairs 
Provost and Executive Vice President 

Sue Ott Rowlands

Assistant Provost for Special Projects
Jason Vest

College of Health & Human Services
Dean
Dale Stephenson
	 Chief Nurse Administrator
	 Gannon Tagher
	 Associate Dean
	 Gannon Tagher
Advising Center
	 Cathleen Wolff
Northern Kentucky Nursing and Interprofessional 
Research Collaborative
	 Judi Godsey
Nurse Advocacy Center for the Underserved
	 Jennifer Hunter
School of Allied Health
	 Tavid Tataw (Interim)
School of Kinesiology, Counseling & 
Rehabilitative Sciences
	 Alar Lipping (Interim)
School of Nursing
	 Lynne Zajac (Interim)
School of Social Work
	 Vanessa Hunn (Interim)
Training and Development Center
	 David Wilkerson

College of Informatics
Dean
Kevin Kirby
	 Associate Dean
	 Stephanie Klatzke
Advising Center
	 Rebecca Hamm
Business Informatics
	 Sauren Paul
Communication
	 Stephen Yungbluth
Computer Science
	 Maureen Doyle

Center for Global Engagement and
International Affairs
Executive Director
Francois LeRoy
Education Abroad
	 Michelle Melish
International Admissions
	 Rebecca Hansen

Graduate Education, Research and 
Outreach
Vice Provost
Samantha Langley-Turnbaugh
Center for Environmental Restoration
	 Scott Fennell 
Graduate Education
	 Christian Gamm
Institute for Student Research & Creative Activity
	 Shauna Reilly
NKU Research Foundation
	 Samantha Langley-Turnbaugh
Research, Grants and Contracts
	 Mary Ucci
Scripps Howard Center for Civic Engagement
	 Mark Neikirk

Enrollment and Degree Management
Vice President
Kimberly Scranage
Enrollment and Financial Assistance
	 Assistant Vice President
	 Leah Stewart
	 Admissions - Undergraduate
		  Melissa Gorbandt
	 Student Financial Assistance
		  Trenee Johnson
 Enrollment and Student Success
	 Assistant Vice President
	 Ryan Padgett
	 Career Services
		  Bill Froude
	 Student Support Services
		  Lori Wright
	 U-CAP
		  Peg Adams
	 Veterans Resource Station
		  Ryan Padgett
University Registrar
	 W. Allen Cole, III

Steely Library
Dean
Andrea Falcone
	 Associate Dean
	 Lois Schultz
	 Associate Dean
	 Robert Zai
Academic Technology Group and CITE
	 Jeff Chesnut

Undergraduate Academic Affairs
Vice Provost
Ande Durojaiye
	 Assistant Vice Provost for Assessment
	 Abdou Ndoye
Adult Learner Programs & Services
	 Amy Danzo
First Year Programs
	 Tracy Hart (Interim)
Grant County Center
	 Sherry Cucchiara (Interim)
Learning Plus
	 Diane Williams
Norse Advising
	 Frank Robinson
Testing Services
	 Amy Danzo

Honors College
Dean
James Buss
	 Office of Nationally Competitve 		
	 Scholarships
		  Belle Zembrodt

Administration
Business & Finance
	 Deputy Athletic Director
	 Dan McIver
Communications & Media Relations
	 Assistant Athletic Director
	 Bryan McEldowney
Compliance & Student-Athlete Services
	 Associate Athletic Director / 	
	 Academics / SWA
	 Debbie Kirch
Development
	 Director of Development
	 Jeff Baldwin
Marketing, Promotions and Ticketing
	 Assistant Athletic Director
	 Brandon Hays
Operations & Event Management
	 Associate Athletic Director
	 Chris Hafling
Sports Medicine & Risk Management
	 Associate Athletic Director
	 Molly Woods
  
Sport Programs
Men’s Baseball
	 Todd Asalon
Men’s Basketball
	 Darrin Horn
Women’s Basketball
	 Camryn Whitaker
Men’s & Women’s Cross Country /
Track & Field
	 Steve Kruse
Men’s & Women’s Golf
	 Daryl Landrum
Men’s Soccer
	 Stu Riddle
Women’s Soccer
	 Bob Sheehan
Women’s Softball
	 Kathryn Gleason
Men’s & Women’s Tennis
	 Brian Nester
Women’s Volleyball
	 Liz Hart
 

Intercollegiate Athletics
Director of Athletics

Ken Bothof

Institutional Research
Executive Director
Shawn Rainey
	 Associate Director
	 Cori Henderson
	 Assistant Director
	 Amy Ishmael

Planning and Performance
Executive Director
Shawn Rainey
	

Strategic Planning and Implementation
Vice President/Chief Strategy Officer

Bonita J. Brown

Financial and Operational 
Auditing
Director
Larry Meyer

Legal Affairs
Vice President and General Counsel

Joan M. Gates

Assistant to the President: Tammy Knochelmann

Deputy General 
Counsel

Sara B. Kelley
Advancement Operations
Senior Director
Erica Bolenbaugh (Interim)
	 Director of Advancement Services
		  Marilou Singleton

Alumni Relations Engagement & 
Annual Giving
Senior Director
Amy Wylie
	 Director of Annual Giving
		  Jodi Zerbe

Special Events
Director
Krista Wiseman-Moore

Government, Corporate and 
Foundation Engagement
Assistant Vice President
Adam Caswell
	 Director of Corporate Relations
		  Michelle Walter

University Development
Assistant Vice President
Kelly Keene (Acting)
	 Director of Development, College of Arts
	 and Sciences (CAS)
		  (vacant)
	 Director of Development, Haile/US Bank 	
	 College of Business
		  (vacant)
	 Director of Development, College of
	 Informatics (COI)
		  (vacant)
	 Director of Development, Chase 
	 College of Law
		  David MacKnight
	 Director of Planned Giving
		  Kyle Higgason

University Marketing & Communications
Assistant Vice President
(vacant)
	 Director of Communications
		  Tom Ramstetter
	 Director of Communications & 
	 University Relations
		  Anna Wright	 		
	 Director of University Marketing		
		  Jeff Pugh

	 	

University Advancement
Vice President/Executive Director, NKUF

Eric C. Gentry

Student Engagement & Dean of 
Students

Assistant Vice President
Arnie Slaughter
	 Campus Recreation
			   Shomari Kee
	 Fraternity and Sorority Life
			   Kim Vance
	 Student Engagement
			   Tiffany Mayse
	 Student Union and Programming
			   Sarah Aikman	
	 University Housing
			   David Berland

Outreach Services
Assistant Vice President
(Ombudsman)
Dannie Moore
	 Health Service	
		  Rose Tempel
	 Student Counseling Services
		  Amy Clark	
	 Upward Bound
	 Eric Brose

Student Inclusiveness
Assistant Vice President
(Ombudsman)
Dannie Moore
	 African American Student Initiatives	
		  Carlous Yates	
	 Disability Programs and Services
		  Cindy Knox
	 Latino Programs and Services
		  Leo Calderon
	 PAC
		  Amanda Johnson
	 LGBTQ Programs and Services
		  Bonnie Meyer
	 Norse Violence Prevention Center
		  Kendra Massey

Student Conduct, Rights and 
Advocacy
Assistant Dean of Students and Director of 
Conduct, Rights and Advocacy	
Bob Alston

University Police
Chief of Police
John Gaffin

Office of Title IX
Director and Coordinator2

Ande Durojaiye (Interim)

Student Affairs
Vice President
Dan Nadler

Approved by the NKU Board of Regents
Effective November 13, 2019
1	This chart includes functional areas at not less than the director level.
2This position reports to both the Provost and the Vice President for Student Affairs. 

NORTHERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE1
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Presidential Recommendation:  C-10 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Regents adopt the 2020-2022 Capital Budget. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Board adopted the University’s 2020-2026 Capital Plan at its May 8, 2019 meeting. The priorities 

outlined in the 2020-2022 biennium of the 2020-2026 Capital Plan are carried forward to create the 

2020-2022 biennial Capital Budget Request which will be submitted to CPE, the Governor and the 

General Assembly on November 15, 2019.  

 

The 2020-2022 Capital Budget must include: 

 Construction projects with a scope of $1,000,000 or more.  

 Information technology projects with a scope of $1,000,000 or more. 

 Equipment projects with a scope of $200,000 or more.  

 Leases with an anticipated annual cost above $200,000. 

 

Since the May board meeting, several changes have been made to projects in 2020-2022 (refer to 

attached project list for details).  New projects include “Enhance Student Union”, “Expand/Renovate 

Soccer Stadium”, “Construct Research/Innovation Building”, “Academic Space Lease” and “Lease-

Office Space”.  A list of Capital Budget projects and a document outlining brief information for each 

project are provided.  Note that project titles, priorities, fund sources, and cost estimates may be 

adjusted prior to final submission of the Capital Budget. 

 

Capital Approval Process:   

 

Consistent with their approach last biennium, CPE is primarily focused on addressing the significant 

asset preservation, or capital renewal needs, which exist on all campuses. The asset preservation total 

is about $6B for the system and $294M for NKU, although CPE may engage a consultant to update 

these figures in the future.  NKU’s need is only 0.05% of the system total due to NKU’s comparatively 

smaller campus and lower average age of buildings. 

 

CPE’s plan outlines an investment of $600M, or 10% of the overall system need. Of this amount, 

NKU’s share is $32,085,000, with $21,390,000 coming from State Bond Funds. To obtain these 

funds, NKU will need to match them with $10,695,000, a fifty cents on the dollar match.  The Capital 

Budget proposes $2M in NKU funds and $8,695,000 in agency bond funds to achieve this match. 

 

CPE will not make a request for state General Fund supported bonds for new or expanded space in 

2020-2022; however, CPE has advised that new construction priorities such as NKU’s Expand 

Herrmann Science Center can be included in the Capital Budget.  The Capital Budget, along with the 

2020-2022 Operating Budget Request, will be submitted to the Governor’s Office for Policy and 

Management on November 15.  The Governor’s Biennial Budget recommendation will be submitted 

to the General Assembly in January. 
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Northern Kentucky University 

2020-2022 Capital Budget Request 
 

Summary 

 

 

Expand Herrmann Science Center Priority #1 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $94,500,000 

This project envisions construction of additional teaching and research labs in biology, 

chemistry, biochemistry, physics, geology and engineering technology in an 115,000 square foot 

addition to the 175,131 square foot Herrmann Science Center. The project may be an addition or 

it could be a freestanding building adjacent to the existing building. 

Renew/Renovate Fine Arts Center Phase II Priority #2 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate:  $45,000,000 

Private Funds                            $5,000,000 

This project includes renovations to the Fine Arts Center, a 159,000 square foot academic 

building, and includes capital renewal of HVAC and electrical systems, elevators, fire alarm, 

building finishes, etc. The project scope also includes funds to address heaving of a 15,000 square 

foot area of slab-on-grade on Corbett Theater stage and adjacent classroom areas.   

 

Renovate/Expand Business Academic Building Priority #3 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $33,000,000 

 Private Funds    $8,000,000 

This project involves renovation of the 110,693 square foot Business Academic Center 

including capital renewal of building systems and repair of structural floor heaving in a 4,000 

square foot area of the first floor. Also included as a part of the project scope is a 20,000 square 

foot building expansion and renovation of select areas. 

 

Renew/Renovate Nunn Hall Priority #4 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $25,000,000 

   Private Funds    $5,000,000 

Nunn Hall was the first building on the new NKU campus in 1972, and is in need of critical 

capital renewal of building systems, including reconstruction of deteriorated and leaking sanitary 

sewer infrastructure, HVAC replacement, elimination of below grade groundwater infiltration, and 

replacement of heaved slab-on-grade in a 15,000 square foot area. Nunn Hall houses the Chase 

College of Law. This project also provides funding for the repurposing of the 1st floor former 

Chase Library to a new space use. 
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Replace Underground Utility Infrastructure Priority #5 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $6,700,000 

This project includes replacement of underground water, sanitary sewer and gas mains.  About 

3,000 lineal feet of undersized water mains require replacement to increase water pressure and 

fire-fighting capability.  About 1,700 lineal feet of sewer mains will be upsized to create needed 

capacity.  Finally, about 1,800 lineal feet of steel gas mains need to be replaced with plastic piping 

to eliminate risk of leaks. 

 

Renew/Renovate Steely Library Priority #6 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $41,000,000  

This project will renew HVAC, electrical and other building systems and infrastructure in 

the 141,000 square foot Steely Library and provide funding to create a Learning Commons 

environment in the building. This project also includes funds to address the heaving of the slab-

on-grade on the first floor. 

 

Renew E&G Buildings Systems Projects Pool Priority #7 

 

Funding Source: State Funds  Cost Estimate:   $20,000,000 

This project includes various improvements, upgrades and capital renewal investments to 

building systems and associated infrastructure in the university's educational and general 

buildings. 

 

Enhance/Upgrade Cyber Security System Priority #8 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $1,950,000 

Enhance the University’s cyber security systems to help prevent, detect and quickly resolve 

cyber-attacks and IT threats. 

 

Upgrade Admin Systems Priority #9 

 

Funding Source: State Funds  Cost Estimate: $6,000,000  

NKU's administrative system's core software and hardware will be upgraded to the newest 

business technology to improve overall performance, accessibility, ease of system use, and to 

update business processes.  A secure cloud storage environment will be investigated for this 

upgrade. 

 

Renovate/Construct Campbell Hall Priority #10 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate:  $9,000,000  

        Private Fund                                    $9,000,000 

   The university purchased Campbell Hall, a 46,915 square foot building located at the northern 

edge of NKU’s Highland Heights campus, from Gateway Community College in 2016.  This 

project will provide for renovation and modernization to enable continued use.  Building systems 

are in need of significant renewal and parts of the building are unusable until renovations are 

accomplished. 

 

 

 

2020-2022 Capital Projects - CONTINUED 

150



 

 

Upgrade Instructional Technology Priority #11 

Funding Source: State Funds  Cost Estimate:    $4,700,000 

The project includes numerous hardware and software technology upgrades designed to help 

improve the delivery of instruction campus wide. 

 

Next Generation Digital Campus Priority #12 

 

Funding Source: State Funds Cost Estimate: $3,300,000 

This project will expand, enhance and in some cases replace the existing campus network 

backbone infrastructure, including both cabling and operating hardware.  This system is 9-24 years 

old and its operating speed, 10GB, will not support current needs for instruction, collaboration and 

research. The new backbone is planned to support 100GB of data. 

 

Scientific/Technology Equipment Pool Reauthorization Priority #13 

 

Funding Source: State Funds                                                         Cost Estimate:    $6,000,000 

This equipment pool includes scientific/technology equipment to support instruction and 

research in the basic sciences. 

 

Renovate/Construct Residence Halls  Priority #14 

 

Funding Source: NKU Bonds                Cost Estimate:      $40,000,000 

Quality, on-campus housing enriches the collegiate experience, positively impacting student 

retention and graduation rates. To improve and enhance the residential experience, the project 

scope includes evaluation of existing housing to determine the most cost effective solution, which 

may include selected demolition and/or renovation of existing facilities; acquisition; 

renovation/restoration of existing facilities; and, the ability to construct one new residence hall of 

about 80,000 square feet and a capacity of 300 beds.  

 

Enhance Student Union  Priority #15 

 

Funding Source: Other/Auxiliary Funds              Cost Estimate:       $3,000,000 

  NKU Funds/Cash                  $1,500,000 

This project includes renewal of the audio visual systems in the Student Union ballroom and 

renovation of a food service venue to better meet student needs.    

 

Expand/Renovate Soccer Stadium  Priority #16 

 

Funding Source: Private Funds                     Cost Estimate:        $3,500,000 

Various areas in the Soccer Stadium would be upgraded to better serve student athletes and 

improve the fan experience.  The building could be expanded to allow for enlarged team locker 

rooms. 
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Reconstruct West Side Parking Reauthorization Priority #17 

 

Funding Source: NKU Bonds                                                       Cost Estimate:         $7,000,000  

 Other/Long-Term Financing  $7,000,000 

The gravel parking area between Kenton and the new Connector Road will be reconstructed. 

With completion of the new Connector Road, parking demand in this area has increased. Surface 

parking lot expansion may also occur in other areas of campus. Project financing pursuant to KRS 

45.763 is requested; NKU may opt to spend cash instead of financing. 

 

Renovate Civic Center Building Priority #18 

 

Funding Source: Private Funds Cost Estimate: $8,000,000 

This project will fund a comprehensive renovation to the former Highland Heights Civic 

Center building to house university offices and other services. Environmental and code compliance 

issues will be addressed. 

 

Construct Research/Innovation Building Reauthorization Priority #19 

 

Funding Source: Other/Long-Term Financing                               Cost Estimate:  $30,000,000  

  A 66,000 square foot research and innovation center would be constructed to serve regional 

needs for entrepreneurship, job creation, and economic development.  Project financing pursuant 

to KRS 45.763 is requested. 

 

Renovate/Expand Baseball Field Reauthorization Priority #20 

 

Funding Source: Private Funds Cost Estimate: $6,700,000 

Upgrades to the existing baseball facility will better position it to accommodate competitive 

baseball games.  Improvements include expanded spectator seating, ADA upgrades, press box, 

concession area and lighting.  

 

Renovate Brown Building Reauthorization Priority #21 

 

Funding Source: NKU Funds/Cash Cost Estimate: $3,000,000 

Private Funds   1,500,000 

The Brown Building is a small, 8,586 square foot building that is in need of total renovation. 

It is vacant; it cannot be occupied due to environmental and code compliance issues. It will be 

renovated to create much needed office space. 

 

Replace Event Center Technology  Priority #22 

 

Funding Source: Other/Long-Term Financing Cost Estimate: $4,000,000  

The BB&T Arena, a 243,000 square foot multi-purpose event center, opened in 2008.  The 

center hung scoreboard and the ribbon boards in the arena are in need of replacement due to 

outdated electronic components. Project financing pursuant to KRS 45.763 is requested. 
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Acquire Land/Master Plan 2010-2012 Reauthorization Priority #23 

 

Funding Source: NKU Bonds Cost Estimate:  $17,500,000 

NKU Funds/Cash                             $4,000,000 

Other/Long Term Financing                                             $4,000,000 

            This project will allow the university to take advantage of real property acquisition 

opportunities during the 2020-2022 biennium to support educational programs and campus 

development. Land acquisition is critical to the future development of the university; the 2009 

Master Plan recommends the purchase of 290 acres.  This project includes possible acquisition of 

a campus ministry building located in the center of campus. Project financing pursuant to KRS 

45.763 is requested. 

 

Asset Preservation Matching Funds Pool Priority #24 

 

Funding Source: Agency Bonds                                                           Cost Estimate:   $8,695,000    

                             NKU Funds/Cash                                                                              $2,000,000 

        These funds will be used for various asset preservation projects in academic and academic 

support facilities. NKU must match state funds, if authorized, fifty cents on the dollar. 

 

Academic Space Lease Priority #25 

 

Funding Source: Restricted Funds Cost Estimate: N/A  

            This lease will provide the university with the opportunity to lease space off campus for 

instructional purposes.    

  

 Lease – Office Space Priority #26 

 

Funding Source: Restricted Funds Cost Estimate: N/A  
   This lease will provide the university with the opportunity to lease space off campus for office 

purposes. 

Guaranteed Energy Savings Performance Contracts Priority #27 

 

Funding Source: Other/Long-Term Financing Cost Estimate:    N/A 

       The Guaranteed Energy Performance Projects Pool serves as a central project pool for 

Guaranteed Energy Savings Performance Contracts in any university-owned building. These 

contracts will function as a lease-purchase procurement, using energy savings as payments for 

improvements, as provided by KRS 56.770 to 56.784. 
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Northern Kentucky University
 Capital Budget  Project List 2020-2022

Priority Project
 2020-2022 

Scope Fund Source

1 Expand Herrmann Science Center 94,500,000$        General Fund (State)

2 Renew/Renovate Fine Arts Center Phase II 45,000,000$        General Fund (State)

5,000,000$          Private Funds

3 Renovate/Expand Business Academic Building 33,000,000$        General Fund (State)

8,000,000$          Private Funds

4 Renew/Renovate Nunn Hall 25,000,000$        General Fund (State)

5,000,000$          Private Funds

5 Replace Underground Utility Infrastructure 6,700,000$          General Fund (State)

6 Renew/Renovate Steely Library 41,000,000$        General Fund (State)

7 Renew E&G Buildings Systems Projects Pool 20,000,000$        General Fund (State)

8 Enhance/Upgrade Cyber Security System 1,950,000$          General Fund (State)

9 Upgrade Admin Systems 6,000,000$          General Fund (State)

10 Renovate/Construct Campbell Hall 9,000,000$          General Fund (State)

9,000,000$          Private Funds

11 Upgrade Instructional Technology 4,700,000$          General Fund (State)

12 Next Generation Digital Campus 3,300,000$          General Fund (State)

13 Scientific/Technology Equipment Pool 6,000,000$          General Fund (State)

14 Renovate/Construct Residence Halls 40,000,000$        NKU Bonds

15 Enhance Student Union 3,000,000$          Other (Auxiliary Funds)

1,500,000$          NKU Funds

16 Expand/Renovate Soccer Stadium 3,500,000$          Private Funds

17 Reconstruct West Side Parking Reauth. 7,000,000$          NKU Bonds

7,000,000$          Long-Term Financing

18 Renovate/Expand Civic Center Building 8,000,000$          Private Funds

19 Construct Research/Innovation Building Reauth. 30,000,000$        Long-Term Financing

20 Renovate/Expand Baseball Field Reauth. 6,700,000$          Private Funds

21 Renovate Brown Building Reauth. 3,000,000$          NKU Funds

1,500,000$          Private Funds

22 Replace Event Center Technology 4,000,000$          Long-Term Financing

23 Acquire Land/Master Plan 2010-2012 - Reauth. 17,500,000$        NKU Bonds
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Northern Kentucky University
 Capital Budget  Project List 2020-2022

Priority Project
 2020-2022 

Scope Fund Source

4,000,000$          NKU Funds

4,000,000$          Long-Term Financing

24 Asset Preservation Matching Funds Pool 8,695,000$          Agency Bonds

2,000,000$          NKU Funds

25 Academic Space Lease n/a Restricted Funds

26 Lease - Office Space n/a Restricted Funds

27 Guaranteed Energy Savings Performance Contracts n/a Long-Term Financing

GRAND TOTAL 2020-2022 472,545,000$     
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